
Registered Office I Urse Plant 
Finolex Industries Limited 
Gat No. 399, Village Urse, Tal.-Maval , 
Dist. Pune 410 506, Maharashtra, India 
CIN L40108PN1981PLC024153 

Tel 
Toll Free 
Fax 
Email 
Web 

+91 2114 2372511237253 
1800 200 3466 
+91 2114 237252 
investors@finolexind.com 
finolexpipes.com ir-

FIL/ SEC/SEs/ 2020-21 / 066 
27th Augus t , 2020 

National Stock Exchange of India Limited BSE Limited 
Manager - Listing Department Manager - Listing Department 
5 , Exchange Plaza Registered Office: Floor 25 
Bandra-Kurla Complex P.J.Towers 
Bandra (East) , Dalal Street 
Mumbai 400051 Mumbai 400 001 
Scrip Code: Scrip Code: Equity: 
Equity: FINPIPE 500940/FINOLEXIND 

Sub Notice of 39th Annual General Meeting and 39th Annual Report of the 
Company 

Re f Regulation 30 & Regulation 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

Dear Sir/ Madam, 

In terms of the subject referred Regulations, enclosed herewith is the notice of 39th Annual 
General Meeting (AGM) and the 39th Annual Report for the financial year 2019-20, which 
are circulated to the shareholders through the electronic mode today i.e . 27th August, 2020, 
The 39th AGM will be held on Saturday, 19th September, 2020 at 11.00 a.m. (IST) , through 
Video Conferencing ("VC") or Other Audio Visual Means ("OAVM") . 

The Schedule of AGM is as set ou t below: 

Eve nt - 39th AGM Details Time (IST) 
Date and time of AGM Saturday, 19th September, 2020 11.00 a .m. 
Mode Video conferencing and other audio -

visual means 
Participation through video htt12s: L [emeetings.kfintech.com[ -

conferencing 
Cut-off date fore-voting Friday, 11th September, 2020 -

E-voting start date and time Wednesday, 16th September, 2020 9.00 a .m . 
E-voting end date and time Friday, 18th September, 2020 5.00 p .m. 
E-voting website of KFin htt12s: LL evoting. karvv.com L -

Technologies Private Limited 

Please note that the said notice of the 39th AGM and 39th Annual Report of the Company for 
the Financial Year 2019-20, are also available on the website of the Company at 
vvvvw.finolexpipes.com. 

You are requested to kindly take the a bove on your records. 

Thanking you, 

Yours Truly, 

For Finolex Industries Limited 

dv.~ 
Anil Whabi 
Director (Finance) & CFO 

~ Encl: As above 

Corpo£t~ Office 
Finolex Industries Limited Tel 
0-1 / 10, M.1.0.C. Fax 

+91 20 27408200 
+91 20 27474444 
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

 Particulars  PVC  Pipes & 
fittings 

 Total 
segments 

 Adjustments 
and eliminations 

 Total 

Revenue 
External customers  432.03  2,553.95  2,985.98  -  2,985.98 
Inter-segment  1,247.13  -  1,247.13  (1,247.13)  - 
Total revenue  1,679.16  2,553.95  4,233.11  (1,247.13)  2,985.98 
Income/(Expenses) 
Depreciation and amortisation  (14.05)  (42.19)  (56.24)  -  (56.24)
Segment profit  199.79  202.68  402.47  -  402.47 
Total assets  959.33  1,022.21  1,981.54  -  1,981.54 
Total liabilities  178.05  77.42  255.47  -  255.47 
Other disclosures 
Capital expenditure  8.77  45.97  54.74  -  54.74 

 Particulars  PVC  Pipes & 
fittings 

 Total 
segments 

Adjustments 
and eliminations 

 Total 

Revenue 
External customers  516.52  2,574.80  3,091.32  3,091.32 
Inter-segment  1,357.65  -  1,357.65  (1,357.65)  - 
Total revenue  1,874.17  2,574.80  4,448.97  (1,357.65)  3,091.32 
Income/(Expenses) 
Depreciation and amortisation  (12.65)  (39.84)  (52.49)  -  (52.49)
Segment profit  377.28  182.82  560.10  -  560.10 
Total assets  814.40  963.22  1,777.62  -  1,777.62 
Total liabilities  209.76  91.87  301.63  -  301.63 
Other disclosures      
Capital expenditure  22.06  75.62  97.68 -  97.68

 	 Year ended March 31, 2019

	 Inter-segment revenues are eliminated upon consolidation and reflected in the 
‘adjustments and eliminations’ column. All other adjustments and eliminations are part 
of detailed reconciliations presented further below.

	 Adjustments and eliminations

	 Finance income and costs, and fair value gains and losses on financial assets are not 
allocated to individual segments as the underlying instruments are managed for the 
entity as a whole.

	 Current taxes, deferred taxes and certain financial assets and liabilities are not allocated 
to those segments as they are also managed for the entity as a whole.

	 Capital expenditure consists of additions of property, plant and equipment and intangible 
assets and additions to capital work in progress.

	 Inter-segment revenues are eliminated on consolidation.

with profit or loss in the financial statements. The Company’s financing (including finance 
costs and finance income) and income taxes are not allocated to operating segments.

 	 Year ended March 31, 2020

33 	Segment Information (Contd..)
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019
Segment profit  402.47  560.10 
Unallocable income  29.33  39.29 
Finance costs  (11.91)  (12.27)
Unallocable expense  (26.70)  (51.51)
Profit before tax  393.19  535.62 

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019
Segment operating assets  1,981.54  1,777.62 
Current tax assets  42.34  33.05 
Financial assets carried at FVTPL  0.40  0.65 
Financial assets carried at FVTOCI  439.03  1,060.17 
Financial assets carried at cost  7.55  7.55 
Current investments  129.13  226.09 
Cash and cash equivalents (including other bank 
balances)  93.21  29.10 
Other unallocated assets  122.12  138.52 
Total assets  2,815.31  3,272.74 

	 Reconciliation of assets

33 	Segment Information (Contd..)

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

Segment operating liabilities  255.47  301.63 
Deferred tax liabilities  115.82  151.33 
Trade payables  1.18  6.71 
Short term borrowings  282.67  89.50 
Financial liabilities at amortised cost  97.86  67.71 
Interest accrued  0.56  0.51 
Unpaid dividend  32.42  21.52 
Statutory Dues  12.11  18.50 
Provisions  29.73  22.98 
Government Grant  57.68  63.91 
Total liabilities  885.50  744.31 

	 Reconciliation of liabilities

	 Reconciliation of profit

	 Geographic information

	 In the year ended March 31, 2020, the Company has catered only to the needs of the 
Indian markets. As there was no export turnover during the year, there are no reportable 
geographical segments.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 

34	  Earnings Per Share (EPS)

	 Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by 
the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

	 There are no potential shares that have a dilutive effect on the EPS.

 	 The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic EPS computation

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

Basic 
Profit for the year before Tax (in H Crores)  393.19  535.62 
Less : Attributable Tax thereto  68.99  185.82 
Net profit / (loss) after tax (in H Crores)  324.20  349.80 
Weighted average number of equity shares  12.41  12.41 
Basic earnings/(loss) per share of J10 each  26.13  28.19 

35	Disclosure pursuant to Employee benefits

	 A.	 Defined contribution plans:

		  Amount of H4.84 Crores (March 31, 2019: H3.96 Crores) is recognised as expenses 
and included in Note No. 29 “Employee benefit expense”

	 B.	 Defined benefit plans:

		  The Company has Gratuity as post employment benefit which is in the nature of 
defined benefit plan.

		  The Company operates gratuity plan (funded) wherein every employee is entitled to 
the benefit equivalent to fifteen days salary last drawn for each completed year of 
service. The same is payable on termination of service or retirement whichever is 
earlier. The benefit vests after five years of continuous service.

		  The gratuity plan is governed by the payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the act, 
employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to specific benefit. The 
level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at 
retirement age.



Finolex Industries Limited192

N
ot

es
 t

o 
th

e 
St

an
d

al
on

e 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l S

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

35
	D

is
cl

o
su

re
 p

u
rs

u
an

t 
to

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

b
en

efi
ts

 (
co

n
td

..)

M
ar

ch
 3

1,
 2

02
0 

: C
h

an
ge

s 
in

 d
efi

n
ed

 b
en

efi
t 

o
b

lig
at

io
n

 a
n

d
 p

la
n

 a
ss

et
s

(A
ll 

am
ou

nt
s 

in
 H

 C
ro

re
s 

un
le

ss
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
st

at
ed

)

A
p

ri
l 1

, 
20

19
G

ra
tu

it
y 

co
st

 c
h

ar
ge

d
 t

o
 s

ta
te

m
en

t 
o

f 
p

ro
fit

 a
n

d
 lo

ss
B

en
efi

t 
p

ai
d

R
em

ea
su

re
m

en
t 

ga
in

s/
(l

o
ss

es
) 

in
 o

th
er

 c
o

m
p

re
h

en
si

ve
 in

co
m

e
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s 
by

 e
m

p
lo

ye
r

M
ar

ch
 3

1,
 

20
20

S
er

vi
ce

 
co

st
N

et
 

in
te

re
st

 
(e

xp
en

se
) 

/ 
in

co
m

e

S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l 
in

cl
u

d
ed

 in
 

st
at

em
en

t 
o

f 
p

ro
fit

 
an

d
 lo

ss
 

(N
o

te
 3

0)

R
et

u
rn

 o
n

 p
la

n
 

as
se

ts
 (

ex
cl

u
d

in
g

 
am

o
u

n
ts

 
in

cl
u

d
ed

 in
 n

et
 

in
te

re
st

 e
xp

en
se

)

A
ct

u
ar

ia
l 

ch
an

ge
s 

ar
is

in
g

 f
ro

m
 

ch
an

ge
s 

in
 

d
em

o
g

ra
p

h
ic

 
as

su
m

p
ti

o
n

s

A
ct

u
ar

ia
l 

ch
an

ge
s 

ar
is

in
g

 f
ro

m
 

ch
an

ge
s 

in
 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 

as
su

m
p

ti
o

n
s

Ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
S

u
b

-t
o

ta
l 

in
cl

u
d

ed
 

in
 O

C
I

G
ra

tu
it

y

D
efi

ne
d 

be
ne

fit
 o

bl
ig

at
io

n 
 (1

9.
25

)
 (1

.4
1)

 (1
.3

8)
 (2

.7
9)

 1
.6

1 
 -

 
 - 

 (1
.8

9)
 (1

.4
9)

 (3
.3

8)
 - 

 (
23

.8
1)

Fa
ir 

va
lu

e 
of

 p
la

n 
as

se
ts

 
 4

.1
6 

 (0
.0

6)
 0

.3
2 

 0
.2

6 
 (1

.6
1)

 -
 

 - 
 (0

.0
1)

 0
.0

1 
 - 

 1
.2

8 
 4

.0
9 

To
ta

l b
en

efi
t 

lia
b

ili
ty

 
 (

15
.0

9)
 (

1.
47

)
 (

1.
06

)
 (

2.
53

)
 -

 
 -

 
 -

 
 (

1.
90

)
 (

1.
48

)
 (

3.
38

)
 1

.2
8 

 (
19

.7
2)

(A
ll 

am
ou

nt
s 

in
 H

 C
ro

re
s 

un
le

ss
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
st

at
ed

)

Pa
rt

ic
u

la
rs

A
p

ri
l 1

, 
20

18
C

o
st

 c
h

ar
ge

d
 t

o
 s

ta
te

m
en

t 
o

f 
p

ro
fit

 
an

d
 lo

ss
B

en
efi

t 
p

ai
d

R
em

ea
su

re
m

en
t 

ga
in

s/
(l

o
ss

es
) 

in
 o

th
er

 c
o

m
p

re
h

en
si

ve
 in

co
m

e
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s 
by

 e
m

p
lo

ye
r

M
ar

ch
 

31
, 2

01
9

S
er

vi
ce

 
co

st
N

et
 

in
te

re
st

 
ex

p
en

se

S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l 
in

cl
u

d
ed

 in
 

st
at

em
en

t 
o

f 
p

ro
fit

 
an

d
 lo

ss
 

(N
o

te
 3

0)

R
et

u
rn

 o
n

 p
la

n
 

as
se

ts
 (

ex
cl

u
d

in
g

 
am

o
u

n
ts

 
in

cl
u

d
ed

 in
 n

et
 

in
te

re
st

 e
xp

en
se

)

A
ct

u
ar

ia
l 

ch
an

ge
s 

ar
is

in
g

 f
ro

m
 

ch
an

ge
s 

in
 

d
em

o
g

ra
p

h
ic

 
as

su
m

p
ti

o
n

s

A
ct

u
ar

ia
l 

ch
an

ge
s 

ar
is

in
g

 f
ro

m
 

ch
an

ge
s 

in
 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 

as
su

m
p

ti
o

n
s

Ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
S

u
b

-t
o

ta
l 

in
cl

u
d

ed
 

in
 O

C
I

G
ra

tu
it

y

D
efi

ne
d 

be
ne

fit
 o

bl
ig

at
io

n 
 (1

3.
33

)
 (0

.9
5)

 (1
.0

1)
 (1

.9
6)

 0
.7

8 
 -

 
 (0

.7
0)

 (2
.0

1)
 (2

.0
1)

 (4
.7

3)
 - 

 (1
9.

25
)

Fa
ir 

va
lu

e 
of

 p
la

n 
as

se
ts

 
 3

.6
2 

 (0
.0

5)
 0

.2
9 

 0
.2

4 
 (0

.7
8)

 -
 

 - 
 0

.0
2 

 (0
.0

2)
 0

.0
1 

 1
.0

7 
 4

.1
6 

To
ta

l b
en

efi
t 

lia
b

ili
ty

 
 (

9.
72

)
 (

1.
01

)
 (

0.
72

)
 (

1.
72

)
 -

 
 -

 
 (

0.
70

)
 (

1.
99

)
 (

2.
03

)
 (

4.
72

)
 1

.0
7 

 (
15

.0
9)

M
ar

ch
 3

1,
 2

01
9 

: C
h

an
ge

s 
in

 d
efi

n
ed

 b
en

efi
t 

o
b

lig
at

io
n

 a
n

d
 p

la
n

 a
ss

et
s



Annual Report 2019-20 193

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 

35	Disclosure pursuant to Employee benefits (contd..)

	 The major categories of plan assets of the fair value of the total plan assets of Gratuity 
are as follows:

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

Insured managed funds (LIC)  4.09  4.16 
(%) of total plan assets 100% 100%

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

Discount rate 6.10% 7.50%
Future salary increase 8.00% 8.00%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 7.50% 7.80%
Expected average remaining working lives (in years)
Gratuity 9.26 9.33
Compensated absences 9.26 9.33
Withdrawal rate (based on grade and age of employees)
Gratuity 7.00% 7.00%
Compensated absences 7.00% 7.00%

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Sensitivity level (increase) / decrease in defined 
benefit obligation (Impact)

 March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019 
Discount rate 1% increase  1.38  1.05 

1% decrease  (1.55)  (1.18)
Future salary increase 1% increase  (1.29)  (0.99)

1% decrease  1.18  0.90 
Withdrawal rate 1% increase  0.14  0.03 

1% decrease  (0.15)  (0.03)

	 The principal assumptions used in determining above defined benefit obligations 
for the Group’s plans is shown below:

	 A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:

	 Gratuity

	 The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates 
the impact on the defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key 
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period. The sensitivity analysis is based 
on a change in one significant assumption at a time, keeping all other assumptions constant. 
The sensitivity analysis may not be representative of an actual change in the defined benefit 
obligation as it is unlikely that changes in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another.

	 The same method has been applied for the sensitivity analysis as when calculating the 
recognised defined benefit obligation.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 

35	Disclosure pursuant to Employee benefits (contd..)
	 The followings are the expected future benefit payments for the defined benefit 

plan :

	 Weighted average duration of defined plan obligation (based on discounted cash 
flows)

	 The followings are the expected contributions to planned assets for the next year:

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period)  4.88  4.13 
Between 2 and 5 years  10.35  8.89 
Beyond 5 years  17.34  15.76 
Total expected payments  32.57  28.78 

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

Years Years

Gratuity  9.13  8.56 

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

Gratuity  1.46  1.07 

	 Risk Exposure And Asset Liability Matching

	 Provision of a defined benefit scheme poses certain risks, some of which are detailed 
hereunder, as companies take on uncertain long term obligations to make future benefit 
payments.

	 1.	 Liability Risks

	 a.	 Asset-Liability Mismatch Risk-

		  Risk which arises if there is a mismatch in the duration of the assets relative to the 
liabilities. By matching duration with the defined benefit liabilities, the company is 
successfully able to neutralize valuation swings caused by interest rate movements. 
Hence companies are encouraged to adopt asset-liability management.

	 b.	 Discount Rate Risk

		  Variations in the discount rate used to compute the present value of the liabilities may 
seem small, but in practise can have a significant impact on the defined benefit liabilities.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 

35	Disclosure pursuant to Employee benefits (contd..)

	 C.	 Other long-term employment benefits

		  The Company has compensated absences plan which is covered by other long-term 
employee benefits.

		  March 31, 2020 : Changes in defined benefit obligation of compensated absences

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

April 1, 
2019

Cost charged to statement of profit and 
loss

Benefit 
paid

Contributions 
by employer

March 
31, 2020

Service 
cost

Interest 
cost

Actuarial 
changes 

arising from 
various 

assumption

Sub-total 
included in 
statement 
of profit 
and loss 
(Note 30)

Compensated 
absences
Defined 
benefit 
obligation  (7.89)  (1.23)  (0.53)  (2.04)  (3.80)  1.68  -  (10.01)
Benefit 
liability  (7.89)  (1.23)  (0.53)  (2.04)  (3.80)  1.68  -  (10.01)

	 c.	 Future Salary Escalation and Inflation Risk

		  Since price inflation and salary growth are linked economically, they are combined for 
disclosure purposes. Rising salaries will often result in higher future defined benefit 
payments resulting in a higher present value of liabilities especially unexpected 
salary increases provided at management's discretion may lead to uncertainities in 
estimating this increasing risk.

	 2.	 Asset Risks

		  All plan assets are maintained in a trust fund managed by a public sector insurer viz; 
LIC of India. LIC has a sovereign guarantee and has been providing consistent and 
competitive returns over the years.

		  The company has opted for a traditional fund wherein all assets are invested primarily 
in risk averse markets. The company has no control over the management of funds 
but this option provides a high level of safety for the total corpus. A single account is 
maintained for both the investment and claim settlement and hence 100% liquidity 
is ensured. Also interest rate and inflation risk are taken care of.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 

36.	Related party transactions

	 Related parties have been identified on the basis of requirement of Ind AS 24 ‘Related 
Party Disclosures’ and representation made by the Key Management Personnel and 
taken on record by the Board.

	 A.	 Names of the related party and nature of relationship where control exists

		   There are no parties where control exists.

Name of the related party Nature of relationship

Orbit Electricals Private Limited Enterprise controlled by Key Management 
Personnel

Finolex Plasson Industries Private Limited Associate company
Finolex Cables Limited Enterprise wherein the Company is an 

associate
Mukul Madhav Foundation (Trust) Enterprises over which Key Management 

Personnel or their relatives exercise 
significant influence 

Finolex Infrastructure Private Limited

Mrs. Ritu P. Chhabria Relative of Key Management Personnel
Ms. Gayatri P. Chhabria Relative of Key Management Personnel

	 March 31, 2019 : Changes in defined benefit obligation of compensated absences

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars April 1, 
2018

Cost charged to statement of profit and loss Benefit 
paid

Contributions 
by employer

March 
31, 2019

Service 
cost

Interest 
cost

Actuarial 
changes 

arising from 
various 

assumption

Sub-total 
included in 

statement of 
profit and loss 

(Note 30)

Compensated absences

Defined benefit obligation  (5.15)  (0.76)  (0.35)  (3.01)  (4.12)  1.37  -  (7.89)

Benefit liability  (5.15)  (0.76)  (0.35)  (3.01)  (4.12)  1.37  -  (7.89)

35	Disclosure pursuant to Employee benefits (contd..)

	 B.	 Name of the related parties with whom transactions have been entered into

	 C.	 Key Management Personnel:

Name of the related party Nature of relationship

Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria Executive Chairman
Mr. Anil V. Whabi Director Finance & CFO
Mr. Sanjay S. Math Managing Director
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36.	Related party transactions (contd..)

	 D.	 Transactions with Related Parties 

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

I.	 Sales, services and other income
	 Sale of goods
	 Finolex Plasson Industries Private Limited  20.54  20.20 
	 Dividend Received
	 Finolex Cables Limited  9.98  8.87 
	 Finolex Plasson Industries Private Limited  0.93  1.16 
II.	 Expenses
	 Services received
	 Mrs. Ritu P. Chhabria (Sitting fees)  0.03  0.04 
	 Mrs. Ritu P. Chhabria (commission)  0.13  0.12 
	 Ms. Gayatri Chhabria (Salary)  0.05  - 
	 Dividend paid
	 Finolex Cables Limited  80.39  40.19 
	 Orbit Electricals Private Limited  46.66  23.33 

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

Contribution towards corporate social 
responsibility
Mukul Madhav Foundation  11.42  8.86 
Amounts outstanding
Due to
Finolex Plasson Industries Private Limited  0.10  0.13 

		  Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

		  Transaction entered into with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those 
that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are 
unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no 
guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables.

		  Commitments with related parties

		  The company has not provided any commitment to the related party as at March 31, 
2020 (March 31, 2019: H Nil)

		  Transactions and balances outstanding with key management personnel

		  Compensation of key management personnel of the Company
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(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019
Short-term employee benefits:
Salary and perquisites  5.38  5.11 
Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria  2.83  2.70 
Mr. Sanjay S. Math  1.28  1.21 
Mr. Anil V. Whabi  1.27  1.20 
Commission:  7.50  9.03 
Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria  5.00  7.14 
Mr. Sanjay S. Math  1.50  1.26 
Mr. Anil V. Whabi  1.00  0.63 
Post employment benefits:  0.09  0.08 
Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria  0.05  0.05 
Mr. Sanjay S. Math  0.02  0.02 
Mr. Anil V. Whabi  0.02  0.01 
Other long term benefits:  0.82  0.57 
Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria  0.66  0.45 
Mr. Sanjay S. Math  0.13  0.04 
Mr. Anil V. Whabi  0.04  0.09 
Total compensation  13.79  14.79 
The amounts disclosed in the table are the amounts recognised as an expense during the 
reporting period related to key management personnel.
Post employment benefits payable:  2.69  2.28 
Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria  2.38  2.03 
Mr. Sanjay S. Math  0.21  0.16 
Mr. Anil V. Whabi  0.11  0.09 
Other long term benefits payable:  0.82  0.57 
Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria  0.66  0.45 
Mr. Sanjay S. Math  0.13  0.04 
Mr. Anil V. Whabi  0.04  0.09 
Total long term benefits payable  3.52  2.85 

36.	Related party transactions (contd..)

37.	Commitments and contingencies

	 37.1 Capital commitments

	 Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not 
provided (net of capital advances) for amounted to H 28.38 Crores as at March 31, 2020 
(H9.20 Crores as at March 31, 2019).
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(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as 
debt
a) Liabilities in respect of income tax matters for 

which the Company has succeeded in appeal but 
Income Tax Department has gone in further appeal 
and exclusive of the effect of similar matters in 
respect of pending assessments  0.10  0.10 

b) Liabilities in respect of income tax matters for 
which the Company has gone in further appeal and 
exclusive of the effect of similar matters in respect 
of pending assessments  3.98  6.03 

c) Excise/Customs/Service Tax in respect of which 
either show cause notice is received or the 
Company/Department is in appeal  78.01  82.94 

d) Sales Tax matters in respect of which either 
show cause notice is received or the Company/
Department is in appeal  3.27  3.27 

e) Consumer Protection matters in respect of which 
customers have gone for recovery on account of 
quality claims.  0.27  1.39 

	 37.2 Contingent liabilities

37.	Commitments and contingencies (contd..)

38. Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

	 This note explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair 
values of the financial instruments that are recognised & measured at i. fair value ii. 
measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are considered to be same as the 
amortised costs disclosed in the financial statements. They are further classified them 
into Level 1 to Level 3 as required by the accounting standard and described in the 
significant accounting policies of the Company. Further, the note describes valuation 
techniques used, key inputs to valuations and quantitative information about significant 
unobservable inputs for fair value measurements.
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(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  Amortised 
Cost 

FVTPL FVTOCI

 Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3 

Non-current investments:
Investment in equity shares of:
Quoted
Equity instruments  -  0.40  -  -  439.03  -  - 
UnQuoted
Equity instruments  7.55  -  -  -  -  -  8.55 
Current investments:
Investments in units of mutual funds  -  49.53  -  -  -  -  - 
Deposit with Non Banking Financial 
institutions  79.60  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Trade and other receivables  73.17  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Loans  3.57  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Cash & cash equivalents  57.29  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Other bank balances  35.92  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Other financial assets  25.22  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Total  282.32  49.93  -  -  439.03  -  8.55 
Financial liabilities
Borrowings  282.67  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Trade and other payables  233.40  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Other financial liabilities  130.84  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Total  646.91  -  -  -  - -  - 

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

 Amortised 
Cost 

FVTPL FVTOCI

Particulars  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3 

Non-current investments:
Investment in equity shares of:
Quoted
Equity instruments  -  0.65  -  -  1,060.16  -  - 
UnQuoted
Equity instruments  7.55  -  -  -  -  -  8.58 
Current investments:
Investments in units of mutual funds  -  226.09  -  -  -  -  - 
Deposit with Non Banking Financial 
institutions  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Trade and other receivables  74.31  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Loans  3.47  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Cash & cash equivalents  6.52  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Other bank balances  21.52  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Other financial assets  73.01  -  -  -  -  -  - 

 186.38  226.74  -  -  1,060.16  -  8.58 
Financial liabilities
Borrowings  89.50  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Trade and other payables  283.80  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Other financial liabilities  89.74  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Total  463.04  -  -  -  -  -  - 

	 Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 
2019:

	 Classification of Financial instruments by Category and into Fair value Level of Hierarchy as 
at March 31, 2020

38. Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Contd..)
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Valuation techniques used to determine the fair value of each financial instrument:

Fair value of financial instruments classified  at amortised cost:

The management assessed that the fair values of cash and bank, loans, trade receivables, 
accrued interest, trade payables, borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities 
approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these 
instruments.

Carrying value of non-current financial liabilities are considered to be same as their fair 
value due to discounting at rate which are an approximation of incremental borrowing rate.     
Futher, company’s non-current financial assets are appearing in the books at fair value since 
the same are interest bearing hence discounting of the same is not required.

Fair value of financial instruments classified at FVTPL:

These financial instruments consist of investment in quoted equity instruments and units 
of mutual funds. The fair value of quoted equity instruments is based on the respective 
quoted price in the active markets as at the measurement date and fair value of investment 
in mutual funds is determined using the quoted price ( NAV ) of the respective units in the 
active market at the measurement date.

Fair value of financial instruments classified at FVTOCI:

These financial instruments consist of investment in equity instruments. The fair value of 
quoted equity instruments is based on the respective quoted price in the active markets 
as at the measurement date. The fair value of investments in unquoted equity shares has 
been estimated using the net asset method. The valuation requires to consider the cost of 
replacement of an asset as an indication of the fair market value of that asset.

During the year ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019, there were no transfers between 
Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements.

The Company maintains policies and procedures to value financial assets or financial 
liabilities using the best and most relevant data available. In addition, the Company internally 
reviews valuations, including independent price validation for certain instruments.

Valuation inputs used in Level 3 and sensitivity of inputs to fair value:

38. Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Contd..)



Finolex Industries Limited202

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 

38. Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Contd..)

39. Financial risk management objective and policies

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at 
March 

2020

As at 
March 

2019

Valuation 
technique 

adopted

Significant 
unobservable 

inputs

Weighted average 
range

Sensitivity of Input 
to FV

As at 
March 

2020

As at 
March 

2019

Non Current 
Investments - 
Unquoted equity 
shares

 8.55  8.58  Net asset 
method 

 Recknor rate 890-1160 890-1160 Increase/ (decrease) 
in the rate would 

decrease/(increase) the 
fair value.

Risk Category Exposure arising from Measurement Management

Credit risk Cash and bank balances, 
Trade receivables, and 
other Financial assets.

Ageing analysis, 
credit ratings

Diversification of bank 
deposits, portfolio 
diversification for 
investments, credit limits.

Liquidity risk Borrowings, Trade 
payables and other 
financial liabilities

Rolling cash flow 
forecasts

Senior management 
ensures that the future 
cash flow needs are met 
through cash flow from 
the operating activities 
and short term borrowings 
from banks.

Market risk-
interest rate risk

No risk since compny 
has no exposure of long 
term borrowings

Not applicable Not applicable

Market risk-
currency risk

Recognised Financial 
liabilities not 
denominated in H

Sensitivity analysis Natural hedging

Market risk-
price risk

Investments Sensitivity analysis Portfolio diversification

	 The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise short term borrowings, trade 
payables and other financial liabilities. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is 
to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include 
investments, trade receivables and cash and cash equivalents that arrive directly from 
its operations.

	 The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s 
management oversees the management of these risks. The Company’s management 
is supported by a risk management committee that advises on financial risks and the 
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39. Financial risk management objective and policies (Contd..)

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Asset group Internal 
rating

Carrying amount net of 
impairment provision 

As at  
March 31 

2020

As at  
March 31 

2019

Financial assets for which 
credit risk has not increased 
significantly from inception 

Investments A  584.66  1,303.03 
Loans A  3.57  3.47 
Other financial 
assets A  25.22  73.01 

appropriate financial risk governance framework. The risk management committee 
provides assurance to the Company’s management that the Company’s financial risk 
activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks 
are identified, measured and managed in accordance with Company’s policies appetite. 
It is the Company’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be 
undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of 
these risks, which are summarised below.

	 i)	 Credit risk

		  Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial 
instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company evaluates 
credit risk with respect to trade receivables as significantly low, as its payment 
terms are mostly advance basis. 

		  a)	 Trade Receivables

			   The Company evaluates credit risk with respect to trade receivables as 
significantly low, as its payment terms are mostly advance basis.

		  b)	 Financial instruments and cash deposits

			   Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by 
the Company’s treasury department in accordance with Company’s policy. 
Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and 
within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. Company monitors ratings, 
credit spread and financial strength of its counter parties. Based on ongoing 
assessment company adjust it's exposure to various counterparties. Company's 
maximum exposure to credit risk for the other components of balance sheet is 
the carrying amount as disclosed below:
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	 ii)	 Liquidity risk

		  Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and 
future cash flow and collateral obligations without incurring unacceptable losses. 
Company's objective is to, at all time maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet 
its cash and collateral requirements. Company closely monitors its liquidity position 
and deploys a robust cash management system. It maintains adequate sources 
of financing including overdraft, debt from domestic and international banks at 
optimised cost. Company enjoys strong access to domestic and international capital 
market across debt, equity and hybrids.

		  The table summarises the maturity profile of group's financial liabilities based on 
contractual undiscounted payments.

		  As at March 31, 2020

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 

39. Financial risk management objective and policies (Contd..)

Particulars  On 
demand 

 < 3 
months 

 3-12 
months 

 1-5 
years 

 Total 

Short term borrowings  -  282.67  -  - 282.67 
Trade payables  36.20  197.20  -  - 233.40 
Other financial liabilities  52.95  30.43  47.32  0.13 130.84 

Particulars  On 
demand 

 < 3 
months 

 3-12 
months 

 1-5 
years 

 Total 

Short term borrowings  -  89.50  -  -  89.50 
Trade Payables  1.03  282.77  -  - 283.80 
Other financial liabilities  35.40  31.34  22.66  0.34  89.74 

		  As at March 31, 2019

	 iii)	 Market risk

		  Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument 
will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three 
types of risk interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk such as equity 
price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include 
borrowings, trade and other payables, trade receivables, investments, other financial 
liabilities.

		  The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 March 
2020 and 31 March 2019. The sensitivity of the relevant income statement item 
is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. The sensitivity 
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39. Financial risk management objective and policies (Contd..)

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Nature of exposure Currency  As at 
 March 31, 2020 

 As at 
 March 31, 2019 

Financial liabilities 
Borrowings (Secured)  USD  3.53  1.14 
Borrowings (Unsecured)  USD  0.21  0.15 
Interest on borrowings  USD  0.01  0.01 
Trade payables  USD  1.99  2.74 
Trade payables  EURO  0.01  - 

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Currency Amount in Foreign Currency

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

USD  5.74  4.04 
EURO  0.01  - 

analyses have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio 
of fixed to floating interest rates of the debt, proportion of financial instruments in 
foreign currencies are all constant at 31 March 2020.

		  The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying 
values of gratuity, other post retirement obligations and provisions Company's 
activities expose it to variety of financial risks, including effect of changes in foreign 
currency exchange rate and interest rate.

		  a)	 Foreign currency risk 						    

			   Foreign currency risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument 
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

			   The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates 
primarily to its operating activities on account of import of raw materials.

			   PVC pricing is on import parity and import parity value of sales of the Company 
exceeds the USD payables on a six monthly rolling basis due to which a natural 
hedge exists and hence the Company does not generally need to resort to 
hedging by way of forward contracts, options, etc.

			   Details of foreign currency exposures

			   Currency wise net exposure (liabilities - assets)
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39. Financial risk management objective and policies (Contd..)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 

			   Sensitivity Analysis

			   The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible 
change in USD & EURO exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. 
The impact on the company’s profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value 
of monetary assets and liabilities. The impact on the company’s pre-tax equity is 
due to changes in the profit before tax.

Currency 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-20

EUR  67.51  75.10  69.25  80.78  77.67  82.77 
USD  62.59  66.33  64.84  65.18  69.16  75.67 

Currency % Change 
2015-16

% Change 
2016-17

% Change 
2017-18

% Change 
2018-19

% Change 
2019-20

Average 
change 

EUR 10% -8% 14% -4% 6% 4%
USD 6% -2% 1% 6% 9% 4%

Particulars  March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

Net unhegded exposure in J
USD  434.09  279.61 
EURO  0.64  - 
Sensitivity
USD-change by 4% (4.45% in 2018-19)  2.76  3.08 
EURO-change by 4% (NA in 2018-19)  2.99  - 
Impact on profit after tax or equity  
(J Strengthen)
USD  11.83  8.10 
EURO  0.02  - 
Impact on profit after tax or equity  
(J Weaken)
USD  (11.83)  (8.10)
EURO  (0.02)  - 

			   (EUR- Euro, USD - US Dollar)
			   Calculation of Average % change in foreign currency

		  b)	 Interest rate risk

			   Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial 
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

			   The Company has short term borrowings with fixed interest rates and hence the 
future cash-flows of relevant financial instrument are not affected by changes in 
market interest rate.
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39. Financial risk management objective and policies (Contd..)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 

Particulars  Change in year-
end price 

 Effect on profit 
before tax 

March 31, 2020
VCM  +5%  30.37 

 -5%  (30.37)
Ethylene  +5%  12.97 

 -5%  (12.97)
EDC  +5%  17.17 

 -5%  (17.17)
March 31, 2019
VCM  +5%  28.00 

 -5%  (28.00)
Ethylene  +5%  13.78 

 -5%  (13.78)
EDC  +5%  11.84 

 -5%  (11.84)

		  c)	 Price risk

		  i)	 Commodity Price risk

			   The Company is affected by the volatility of prices of certain commodity 
chemicals ( Ethylene and PVC) and intermediates (EDC and VCM). Its operating 
activities involve the ongoing purchase of Vinyl Chloride Monomer (‘VCM’), 
Ethylene and Ethylene Dichloride (‘EDC’), all being petrochemical products for 
manufacturing of PVC and pipes and fittings and therefore require a continuous 
supply of these materials. Prices of PVC manufactured by the Company are 
monitored by company management and are adjusted to respond to change in 
import parity price of PVC in Indian market. Market price of input and output, 
generally get adjusted over a period of time. Accordingly, the company is 
exposed to the variation in prices over short term period.

			   Commodity price sensitivity

			   The following table shows the effect of price changes for VCM, Ethylene EDC 
after the impact of hedge accounting:

	 ii)	 Equity price risk

		  The Company’s listed and unlisted equity securities are susceptible to market-price 
risk arising from uncertainties about future values of the investment securities. The 
equity securities held by the Company are strategic in nature. The Company’s Board 
of Directors reviews and approves all equity investment decisions.
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39. Financial risk management objective and policies (Contd..)

40.	Capital management 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 

		  At the reporting date, the exposure to unlisted equity securities at fair value was 
H8.55 Crores . A decrease of 10% in the fair value will have an impact of approximately 
H0.85 Crores on OCI. An increase of 10% in the value of the securities would also 
impact OCI.

		  At the reporting date, the exposure to listed equity securities at fair value was 
H439.43 Crores. A decrease of 10% on the NSE market index could have an impact 
of approximately H43.90 Crores on OCI and H0.04 Crores on Profit and loss or equity 
attributable to the Company. An increase of 10% in the value of the listed securities 
would also impact OCI, profit and loss and equity.

	 Capital includes equity shares and other equity attributable to the equity holders of the 
Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure 
that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its 
business and maximise shareholder value. The Company manages its capital structure 
and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain 
or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to 
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. Company monitors 
capital using a gearing ratio, which is total debt divided by total capital plus other equity.

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

Borrowings-Buyer's credit  282.67  89.50 
Debt  282.67  89.50 
Share Capital  124.10  124.10 
Other equity  1,805.71  2,404.33 
Equity  1,929.81  2,528.43 
Debt/equity ratio 14.65% 3.54%

	 No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital 
during the years ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019.
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41. Details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined under MSMED 
Act, 2006 (as amended)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

Principal amount outstanding as on year end *  1.18  2.19 
Principal amount outstanding and overdue out of above  0.07  0.39 
Interest due on above 0.00  0.01 
Interest paid  -  - 
Payment made beyond appointment date during the year  9.44  6.32 
Interest due and payable for overdue payments made 
during the year  0.05  0.05 
Total Interest accrued and remaining unpaid  0.06  0.06 
Amount of further interest remaining due and payable 
in succeeding years  0.14  0.08 

	 * Mainly includes retention money 

42. Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 116 “Leases”

	 From April 1, 2019, Ind AS 116 - 'Leases' has become effective and the management of 
the Company has opted for the modified retrospective method along with the transition 
option to recognise Right-of-Use asset (ROU) at an amount equal to the lease liability. 
However, in the current year the management has assessed the impact of Ind AS 116 
and concluded them to be immaterial. Therefore no effects have been taken in the 
books of account.

43. Exceptional item

	 Exceptional item in year ended March 31, 2019 represents settlement of derivative 
claims against the Company disclosed as contingent liability as at March 31,2018. There 
are no more claims or liabilities on account of derivatives.
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44. Impact of lockdown due to Novel Corona Virus

	 The Company's factories which had to suspend operations temporarily from the March 
23, 2020, due to Government's directives relating to the Novel Corona Virus causing 
Covid 19, have resumed operations in phased manner at different plants from April 
29, 2020 onwards in accordance with the guidelines and norms prescribed by the 
Government authorities.

	 The Company has evaluated the impact of Covid 19 on the operations of the Company, 
inventories, investments, property, plant & equipment, current borrowings and trade 
payables. The management has considered the possible effects, if any, on the carrying 
amounts of these assets and liabilities up to the date of approval of these results. Based 
on the information from the internal and external sources; the management estimates 
to recover the carrying amount of these assets and currently does not anticipate any 
material impairment.

45. Previous year comparatives

	 Previous year's figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to 
correspond with the current year's classification / disclosure. The management of the 
Company has decided to present its financial statement in crores in current year as 
against the earlier presentation in lakhs.

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of  
Finolex Industries Limited

Report on the Audit of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying 
Consolidated Financial Statements of 
Finolex Industries Limited (“the Company”) 
and its Associate, which comprise the 
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 
31, 2020, and the Consolidated Statement 
of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated 
Statement of Changes in Equity and the 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 
for the year then ended, and notes to 
the Consolidated Financial Statements, 
including a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory 
information (hereinafter referred to as “the 
Consolidated  Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the aforesaid Consolidated  
Financial Statements give the information 
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”) in the manner so required and give 
a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, of the consolidated state of affairs of 
the Company and its Associate as at March 
31, 2020, of the consolidated profit and 
other comprehensive income, consolidated 
changes in equity and its consolidated cash 
flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance 
with the Standards on Auditing (“SAs”) 

specified under section 143(10) of the Act. 
Our responsibilities under those Standards 
are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements section 
of our report. We are independent of the 
Company and its Associate in accordance 
with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
together with the ethical requirements that 
are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements under the provisions 
of the Act and the Rules thereunder, 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of Ethics. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key Audit matters are those matters that, in 
our professional judgement, were of most 
significance in our audit of Consolidated 
Financial Statements of the current period. 
These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of Consolidated Financial 
Statement as a whole, and forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters. We have 
determined the matters described below to 
be key audit matters to be communicated in 
our report with respective to the Company.

a.	 Valuation of inventory

	 At the balance sheet date the value of 
inventory amounted to H 857.81 crores 
representing 43.19% of total equity and 
29.67 % of the total assets. Inventories 
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have been considered key audit matter 
due to the size of the balance, nature 
of the product, price volatility of raw 
material and finished product, process 
of manufacture and management 
judgements involved. Refer note 2.10 to 
the Consolidated Financial Statements 
for accounting policy for valuation of 
inventories.

	 Principle Audit Procedures  

	 i.	 We have evaluated the design of 
internal controls relating to the 
process of inventory recording and 
valuation. 

	 ii.	 We have reviewed the 
management’s inventory verification 
process, taken cognisance and 
assessed the trend of past 
inventory differences and received 
confirmations from the sub-
contractors for testing the assertion 
of existence due to the lockdown of 
factories at year end.

	 iii.	 We have conducted analysis of net 
realisable value (NRV) and cost of 
inventory on a sample basis in order 
to ascertain that inventory is carried 
at lower of NRV and Cost.

	 iv.	 We have evaluated on a test 
check basis the process followed 
by the management to identify 
non-moving, slow moving, 
obsolete inventory and we have 
evaluated on a test check basis the 
appropriateness of the estimates 
for impairment (if any) accounted 
for on such inventory.

	 v.	 We have conducted cut off 
procedures on a test check basis 
ensure completeness of inventory 
recording in the books of account.

	 vi.	 We have tested on a sample basis 
compliance of the cost formulae as 
specified in the accounting policy 
adopted by the company.    

b.	 Valuation of investments

	 At the balance sheet date the value of 
current and non-current investments 
amounted to H 660.69 crores 
representing 33.27% of total equity 
and 22.85% of the total assets. The net 
loss on fair valuation of investments 
amounted to H 623.88 crores in the total 
comprehensive income. Investments 
have been considered as key audit 
matter due to the size of the balance, 
various recognition and subsequent 
measurement principles. Refer note 
2.8, 2.9 and 2.19 to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements for its accounting 
policy.

	 Principle Audit Procedures  

	 i.	 We have obtained independent 
external confirmations of all material 
current investments in order to test 
the assertion of existence, accuracy, 
valuation and completeness.

	 ii.	 We have independently evaluated 
the fair values of listed and quoted 
non-current investments.

	 iii.	 We have evaluated the fair value of 
unquoted non-current investments 
adopted by the management.  

	 iv.	 We have evaluated the process 
of the management to identify 
impairment (if any) for the 
investments measured at amortised 
cost.

	 v.	 We have assessed the compliance 
of the recognition and subsequent 
measurement principles as 
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specified in the accounting policy 
adopted by the company.   

	 Other Information 

	 The Company’s Board of Directors is 
responsible for the other information. 
The other information comprises the 
Management Discussion and Analysis; 
Board of Directors’ Report along with its 
Annexures and Corporate Governance 
Report included in the Annual Report 
but does not include the Consolidated 
Financial Statements and our Auditors’ 
Report thereon. Our opinion on the 
Consolidated Financial Statements does 
not cover the other information and we 
do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon. In connection with 
our audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information 
is materially inconsistent with the 
Consolidated Financial Statements or 
our knowledge obtained in the audit 
or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If, based on the work we 
have performed, we conclude that there 
is a material misstatement of this other 
information; we are required to report 
that fact. We have nothing to report in 
this regard.

	 Responsibilities of Management and 
Those Charged with Governance for 
the Consolidated Financial Statements

	 The Company’s Board of Directors is 
responsible for the preparation and 
presentation of these Consolidated  
Financial Statements in term of the 
requirements of the Act that give a 
true and fair view of the consolidated 
financial position, consolidated 
financial performance (including 

other comprehensive income), the 
consolidated statement of changes 
in equity and consolidated cash flows 
of the Company and its Associate 
in accordance with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in 
India, including the Indian Accounting 
Standards  specified under section 133 
of the Act read with the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015, as amended. 

	 The respective Board of Directors of 
the Company and its Associate are 
responsible for maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and its Associate and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent; and the design, 
implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, 
that were operating effectively for 
ensuring accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant to 
the preparation and presentation of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements that 
give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error, which have been 
used for the purpose of preparation of 
the Consolidated Financial Statements 
by the Directors of the Company, as 
aforesaid.

	 In preparing the Consolidated  Financial 
Statements, the respective Board 
of Directors of the Company and 
its Associate are responsible for 
assessing the ability of the Company 
and its Associate to continue as a going 
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concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the Company and 
its Associate or to cease operations, or 
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

	 The respective Board of Directors of 
the Company and its Associate are 
responsible for overseeing the financial 
reporting process of the Company and 
its Associate.

	 Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements

	 Our objectives are to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the 
Consolidated Financial Statements 
as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will 
always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these Consolidated Financial 
Statements.

	 As part of an audit in accordance with 
SAs, we exercise professional judgment 
and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. 

	 We also:

	 •	 Identify and assess the risks 
of material misstatement of 
the Consolidated Financial 

Statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud 
is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control.

	 •	 Obtain an understanding of internal 
control relevant to the audit in order 
to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. 
Under section 143(3)(i) of the 
Act, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether 
the Company and its Associate has 
adequate internal financial controls 
system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls.

	 •	 Evaluate the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures 
made by management.

	 •	 Conclude on the appropriateness 
of management’s use of the 
going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the ability of 
the Company and its Associate 
to continue as a going concern. 
If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures 
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in the Consolidated Financial 
Statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based 
on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Company 
and its Associate to cease to 
continue as a going concern.

	 •	 Evaluate the overall presentation, 
structure and content of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements, 
including the disclosures, and 
whether the Consolidated 
Financial Statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.

	 •	 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit 
evidence regarding the financial 
information of the entities or 
business activities within the 
Company and its Associate 
to express an opinion on the 
Consolidated Financial Statements. 
We are responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the 
audit of the Financial Statements 
of such entities included in the 
Consolidated Financial Statements 
of which we are the independent 
auditors. For the other entities (if 
any) included in the Consolidated 
Financial Statements, which have 
been audited by other auditors, such 
other auditors remain responsible 
for the direction, supervision and 
performance of the audits carried 
out by them. We remain solely 
responsible for our audit opinion.

	 We communicate with those charged 
with governance of the Company 

and its Associate included in the 
Consolidated Financial Statements of 
which we are the independent auditors 
regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit. 

	 We also provide those charged with 
governance with a statement that we 
have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, 
and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards. 

	 From the matters communicated with 
those charged with governance, we 
determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements of 
the current period and are therefore the 
key audit matters. We describe these 
matters in our auditor’s report unless law 
or regulation precludes public disclosure 
about the matter or when, in extremely 
rare circumstances, we determine that a 
matter should not be communicated in our 
report because the adverse consequences 
of doing so would reasonably be expected 
to outweigh the public interest benefits of 
such communication.

	 Other Matters

	 The management of the Company has 
not consolidated an immaterial Associate 
which has not started operations in 
which it holds 49.99 % equity shares 
amounting to H 0.05 crores.

	 Our audit opinion is not modified in 
respect of this matter.
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Report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements

1.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the 
Act, we report that:

a)	 We have sought and obtained all the 
information and explanations which to 
the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of 
our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated 
Financial Statements.

b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account 
as required by law relating to preparation 
of the aforesaid Consolidated Financial 
Statements have been kept so far as it 
appears from our examination of those 
books.

c)	 The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and 
Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), the Consolidated Statement of 
Changes in Equity and the Consolidated 
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by 
this Report are in agreement with the 
relevant books of account maintained 
for the purpose of preparation of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements.

d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid 
Consolidated Financial Statements 
comply with the Indian Accounting 
Standards /Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, 
read with Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

e)	 On the basis of the written 
representations received from the 
directors of the Company and its 
Associate as on March 31, 2020 taken 
on record by the Board of Directors of 
the Company, none of the directors 
of the Company or its Associate, is 
disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from 
being appointed as a director in terms 
of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f)	 With respect to the adequacy of 
the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting of the Company 
and its Associate and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, refer to 
our separate Report in Annexure I.

g)	 As required by section 197 (16) of the 
Act; in our opinion and according to 
the information and explanations given 
to us, the remuneration paid during 
the current year by the Company to 
its directors is in accordance with the 
provisions of section 197 of the Act. The 
remuneration paid to any director by the 
Company is not in excess of the limit 
laid down under section 197 of the Act. 
The provisions of section 197 of the Act 
is not applicable to the Associate being 
a Private Company.

h)	 With respect to the other matters to 
be included in the Auditor’s Report 
in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014, in our opinion and to the best of 
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our information and according to the 
explanations given to us:

	 (i)	 The Consolidated Financial 
Statements disclose the impact of 
pending litigations as at March 31, 
2020 on the consolidated financial 
position of the Company and its 
Associate– Refer Note 37.2 to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements.

	 (ii)	 The Company and its Associate did 
not have any material foreseeable 
losses on long-term contracts 
including derivative contracts as at 
March 31, 2020.

	 (iii)	 There has been no delay in 
transferring amounts, required 

to be transferred, to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by 
the Company and its Associate 
during the year ended March 31, 
2020.

For M/s P G Bhagwat
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 101118W

Abhijeet Bhagwat

Partner
Membership Number: 136835

UDIN: 20136835AAAABW4072

Pune 
June 23, 2020
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Annexure I to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under the heading, “Report on Other legal and Regulatory 
Requirements” of our report on even date:

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statementsunder 
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial 
controls with reference to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements of Finolex Industries 
Limited (“the Company”) and its Associate 
as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with 
our audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements of the Company and its 
Associate for the year ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for 
Internal Financial Controls

The Company and its Associate Company’s 
management is responsible for establishing 
and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial 
reporting criteria established by the 
Company and its Associate Company 
considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal financial controls 
over financial reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls that 
were operating effectively for ensuring 
the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to company’s 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, 
as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion 
on the Company and its Associate’s 
internal financial controls with reference 
to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal financial controls 
over financial reporting (the “Guidance 
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, 
to the extent applicable to an audit of 
internal financial controls, both issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. Those Standards and the Guidance 
Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial 
controls with reference to Consolidated 
Financial Statements was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures 
to obtain audit evidence about the internal 
financial controls with reference to 
Consolidated Financial Statements and 
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls with reference to 
Consolidated Financial Statements included 
obtaining an understanding of internal 
financial with reference to Consolidated 
Financial Statements, assessing the risk 
that a material weakness exists, and testing 
and evaluating the design and operating 
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effectiveness of internal control based on 
the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including 
the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 
the Company and its Associate’s internal 
financial controls with reference to 
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over 
financial reporting is a process designed 
to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of financial reporting and 
the preparation of Consolidated Financial 
Statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company’s internal 
financial control over financial reporting 
includes those policies and procedures that 
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records 
that, in reasonable detail, accurately 
and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; 
(2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to 
permit preparation of Consolidated Financial 
Statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company 
are being made only in accordance with 
authorisations of management and directors 
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely 
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, 
or disposition of the company’s assets 
that could have a material effect on the 
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur 
and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting to future periods are subject 
to the risk that the internal financial control over 
financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company and its Associate 
has, in all material respects, adequate 
internal financial controls with reference to 
Consolidated Financials Statements and 
such internal financial controls with reference 
to Consolidated Financial Statements were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, 
based on the internal control over financial 
reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal financial controls over 
financial reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India.

For M/s P G Bhagwat
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 101118W

Abhijeet Bhagwat

Partner
Membership Number: 136835

UDIN: 20136835AAAABW4072

Pune 
June 23, 2020
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Consolidated Balance Sheet 
as at March 31, 2020

As per our report of even date
For M/s. P.G. Bhagwat		  For FINOLEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Chartered Accountants
FRN 101118W

Abhijeet Bhagwat		  Prakash P. Chhabria	 Ritu P. Chhabria	 DIN: 00062144
Partner		  Executive Chairman 	 Saurabh S. Dhanorkar	  DIN: 00011322
M.No. 136835 		  DIN: 00016017 	 Kanchan U. Chitale	 DIN: 00007267
			   Anami N. Roy	 DIN: 01361110
	 Anil V. Whabi	 Sanjay S. Math	 Bhumika Batra	 DIN: 03502004
	 Director - Finance & CFO	 Managing Director	 Pradeep R. Rathi	 DIN: 00018577
	 DIN: 00142052	 DIN: 01874086	 Deepak R. Parikh	 DIN: 06504537

Place: Pune	 Place: Pune 
Date: June 23, 2020 	 Date: June 23, 2020 

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note No  March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

A ASSETS
1 Non-current assets

(a)	 Property, plant and equipment 3.1  1,015.29  948.93 
(b)	 Capital work-in-progress 3.1  7.28  90.25 
(c)	 Other Intangible assets 3.2  1.60  1.96 
(d)	 Investments accounted using Equity method 4.1  83.52  66.41 
(e)	 Financial assets
	 i)	 Investments 4  448.04  1,069.44 
	 ii)	 Loans 5  2.68  2.90 
	 iii)	 Other financial assets 6  8.66  12.47 

(f)	 Tax assets (Net) 24  42.34  33.05 
(g)	 Other non-current assets 7  57.63  54.85 
Total non-current assets  1,667.04  2,280.26 

2 Current assets
(a)	 Inventories 8  857.81  620.47 
(b)	 Financial assets
	 i)	 Investments 9  129.13  226.09 
	 ii)	 Trade receivables 10  73.17  74.31 
	 iii)	 Cash and cash equivalents 11.1  57.29  6.52 
	 iv)	 Bank balances other than (iii) above 11.2  35.92  21.52 
	 v)	 Loans 12  0.90  0.57 
	 vi)	 Other financial assets 13  16.56  60.54 
(c)	 Other current assets 14  53.52  41.37 
Total current assets  1,224.30  1,051.39 
Total assets  2,891.34  3,331.65 

B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 EQUITY

(a)	 Equity share capital 15  124.10  124.10 
(b)	 Other equity 16  1,861.88  2,452.10 
Total equity  1,985.98  2,576.20 
LIABILITIES

2 Non-current liabilities
(a)	 Financial liabilities
	 i)	 Other financial liabilities 17  0.14  0.34 
(b)	 Provisions 18.1  26.72  20.58 
(c)	 Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 24  135.68  162.47 
(d)	 Government grants 19  51.44  57.67 
Total non-current liabilities  213.98  241.06 

3 Current liabilities
(a)	 Financial liabilities
	 i)	 Borrowings 20  282.67  89.50 
	 ii) 	 Trade payables 21
		  -	 total outstanding dues of Micro, Small & Medium 

Enterprises (Refer Note 41)
 1.18  2.19 

		  -	 total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro 
Enterprises & Small Enterprises

 232.22  281.61 

	 iii)	 Other financial liabilities 22  130.70  89.40 

(b)	 Other current liabilities 23  35.36  43.05 
(c)	 Provisions 18.2  3.01  2.40 
(d)	 Government grants 19  6.24  6.24 
Total current liabilities  691.38  514.39 
Total liabilities  905.36  755.45 
Total equity and liabilities  2,891.34  3,331.65 

Notes to accounts form an integral part of the financial statements
Corporate information & Significant accounting policies 1 to 2
Other notes 3 to 46
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(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note No  March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

Income
I Revenue from Operations 25  2,985.98  3,091.32 
II Other income 26  29.91  40.41 
III Total Income (I+II)  3,015.89  3,131.73 
IV Expenses

Cost of materials and components consumed 27  2,037.71  1,981.15 
Purchase of stock-in-trade  13.84  11.08 
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and 
stock in trade

28  (108.88)  (71.33)

Employee benefits expenses 29  145.55  134.43 
Finance costs 30  11.91  12.27 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 31  73.81  70.08 
Other expenses 32  449.69  431.69 
Total expenses (IV)  2,623.63  2,569.37 

V Profit before exceptional items and tax (III-IV)  392.26  562.36 
VI Exceptional items 44  -    27.90 
VII Profit before share of profit/(loss) of an associate and tax 

(V-VI)
 392.26  534.46 

VIII Share of profit/(loss) of an associate before tax  25.56  14.01 
IX Profit before tax including share of associate (VII+VIII)  417.82  548.47 
X Tax expense

Current tax 24  111.42  180.57 
(Excess) / short provision of earlier year(s)  (0.21)  (2.09)
Deferred tax 24  (26.04)  2.74 
Total tax expense (X)  85.17  181.22 

XI Profit for the period  (IX-X)  332.65  367.25 
XII Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
A Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Re-measurement of defined benefit plans gain / (loss)  (3.38)  (4.72)
Income tax effect 24  0.85  1.65 

A(i) Re-measurement of defined benefit plans net off income tax  (2.53)  (3.07)
Equity instruments through OCI gain / (loss)  (621.15)  (412.60)
Income tax effect 24  0.08  (20.67)

A(ii) Equity instruments through OCI net off income tax  (621.07)  (433.27)
A(iii) Share of other comprehensive income of associate 

accounted for using the equity method (net of tax)
 0.22  0.01 

Total Other Comprehensive Income [A(i)+A(ii)+A(iii)]  (623.38)  (436.33)
XIII Total Comprehensive Income for the period (XI+XII)  (290.73)  (69.08)
XIV Earnings per equity share having nominal value per share 

of J10
34

Basic (H)  26.81  29.59 
Diluted (H)  26.81  29.59 

Notes to accounts form an integral part of the financial statements
Corporate information & Significant accounting policies 1 to 2
Other notes 3 to 46   

Statement of Consolidated Profit and Loss 
for the year ended March 31, 2020

As per our report of even date
For M/s. P.G. Bhagwat		  For FINOLEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Chartered Accountants
FRN 101118W

Abhijeet Bhagwat		  Prakash P. Chhabria	 Ritu P. Chhabria	 DIN: 00062144
Partner		  Executive Chairman 	 Saurabh S. Dhanorkar	 DIN: 00011322
M.No. 136835 		  DIN: 00016017 	 Kanchan U. Chitale	 DIN: 00007267
			   Anami N. Roy	 DIN: 01361110
	 Anil V. Whabi	 Sanjay S. Math	 Bhumika Batra	 DIN: 03502004
	 Director - Finance & CFO	 Managing Director	 Pradeep R. Rathi	 DIN: 00018577
	 DIN: 00142052	 DIN: 01874086	 Deepak R. Parikh	 DIN: 06504537

Place: Pune	 Place: Pune 
Date: June 23, 2020 	 Date: June 23, 2020 
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Statement of Consolidated Cash Flow 
for the year ended  March 31, 2020

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Sr 
No

Particulars  March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

I Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax  417.82  548.47 
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net 
cash flows:
Share of (Profit)/Loss from associate before tax  (25.56)  (14.01)
Depreciation and amortisation expense  73.81  70.08 
Balances written off / (written back)  (1.57)  (3.18)
Profit on sale of investments (net)  (8.92)  (7.16)
(Gain)/loss on fair valuation of investment  2.73  (8.30)
(Profit)/loss on sale of assets (net)  0.67  0.05 
Dividend income  (9.99)  (8.89)
Finance income on investing activities  (4.87)  (7.78)
Exchange fluctuation (gain)/ loss - net  23.85  (0.75)
Finance costs  10.05  7.47 
Operating profit before working capital changes  478.01  576.00 
Change in operating assets and liabilities 
(Increase) / decrease in inventories  (237.35)  (8.92)
(Increase) / decrease in trade receivables  1.14  (31.17)
(Increase) / decrease in other bank balances  (14.40)  (4.91)
(Increase) / decrease in loans  (0.18)  (3.25)
(Increase) / decrease in other financial assets  47.87  (9.01)
(Increase) / decrease in other current assets  (12.20)  (2.26)
Increase / (decrease) in trade payables  (74.25)  34.08 
Increase / (decrease) in provisions  3.37  3.40 
Increase / (decrease) in government grants  (6.25)  (6.83)
Increase / (decrease) in other financial liabilities  43.74  21.95 
Increase / (decrease) in other current liabilities  (19.62)  (1.14)
Cash generated from working capital changes  (268.12)  (8.06)
Less - Income tax paid  (112.84)  (176.97)
Net cash inflow from operating activities  97.06  390.97 

II Cashflow from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment  1.03  0.05 
Payment for purchase of property, plant and equipment  (61.29)  (101.98)
Proceeds from sale of investments  9.18  8.47 
Payment for purchase of investments  94.24  (152.20)
Dividend income  10.92  10.05 
Finance income  4.87  7.78 
Net cashflow from investing activities  58.94  (227.84)
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for the year ended  March 31, 2020

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Sr 
No

Particulars  March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

III Cashflow from financing activities
Finance costs  (11.12)  (7.07)
Proceeds from borrowings  193.17  (11.21)
Dividend paid to Company's shareholders (including 
DDT)

 (287.28)  (145.15)

Net cashflow from financing activities  (105.23)  (163.43)
IV Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash 

equivalents at the end of the year (I+II+III)
 50.77  (0.30)

V Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 
financial year

 6.52  6.82 

VI Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the 
financial year (IV+V) (Refer note 11.1)

 57.29  6.52 

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

Balances with banks (current accounts)  36.99  6.22 
Deposits with bank  20.00  -   
Cash on hand  0.29  0.30 
Total Cash and cash equivalents  57.29  6.52 

Components of cash and cash equivalents

The Company reports cashflows from activities using the indirect method as per Ind AS 7 
“Statement of Cash Flows".

As per our report of even date

For M/s. P.G. Bhagwat		  For FINOLEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Chartered Accountants

FRN 101118W

Abhijeet Bhagwat		  Prakash P. Chhabria	 Ritu P. Chhabria	 DIN: 00062144

Partner		  Executive Chairman 	 Saurabh S. Dhanorkar	DIN: 00011322

M.No. 136835 		  DIN: 00016017 	 Kanchan U. Chitale	 DIN: 00007267

			   Anami N. Roy	 DIN: 01361110

	 Anil V. Whabi	 Sanjay S. Math	 Bhumika Batra	 DIN: 03502004

	 Director - Finance & CFO	 Managing Director	 Pradeep R. Rathi	 DIN: 00018577

	 DIN: 00142052	 DIN: 01874086	 Deepak R. Parikh	 DIN: 06504537

Place: Pune	 Place: Pune 

Date: June 23, 2020	 Date: June 23, 2020
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Statement of Consolidated changes in Equity 
for the year ended  March 31, 2020

A	 Other equity
	 For the year ended March 31, 2020

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Reserves and Surplus Items of OCI *  Total 

Securities 
premium 

Retained 
earnings

General 
reserve

Capital 
Redemption 

Reserve

Equity 
instruments 
through OCI

As at 1 April 2019  151.27  1,457.24  394.50  25.18  423.91 2,452.10 

Profit for the period  -    332.65  -    -    -    332.65 

Other Comprehensive Income 
for the year

Remeasurement gains/ (losses) 
on defined benefit plan (Refer 
Note 35)  -    (2.53)  -    -    -    (2.53)

Gains/ (losses) on equity 
instruments designated at 
FVTOCI#  -    -    -    -    (621.07)  (621.07)

Add: Share in OCI of associate  -    0.22  -    -    -    0.22 

Less: share in lease 
adjustment  -    (0.09)  -    -    -    (0.09)

Total comprehensive income 151.27 1,787.49  394.50  25.18  (197.16) 2,161.28 

-Final dividend paid (refer 
Note 16)  -    (124.10)  -    -    -    (124.10)

-Tax on above dividend includes 
share in DDT of associate 
(refer Note 16)  -    (25.70)  -    -    -    (25.70)

-Interim dividend paid (refer 
Note 16)  -    (124.10)  -    -    -    (124.10)

-Tax on above dividend (refer 
Note 16)  (25.51)  (25.51)

As at 31 March 2020  151.27  1,488.09  394.50  25.18  (197.16) 1,861.88 
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	 For the year ended March 31, 2019

Statement of Consolidated changes in Equity 
for the year ended  March 31, 2020

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Reserves and Surplus Items of OCI *  Total 

Securities 
premium 

Retained 
earnings

General 
reserve

Capital 
Redemption 

Reserve

Equity 
instruments 
through OCI

As at 1 April 2018  151.27 1,242.91  394.50  25.18  857.18  2,671.03 
Profit for the period  -   367.25  -    -    -    367.25 
Other comprehensive income 
for the year
Remeasurement gains /(losses) 
on defined benefit plan  -    (3.07)  -    -    -    (3.07)
Gains (losses) on equity 
instruments designated at FVTOCI#  -    -    -    -    (433.27)  (433.27)
Add: Share in OCI of associate  0.01  0.01 
Total comprehensive income  151.27  1,607.09  394.50  25.18  423.91  2,601.95 
Dividends (Refer Note 16)  -    (124.10)  -    -    -    (124.10)
Dividend distribution tax (Refer 
Note 16)  -    (25.75)  -    -    -    (25.75)
As at 31 March 2019  151.27 1,457.24  394.50  25.18  423.91 2,452.10 

* Other comprehensive income
# Fair value through other comprehensive income

Notes to financial statements form an integral part of financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For M/s. P.G. Bhagwat		  For FINOLEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Chartered Accountants

FRN 101118W

Abhijeet Bhagwat		  Prakash P. Chhabria	 Ritu P. Chhabria	 DIN: 00062144

Partner		  Executive Chairman 	 Saurabh S. Dhanorkar	 DIN: 00011322

M.No. 136835 		  DIN: 00016017 	 Kanchan U. Chitale	 DIN: 00007267

			   Anami N. Roy	 DIN: 01361110

	 Anil V. Whabi	 Sanjay S. Math	 Bhumika Batra	 DIN: 03502004

	 Director - Finance & CFO	 Managing Director	 Pradeep R. Rathi	 DIN: 00018577

	 DIN: 00142052	 DIN: 01874086	 Deepak R. Parikh	 DIN: 06504537

Place: Pune	 Place: Pune 

Date: June 23, 2020	 Date: June 23, 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
1.	 Corporate Information

	 The consolidated financial statements 
comprise financial statements of Finolex 
Industries Limited (‘the Company’) and 
its   Associate for the year ended March 
31, 2020. 

	 The Company is incorporated and 
domiciled in India and its equity shares 
are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange and 
National Stock Exchange. Its registered 
office is situated at Gat No.399, Village 
Urse, Taluka Maval, District Pune, 
India. The company is engaged in the 
business of manufacturing PVC pipes & 
fittings and PVC resin.

	 Its Associate, Finolex Plasson Industries 
Private Limited is also a company 
incorporated and domiciled in India. The 
Company is engaged in manufacturing 
of micro irrigation systems, fittings, 
accessories and range of irrigation 
components and offers a wide range of 
products suitable for different sectors of 
agricultural activity.

2.	 Summary of significant accounting 
policies

2.1	Basis of Preparation

	 The financial statements of the 
Company and its Associate have been 
prepared in accordance with Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified 
under section 133 of the Companies Act, 
2013 (the Act) read with the Companies 
Indian Accounting Standards Rules, 
2015 as amended and other relevant 
provisions of the Act.

	 The financial statements were 
approved and were authorized for issue 

in accordance with a resolution of the 
Board of Directors on June 23, 2020.

2.2	Basis of measurement

	 The financial statements have been 
prepared on accrual basis and under 
historical cost convention, except for 
certain financial assets and financial 
liabilities that have been measured at 
fair value.

2.3	Functional and presentation currency

	 The financial statements are presented 
in Indian rupees (H) which is the 
Company’s functional currency. All 
financial information are rounded to the 
nearest crores (H 00,00,000), unless 
otherwise indicated.

2.4	New and amended standards 
adopted by the company

	 The company has applied the following 
standards and amendments for the 
first time for their reporting period 
commencing from 1st April 2019: Ind 
AS 116, Leases.

2.5	Current or non-current classification

	 The Company presents assets and 
liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on 
current/non - current classification.

	 An asset is current when it is:

	 a.	 Expected to be realised or intended 
to be sold or consumed in normal 
operating cycle

	 b.	 Held primarily for the purpose of 
trading

	 c.	 Expected to be realised within 
twelve months after the reporting 
period, or
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	 d.	 Cash or cash equivalents unless 
restricted from being exchanged or 
used to settle a liability for at least 
twelve months after the reporting 
period.

	 All other assets are classified as non - 
current.

	 A liability is current when it is:

	 a.	 Expected to be settled in normal 
operating cycle

	 b.	 Held primarily for the purpose of 
trading

	 c.	 Due to be settled within twelve 
months after the reporting period, or

	 d.	 There is no unconditional right to 
defer the settlement of the liability 
for at least twelve months after the 
reporting period

	 All other liabilities are treated as non - 
current.

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are 
classified as non - current assets and 
liabilities.

	 The operating cycle is the time between 
the acquisition of assets for processing 
and their realisation in cash and cash 
equivalents. The Company has identified 
twelve months as its operating cycle.

2.6	Significant accounting judgements, 
estimates and assumptions

	 The preparation of financial statements 
in conformity with Ind AS requires the 
management to make judgments, 
estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of revenue, 
expenses, current assets, non-

current assets, current liabilities, non-
current liabilities and disclosure of 
the contingent liabilities at the end of 
each reporting period. Although these 
estimates are based on management’s 
best knowledge of current events 
and actions, uncertainty about these 
assumptions and estimates could result 
in the outcomes requiring a material 
adjustment to the carrying value of 
assets or liabilities in future periods. 
These estimates are reviewed regularly 
and any change in estimates are 
adjusted prospectively. 

	 In the process of applying the Company’s 
accounting policies, management 
has made the following estimates, 
assumptions and judgements, which 
have significant effect on the amounts 
recognized in the financial statements:

	 - Defined benefit plan

	 The cost of defined benefit gratuity plan 
and present value of such obligation are 
determined using actuarial valuation. 
An actuarial valuation involves making 
various assumptions that may differ 
from actual developments in the future. 
These include the determination of the 
discount rate, future salary increases, 
mortality rates and attrition rate. Due to 
the long-term nature of the plan, such 
estimates are subject to significant 
uncertainty. All assumption are 
reviewed at each reporting date.

	 -Deferred tax asset:

	 The recognition of deferred tax assets 
requires assessment of whether it is 
probable that sufficient future taxable 
profit will be available against which 
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deferred tax asset can be utilized. The 
Company reviews at each balance sheet 
date the carrying amount of deferred 
tax assets.

	 -Property, Plant and Equipment & 
Intangible Assets:

	 The determination of depreciation and 
amortization charge depends on the 
useful lives for which judgements and 
estimations are required. The residual 
values, useful lives, and method of 
depreciation of property, plant and 
equipment and intangible assets are 
reviewed at each financial year end and 
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

	 -Claims, Provisions and Contingent 
Liabilities:

	 The Company has ongoing litigations 
with various regulatory authorities and 
third parties. Where an outflow of funds 
is believed to be probable and a reliable 
estimate of the outcome of the dispute 
can be made based on management’s 
assessment of specific circumstances 
of each dispute and relevant external 
advice, management provides for its 
best estimate of the liability. Such 
accruals are by nature complex and 
can take number of years to resolve 
and can involve estimation uncertainty. 
Information about such litigations 
is provided in notes to the financial 
statements.

	 -Fair Value Measurement of Financial 
Instruments:

	 Some of the Company’s assets and 
liabilities are measured at fair value 
for financial reporting purposes. In 

estimating the fair value of an asset or 
a liability, the Company uses market-
observable data to the extent it is 
available. Where Level 1 inputs i.e. 
market-observable inputs are not 
available, the Company engages third 
party valuers, where required, to 
perform the valuation. 

	 -Impairment of financial assets:

	 The impairment provisions for financial 
assets are based on assumptions about 
risk of default and expected cash loss 
rates. The Company uses judgement 
in making these assumptions and 
selecting the inputs to the impairment 
calculation, based on Company’s past 
history, existing market conditions as 
well as forward-looking estimates at the 
end of each reporting period.

2.7	Cash and cash equivalents

	 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash 
on hand, balances with banks and short-
term deposits with a maturity of three 
months or less, which are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value.

	 Cash equivalents are short term, highly 
liquid investments that are readily 
convertible into known amounts of cash 
and are subject to an insignificant risk of 
changes in value.

2.8	Investment in Associate

	 An associate is an entity over which 
the Company has significant influence. 
Significant influence is the power to 
participate in the financial and operating 
policy decisions of the investee, but is 
not control or joint control over those 
policies.
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	 The considerations made in determining 
whether significant influence are similar 
to those necessary to determine control 
over the subsidiaries.

	 The Company’s investments in its 
Associate are accounted for using 
the equity method. Under the equity 
method, the investment in an Associate 
is initially recognised at cost. The 
carrying amount of the investment is 
adjusted to recognise changes in the 
Company’s share of net assets of the 
Associate, since the acquisition date. 
Goodwill relating to the Associate is 
included in the carrying amount of 
the investment and is not tested for 
impairment individually.

	 The statement of profit and loss reflects 
the Company’s share of the results of 
operations of the Associate. Any change 
in OCI of those investees is presented 
as part of the Company’s OCI. In 
addition, when there has been a change 
recognised directly in the equity of the 
associate, the Company recognises 
its share of any changes, when 
applicable, in the statement of changes 
in equity. Unrealised gains and losses 
resulting from transactions between 
the Company and the associate are 
eliminated to the extent of the interest 
in the associate.

	 If an entity’s share of losses of an 
Associate equals or exceeds its interest 
in the associate (which includes any 
long term interest that, in substance, 
form part of the Company’s net 
investment in the Associate), the entity 
discontinues recognising its share 
of further losses. Additional losses 

are recognised only to the extent 
that the Company has incurred legal 
or constructive obligations or made 
payments on behalf of the associate. 
If the Associate subsequently reports 
profits, the entity resumes recognising 
its share of those profits only after its 
share of the profits equals the share of 
losses not recognised.

	 The aggregate of the Company’s share 
of profit or loss of an Associate is shown 
on the face of the statement of profit 
and loss.

	 The financial statements of the 
Associate are prepared for the same 
reporting period as the Company. When 
necessary, adjustments are made to 
bring the accounting policies in line with 
those of the Company.

	 After application of the equity method, 
the Company  determines whether it is 
necessary to recognise an impairment 
loss on its investment in its Associate. 
At each reporting date, the Company 
determines whether there is objective 
evidence that the investment in the 
Associate is impaired. If there is such 
evidence, the Company calculates the 
amount of impairment as the difference 
between the recoverable amount of the 
associate and its carrying value, and 
then recognises the loss as ‘Share of 
profit of an associate’ in the statement 
of profit or loss.

	 Upon loss of significant influence over 
the associate, the Company measures 
and recognises any retained investment 
at its fair value. Any difference between 
the carrying amount of the associate 
upon loss of significant influence 
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and the fair value of the retained 
investment and proceeds from disposal 
is recognised in profit or loss.

2.9	Fair value measurement                                                                                                               

	 The Company measures financial 
instruments, such as non-current and 
current investments, at fair value, at 
each balance sheet date. 

	 Fair value is the amount for which an 
asset could be exchanged, or a liability 
settled, between knowledgeable, willing 
parties in an arm’s length transaction. 
Quoted market prices, when available, 
are used as the measure of fair value. In 
cases where quoted market prices are 
not available, fair values are determined 
using present value estimates or other 
valuation techniques which maximize 
the use of relevant observable inputs 
and minimize the use of unobservable 
inputs, for example, the present value 
of estimated expected future cash flows 
using discount rates commensurate with 
the risks involved. Fair value estimation 
techniques normally incorporate 
assumptions that market participants 
would use in their estimates of values, 
future revenues, and future expenses, 
including assumptions about interest 
rates, default, prepayment and volatility. 
Because assumptions are inherently 
subjective in nature, the estimated 
fair values cannot be substantiated 
by comparison to independent 
market quotes and, in many cases, 
the estimated fair values would not 
necessarily be realised in an immediate 
sale or settlement of the instrument. 

	 For cash and other liquid assets, the 
fair value is assumed to approximate to 

book value, given the short-term nature 
of these instruments. For those items 
with a stated maturity exceeding twelve 
months, fair value is calculated using a 
discounted cash flow methodology. 

	 The financial instruments carried at fair 
value are categorized under the three 
levels of the Ind AS fair value hierarchy 
as follows: 

	 Level 1: Quoted market prices 
(unadjusted) in active markets for 
identical assets or liabilities that the 
Company has the ability to access. This 
level of the fair value hierarchy provides 
the most reliable evidence of fair value 
and is used to measure fair value 
whenever available. 

	 Level 2: Inputs other than quoted 
prices included within level 1 that are 
observable for the asset or liability, 
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly 
(i.e. derived from prices). 

	 Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability 
that are not based on observable market 
data (unobservable inputs). These inputs 
reflect the Company’s own assumptions 
about the assumptions that market 
participants would use in pricing the 
asset or liability (including assumptions 
about risk). These inputs are developed 
based on the best information available 
in the circumstances, which include the 
Company’s own data. The Company’s 
own data used to develop unobservable 
inputs is adjusted if information 
indicates that market participants would 
use different assumptions.

	 For assets and liabilities that are 
recognised in the financial statements 
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at fair value on a recurring basis, 
the Company determines whether 
transfers have occurred between 
levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing 
categorisation (based on the lowest 
level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement as a whole) at the 
end of each reporting period. 

	 For the purpose of fair value disclosures, 
the Company has determined classes 
of assets and liabilities on the basis of 
the nature, characteristics and risks of 
the asset or liability and the level of the 
fair value hierarchy as explained above. 
This note summaries accounting policy 
for fair value. Other fair value related 
disclosures are given in the relevant 
notes (refer note 38 for detailed 
disclosures.)

2.10 Inventories

	 Inventories are valued at the lower of 
cost and net realisable value. Costs 
incurred in bringing each product to 
its present location and condition are 
accounted for, as follows:

	 •	 Raw materials Purchase cost on a 
moving weighted average basis

	 •	 Finished goods and work in 
progress	 Cost of direct materials 
and labour and a proportion of 
manufacturing overheads based 
on normal operating capacity but 
excluding borrowing costs

	 Net realisable value is the estimated 
selling price in the ordinary course 
of business, less estimated costs of 
completion and the estimated costs to 
sell.

2.11 Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

	 Items of property, plant and equipment 
are measured at cost of acquisition 
or construction less accumulated 
depreciation and/or accumulated 
impairment loss, if any. The cost of an 
item of property, plant and equipment 
comprises its purchase price, including 
import duties, and other non-refundable 
taxes or levies and any directly 
attributable cost of bringing the asset 
to its working condition for its intended 
use; any trade discounts and rebates 
are deducted in arriving at the purchase 
price. 

	 Borrowing costs such as interest 
expenses directly attributable to the 
construction of a qualifying asset are 
capitalised as part of the cost. 

	 Parts of an item of property, plant and 
equipment having different useful lives, 
(if any) are accounted for as separate 
items (major components) of property, 
plant and equipment.

	 Property, plant and equipment under 
construction are disclosed as capital 
work-in-progress.

	 Advances paid towards the acquisition 
of property, plant and equipment 
outstanding at each reporting date are 
disclosed under “Other non-current 
assets”.

	 Subsequent costs

	 The cost of replacing a part of an item 
of property, plant and equipment is 
recognised in the carrying amount of 
the item if it is probable that the future 
economic benefits embodied within 
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the part will flow to the Company, 
and its cost can be measured reliably. 
The carrying amount of the replaced 
part is derecognized. The costs of the 
day-to-day servicing of property, plant 
and equipment are recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss as incurred.

	 Disposal

	 An item of property, plant and equipment 
is derecognized upon disposal or when 
no future benefits are expected from its 
use. Gains and losses on disposal of an 
item of property, plant and equipment 
are determined by comparing the 
proceeds from disposal with the 
carrying amount of property, plant and 
equipment, and are recognised net 
within other income/expenses in the 
statement of profit and loss. 

	 Depreciation

	 Depreciation is calculated over the 
depreciable amount, which is the 
cost of an asset, or other amount 
substituted for cost, less its residual 
value. Depreciation is recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss generally 
on a straight-line basis over the 
estimated useful lives of each part of an 
item of property, plant and equipment 
as prescribed in Schedule II of the Act, 
which are as follows:

Asset Useful life (in 
years)

Plant and machinery 3 to 25
Building 60
Factory Building 30
Furniture and fixtures 10
Office equipment’s 5
Vehicles 8

	 In the case of Captive Power Plant the 
management, based on a technical 
evaluation, management has estimated 
the life of asset to be 25 years which 
is lower than the life prescribed in 
Schedule – II. Also, in case of moulds 
and water works, management 
estimated a lower life than prescribed 
in Schedule – II based on technical 
evaluation.

	 The management undertakes a review 
of the residual values, useful lives and 
methods of depreciation of property, 
plant and equipment at the end of each 
reporting period and adjustments are 
made whenever necessary. 

2.12 Intangible assets and amortization

	 Recognition and measurement

	 Intangible assets are recognised when 
the asset is identifiable, is within the 
control of the Company, it is probable 
that the future economic benefits that 
are attributable to the asset will flow to 
the Company and cost of the asset can 
be reliably measured. 

	 Intangible assets acquired by the 
Company that have finite useful lives 
are measured at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and any accumulated 
impairment losses. 

	 Research and development expenditure 
on new products:

	 Expenditure on research is expensed 
under respective heads of account 
in the period in which it is incurred. 
Development expenditure on new 
products is capitalised as intangible 
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asset, if all of the following can be 
demonstrated:

	 a)	 the technical feasibility of completing 
the intangible asset so that it will be 
available for use or sale;

	 b)	 the Company has intention to 
complete the intangible asset and 
use or sell it;

	 c)	  the Company has ability to use or 
sell the intangible asset;

	 d)	 the manner in which the probable 
future economic benefits will be 
generated including the existence 
of a market for output of the 
intangible asset or intangible asset 
itself or if it is to be used internally, 
the usefulness of intangible assets;

	 e)	 the availability of adequate technical, 
financial and other resources to 
complete the development and to 
use or sell the intangible asset; and

	 f)	 the Company has ability to 
reliably measure the expenditure 
attributable to the intangible asset 
during its development.

	 Development expenditure that does 
not meet the above criteria is expensed 
in the period in which it is incurred. 
Intangible assets not ready for the 
intended use on the date of the Balance 
Sheet are disclosed as Intangible assets 
under development.

	 Subsequent measurement

	 Subsequent expenditure is capitalised 
only when it increases the future 
economic benefits embodied in the 
specific asset to which it relates.

	 Amortisation

	 Amortisation is calculated over the cost of 
the asset, or other amount substituted for 
cost, less its residual value. Amortisation 
is recognised in statement of profit 
and loss on a straight-line basis over a 
period of 6 years from the date that they 
are available for use, since this most 
closely reflects the expected pattern of 
consumption of the future economic 
benefits embodied in the asset.

	 Gains or losses arising from de-
recognition of an intangible asset are 
measured as the difference between 
the net disposal proceeds and the 
carrying amount of the asset and are 
recognised in the statement of profit or 
loss when the asset is derecognised. 

2.13 Revenue recognition 

	 Revenue from contracts with 
customers is recognised when control 
of the goods or services are transferred 
to the customer based on delivery 
terms i.e. when the customer is able 
to direct the use of the transferred 
goods or rendering of services and 
obtains substantially all of the remaining 
benefits at an amount that reflects the 
consideration entitled in exchange for 
those goods or services. The Company 
is generally the principal as it typically 
controls the goods or services before 
transferring them to the customer.

	 The specific recognition criteria 
described below must also be met 
before revenue is recognised.

	 Sale of goods

	 Revenue from sale of goods is 
recognised when the significant control 
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of the goods have passed to the buyer, 
usually when goods are dispatched 
or on delivery, as per the terms of 
sale. Revenue from the sale of goods 
is measured at the fair value of the 
consideration received or receivable, 
net of returns and allowances, trade 
discounts and volume rebates.

	 Interest Income

	 For all financial instruments measured 
at amortised cost, interest income is 
recorded using the effective interest 
rate (EIR). The EIR is the rate that exactly 
discounts the estimated future cash 
receipts over the expected life of the 
financial instrument or a shorter period, 
where appropriate, to the net carrying 
amount of the financial asset. Interest 
income is included in finance income in 
the statement of profit or loss.

	 The company presents interest income 
on financial assets at Fair Value through 
Profit & Loss separately from fair value 
changes on financials assets. 

	 Dividends

	 Revenue is recognised when the 
Company’s right to receive the payment 
is established, which is generally when 
shareholders approve the dividend.

2.14 Finance costs

	 Finance costs are interest and other 
costs that an entity incurs in connection 
with the borrowing of funds. It also 
includes exchange differences in relation 
to the foreign currency borrowings to 
the extent those are regarded as an 
adjustment to the borrowing costs.

	 All other borrowing costs are expensed 
in the period in which they are incurred.

2.15 Foreign currency transactions:

	 Items included in the financial 
statements are measured using the 
currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the Company 
operates (functional currency). The 
financial statements are presented 
in INR, which is also the company’s 
functional and presentation currency. 

	 Transactions and balances

	 Transactions in foreign currencies are 
recorded at functional currency spot 
rates at the date the transaction first 
qualifies for recognition.

	 Monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies are 
translated at the functional currency 
spot rates of exchange at the reporting 
date. Differences arising on settlement 
or translation of monetary items are 
recognised in profit or loss.

	 Non-monetary items that are measured 
in terms of historical cost in a foreign 
currency are translated using the 
exchange rates at the dates of the 
initial transactions. Non-monetary items 
measured at fair value in a foreign 
currency are translated using the 
exchange rates at the date when the 
fair value is determined. The gain or loss 
arising on translation of non-monetary 
items measured at fair value is treated 
in line with the recognition of the gain 
or loss on the change in fair value of 
the item (i.e., translation differences on 
items whose fair value gain or loss is 
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recognised in OCI or profit or loss are 
also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, 
respectively).

2.16 Government Grant

	 Government grants are recognised 
where there is reasonable assurance 
that the grant will be received and all 
attached conditions will be complied 
with. When the grant relates to an 
expense item, it is recognised as 
income on a systematic basis over 
the periods that the related costs, for 
which it is intended to compensate, 
are expensed. When the grant relates 
to an asset, it is recognised as income 
in equal amounts over the expected 
useful life of the related asset.

	 When loans or similar assistance are 
provided by governments or related 
institutions with an interest rate below 
the current applicable market rate, 
the effect of this favourable interest is 
regarded as a government grant.

2.17 Taxes

	 The income tax expense or credit for 
the period is the tax payable on the 
current period’s taxable income based 
on the applicable income tax rate under 
the Income Tax Act, 1961 adjusted by 
changes in deferred tax assets and 
liabilities attributable to temporary 
differences and to unused tax losses. 
Tax is recognized in statement of Profit 
and Loss, except to the extent that it 
relates to items recognised in the Other 
Comprehensive Income or in Equity. In 
which case, the tax is also recognised in 
Other Comprehensive Income or Equity.

	 Current income tax

	 Current income tax assets and liabilities 
are measured at the amounts expected 
to be recovered from or paid to the 
taxation authorities; on the basis of the 
taxable profits computed for the current 
accounting period in accordance with 
Income Tax Act, 1961. The tax rates 
and tax laws used to compute the 
amount are those that are enacted 
at the reporting date. Management 
periodically evaluates positions taken 
in tax returns with respect to situations 
in which applicable tax regulation is 
subject to interpretation. It establishes 
provisions where appropriate on the 
basis of amounts expected to be paid to 
the tax authorities.

	 Current tax assets and tax liabilities are 
offset where the entity has a legally 
enforceable right to offset and intends 
either to settle on a net basis, or to 
realise the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously.

	 Deferred Tax

	 Deferred tax is provided using the 
balance sheet approach on temporary 
differences between the tax bases of 
assets and liabilities and their carrying 
amounts for financial reporting purposes 
at the reporting date. Deferred tax 
liabilities are recognised for all taxable 
temporary differences.

	 Deferred tax assets are recognised for 
all deductible temporary differences, 
the carry forward of unused tax credits 
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax 
assets are recognised to the extent that 
it is probable that taxable profit will be 
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available against which the deductible 
temporary differences, and the carry 
forward of unused tax credits and 
unused tax losses can be utilized.

	 The carrying amount of deferred tax 
assets is reviewed at each reporting 
date and reduced to the extent that it 
is no longer probable that sufficient 
taxable profit will be available to allow 
all or part of the deferred tax asset to 
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax 
assets are re-assessed at each reporting 
date and are recognised to the extent 
that it has become probable that future 
taxable profits will allow the deferred 
tax asset to be recovered.

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are 
measured at the tax rates that are 
expected to apply in the year when the 
asset is realised or the liability is settled, 
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that 
have been enacted or substantively 
enacted at the reporting date.

	 Deferred tax relating to items 
recognised outside profit or loss is 
recognised outside profit or loss. 
Deferred tax items are recognised in 
correlation to the underlying transaction 
either in OCI or directly in equity.

	 Deferred tax assets and deferred 
tax liabilities are offset if a legally 
enforceable right exists to set off 
current tax assets against current tax 
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate 
to the same taxable entity and the same 
taxation authority.

2.18 Leases

	 Lease is a contract that provides to the 
customer (lessee) the right to use an 

asset for a period of time in exchange 
for consideration.

	 A lessee is required to recognize assets 
and liabilities for all leases with a term 
that is greater than 12 months, unless 
the underlying asset is of low value, 
and to recognize depreciation of leased 
assets separately from interest on lease 
liabilities in the statement of Profit and 
Loss. 

	 Initial Measurement

	 Right to use asset

	 At the commencement date, the 
Company measures the right-of-use 
asset at cost. The cost of the right-of-
use asset shall comprise:

	 •	 the amount of the initial 
measurement of the lease liability 

	 •	 any lease payments made at or 
before the commencement date, 
less any lease incentives received;

	 •	 any initial direct costs incurred by 
the lessee; and

	 •	 an estimate of costs to be incurred 
by the lessee in dismantling and 
removing the underlying asset,  
restoring the site on which it is 
located or restoring the underlying 
asset to the condition required 
by the terms and conditions of 
the lease, unless those costs are 
incurred to produce inventories. The 
lessee incurs the obligation for those 
costs either at the commencement 
date or as a consequence of having 
used the underlying asset during a 
particular period.
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	 Lease liability

	 At the commencement date, the 
Company measures the lease liability at 
the present value of the lease payments 
that are not paid at that date. The lease 
payments are discounted using the 
interest rate implicit in the lease, if 
that rate can be readily determined. If 
that rate cannot be readily determined, 
the Company uses its incremental 
borrowing rate.

	 Lease payments included in the 
measurement of the lease liability 
comprise the following payments:

	 •	 fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments), less any 
lease incentives receivable;

	 •	 variable lease payments that 
depend on an index or a rate, initially 
measured using the index or rate as 
at the commencement date;

	 •	 amounts expected to be payable by 
the Company under residual value 
guarantees;

	 •	 the exercise price of a purchase 
option if the Company is reasonably 
certain to exercise that option; and

	 •	 payments of penalties for 
terminating the lease, if the lease 
term reflects the lessee exercising 
an option to terminate the 
lease.	

	 Subsequent measurement

	 Right to use asset

	 Subsequently the Company measures 
the right-of-use asset at cost less any 

accumulated depreciation and any 
accumulated impairment losses.

	 Lease Liability

	 Subsequently the Company measures 
the lease liability by:

	 •	 increasing the carrying amount to 
reflect interest on the lease liability 
at the interest rate implicit in the 
lease, if that rate can be readily 
determined or the Company’s 
incremental borrowing rate.

	 •	 reducing the carrying amount to 
reflect the lease payments made; 
and

	 •	 re-measuring the carrying amount 
to reflect any reassessment or lease 
modifications or to reflect revised 
in-substance fixed lease payments.

	 In the current year the management 
has assessed the impact of Ind AS 116 
and concluded them to be immaterial. 
Therefore no effects have been taken in 
the books of account.

2.19 Financial instruments

	 A financial instrument is any contract 
that gives rise to a financial asset of one 
entity and a financial liability or equity 
instrument of another entity.

2.19.1 Financial assets

	 Classification

	 Financial assets are classified, at initial 
recognition, as subsequently measured 
at amortised cost, fair value through 
comprehensive income (‘FVTOCI’) or 
fair value through other profit or loss 
(‘FVTPL’). 
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	 Initial recognition and measurement

	 Financial assets are recognised initially 
at fair value plus, in the case of financial 
assets not classified as fair value through 
profit or loss (‘FVTPL’), transaction costs 
that are attributable to the acquisition 
of the financial asset. Financial assets 
and financial liabilities are recognised in 
the Balance Sheet when the Company 
becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument. A regular 
way purchase or sale of financial assets 
shall be recognised using trade date or 
settlement date accounting.

	 Subsequent measurement

	 For purposes of subsequent 
measurement, financial assets are 
classified in three categories:

	 a)	 At amortised cost

	 b)	 At fair value through Other 
Comprehensive Income (‘FVTOCI’)

	 c)	 At fair value through profit or loss 
(‘FVTPL’)

	 (a)	 Financial assets classified as 
measured at amortised cost

		  A financial asset shall be measured 
at amortised cost if both of the 
following conditions are met:

		  •	 the financial asset is held 
within a business model whose 
objective is to hold financial 
assets in order to collect 
contractual cash flows and	

		  •	 the contractual terms of the 
financial asset give rise on 
specified dates to cash flows 
that are solely payments of 

principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding.

		  After initial measurement, such 
financial assets are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest rate 
(‘EIR’) method, less impairment. 
Amortised cost is calculated by 
taking into account any discount or 
premium on acquisition and fees 
or costs that are an integral part 
of the EIR. The EIR amortisation 
is included in finance expense/ 
(income) in the profit and loss 
statement. The losses arising from 
impairment are recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss. This 
category generally applies to trade 
receivables, security and other 
deposits receivable by the company. 

	 (b)	Financial assets classified as 
measured at FVTOCI

		  A financial asset shall be measured 
at fair value through other 
comprehensive income if both of 
the following conditions are met:

		  •	 the financial asset is held 
within a business model whose 
objective is achieved by both 
collecting contractual cash flows 
and selling financial assets and

		  •	 the contractual terms of the 
financial asset give rise on 
specified dates to cash flows 
that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding.

		  Such instruments are measured 
at fair value at initial recognition as 
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well as at each reporting date fair 
value movements are recognised in 
the Other Comprehensive Income 
(‘OCI’). Interest income, impairment 
losses and reversals and foreign 
exchange gain or loss are recognised 
in the statement of profit and loss. 
On de-recognition of the asset, 
cumulative gain or loss previously 
recognised in OCI is reclassified 
from equity to statement of profit 
and loss. Interest earned on such 
instruments is reported as interest 
income using the EIR method.

	 (c)	 Financial assets classified as 
measured at FVTPL

		  A Financial asset shall be measured 
at FVTPL, unless it is measured at 
amortised cost or at FVTOCI. The 
Company classifies all equity or 
puttable financial instruments held 
for trading as measured at FVTPL. 
Such instruments are measured at 
fair value at initial recognition as 
well as at each reporting date. The 
fair value changes are recognised 
in the statement of profit and loss. 
Further, the Company may make an 
irrevocable election to designate a 
financial asset as FVTPL, at initial 
recognition, to reduce or eliminate 
a measurement or recognition 
inconsistency. 

		  De-recognition

		  The Company derecognises a 
financial asset when the contractual 
rights to the cash flows from the 
financial asset expire, or it transfers 
the rights to receive the contractual 
cash flows in a transaction in 

which substantially all of the risks 
and rewards of ownership of the 
financial asset are transferred or in 
which the company neither transfers 
nor retain substantially all of the 
risks and rewards of ownership 
and it does not retain control of the 
financial asset.

		  Impairment of financial assets

		  The Company applies expected 
credit loss (‘ECL’) model for 
measurement and recognition of 
impairment loss on the following 
financial assets and credit risk 
exposure:

		  •	 Financial assets measured at 
amortised cost

		  •	 Financial assets measured at 
FVTOCI, except investments in 
equity instruments designated 
as such by the Company.

		  •	 Trade receivables

		  The Company follows ‘simplified 
approach’ for recognition of 
impairment loss allowance on Trade 
receivables.

		  The application of simplified 
approach does not require the 
Company to track changes in 
credit risk. Rather, it recognises 
impairment loss allowance based on 
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, 
right from its initial recognition.

		  For recognition of impairment loss 
on other financial assets and risk 
exposure, the Company determines 
that whether there has been a 
significant increase in the credit 
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risk since initial recognition. If credit 
risk has not increased significantly, 
12-month ECL is used to provide for 
impairment loss. However, if credit 
risk has increased significantly, 
lifetime ECL is used.

2.19.2 Financial liabilities

	 Classification

	 Financial liabilities are classified, at initial 
recognition, as subsequently measured 
at amortised cost or at fair value through 
profit or loss (‘FVTPL’).

	 Initial recognition and measurement

	 Financial liabilities are recognised 
initially at fair value net of, in the case 
of financial liabilities not classified as 
fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL’), 
transaction costs that are attributable 
to the issue of the financial liability. 
Financial assets and financial liabilities 
are recognised in the Balance Sheet 
when the Company becomes a party 
to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. 

	 (a)	 Financial liabilities at FVTPL

		  Financial liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss include 
financial liabilities held for trading 
and financial liabilities designated 
as such upon initial recognition. 
Financial liabilities are classified as 
held for trading if they are incurred 
for the purpose of repurchasing 
in the near term. This category 
also includes derivative financial 
instruments entered into by the 
group that are not designated as 
hedging instruments in hedge 

relationships as defined by Ind-
AS 109. Separated embedded 
derivatives are also classified as 
held for trading unless they are 
designated as effective hedging 
instruments.

		  Gains or losses on liabilities held 
for trading are recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss.

		  Financial liabilities designated as 
such upon initial recognition at the 
initial date of recognition, if the 
criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. 
For liabilities designated as FVTPL, 
fair value gains/ losses attributable 
to changes in own credit risks are 
recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss 
are not subsequently transferred 
to the statement of profit and loss. 
However, the Company may transfer 
the cumulative gain or loss within 
equity. All other changes in fair value 
of such liability are recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss. 

		  The Company has not designated 
any financial liability as at fair value 
through profit and loss.

	 (b)	Financial liabilities at amortised 
cost

		  This is the most relevant category 
to the Company. The Company 
generally classifies interest 
bearing borrowings as financial 
liabilities carried at amortised cost. 
After initial recognition, these 
instruments are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using 
the EIR method. Gains and losses 
are recognised in statement of 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements



Annual Report 2019-20 241

profit and loss when the liabilities 
are derecognised as well as through 
the EIR amortisation process. 

		  Amortised cost is calculated by 
taking into account any discount or 
premium on acquisition and fees 
or costs that are an integral part 
of the EIR. The EIR amortisation 
is included as finance costs in the 
statement of profit and loss.

		  De-recognition

		  A financial liability is derecognised 
when the obligation under the 
liability is discharged or cancelled or 
expires. When an existing financial 
liability is replaced by another from 
the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an 
existing liability are substantially 
modified, such an exchange or 
modification is treated as the 
derecognition of the original liability 
and the recognition of a new liability. 
The difference in the respective 
carrying amounts is recognised in 
the statement of profit and loss.

		  Offsetting of financial instruments

		  Financial assets and financial 
liabilities are offset and the net 
amount is reported in the balance 
sheet if there is a currently 
enforceable legal right to offset the 
recognised amounts and there is an 
intention to settle on a net basis, 
to realise the assets and settle the 
liabilities simultaneously.

2.20 Impairment of non-financial assets

	 The Company assesses at each 
reporting date whether there is 
an indication that an asset may be 
impaired. If any indication exists, or 
when annual impairment testing for 
an asset is required, the Company 
estimates the asset’s recoverable 
amount. An asset’s recoverable amount 
is the higher of an asset’s or CGU’s fair 
value less costs of disposal and its value 
in use. It is determined for an individual 
asset, unless the asset does not 
generate cash inflows that are largely 
independent of those from other assets 
or groups of assets. Where the carrying 
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds 
its recoverable amount, the asset is 
considered impaired and is written 
down to its recoverable amount.

2.21 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities 

	 A Provision is recognized when the 
Company has a present obligation as a 
result of a past event and it is probable 
that an outflow of resources is expected 
to settle the obligation, in respect of 
which a reliable estimate can be made.  

	 If the effect of the time value of money 
is material, provisions are discounted 
using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, 
when appropriate, the risks specific to 
the liability. When discounting is used, 
the increase in the provision due to   
the passage of time is recognised as a 
finance cost.
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	 Contingent liability is disclosed in case 
of 

	 •	 a present obligation arising from 
past events, when it is not probable 
that an outflow of resources will be 
required to settle the obligation.

	 •	 present obligation arising from past 
events, when no reliable estimate is 
possible

	 •	 a possible obligation arising from 
past events where the probability of 
outflow of resources is not remote.

	 Provisions and contingent liabilities are 
reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

2.22 Provision for employment benefits

	 Defined contribution plans

	 The Company has the following 
defined contribution plans: state 
governed provident fund scheme and 
employee state insurance scheme. The 
contributions paid and payable under 
the scheme are recognised in the 
period when the employee renders the 
related service.

	 Defined benefit plans

	 The employees’ gratuity fund scheme 
managed by the Life Corporations of 
India (LIC) is the Company’s defined 
benefit plans. The present value of the 
obligation under such defined benefit 
plan is determined based on actuarial 
valuation using the Projected Unit Credit 
Method, which recognizes each period 
of service as giving rise to additional 
unit of employee benefit entitlement 
and measures each unit separately to 
build up the final obligation.

	 The obligation is measured at the 
present value of the estimated future 
cash flows. The discount rates used 
for determining the present value of 
the obligation under defined benefit 
plans, is based on the market yields 
on Government securities as at the 
balance sheet date, having maturity 
periods approximating to the terms of 
related obligations.

	 Re-measurements, comprising of 
actuarial gains and losses, the effect 
of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts 
included in net interest on the net 
defined benefit liability and the return 
on plan assets (excluding amounts 
included in net interest on the net 
defined benefit liability), are recognised 
immediately in the balance sheet with a 
corresponding debit or credit to retained 
earnings through OCI in the period in 
which they occur. Re-measurements 
are not reclassified to profit or loss in 
subsequent periods.

	 In case of funded plans, the fair value 
of the plan’s assets is reduced from 
the gross obligation under the defined 
benefit plans, to recognize the obligation 
on net basis.

	 Gains or losses on the curtailment or 
settlement of any defined benefit plan 
are recognized when the curtailment or 
settlement occurs. Past service cost is 
recognized as expenses on a straight-
line basis over the average period 
until the benefits become vested. Net 
interest is calculated by applying the 
discount rate to the net defined benefit 
liability or asset.  
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	 The Company recognises the following 
changes in the net defined benefit 
obligation under ‘employee benefit 
expenses’ in the statement of profit and 
loss:

	 •	 Service costs comprising current 
service costs, past-service costs, 
gains and losses on curtailments 
and non-routine settlements

	 •	 Net interest expense or income

	 Refer Note 35 for additional disclosures 
relating to Company’s defined benefit 
plan.

	 Provision for compensated absences

	 Provision for short term compensated 
absences is recognised for accumulated 
leaves that are expected to be utilized 
within a period of twelve months from 
the balance sheet date. Long term 
compensated absences are provided 
for on the basis of an actuarial valuation, 
using projected unit credit method, as 
at each reporting date.

2.23 Earnings per share

	 Basic earnings per share are calculated 
by dividing the net profit or loss for 
the period attributable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding 
during the period as reduced by number 
of shares bought back, if any. The 
weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the period 
is adjusted for events such as bonus 
issue, bonus element in a rights issue, 
share split, and reverse share split 
(consolidation of shares) that have 
changed the number of equity shares 

outstanding, without a corresponding 
change in resources. 

	 For the purpose of calculating diluted 
earnings per share, the net profit or 
loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders and the weighted average 
number of shares outstanding during 
the period are adjusted for the effects 
of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.24 Dividend to equity holders of the 
Company

	 Dividends paid (including income tax 
thereon) is recognised in the period 
in which the interim dividends are 
approved by the Board of Directors, or 
in respect of the final dividend when 
approved by shareholders.

2.25 Segment reporting

	 Operating segments are reported 
in a manner consistent with the 
internal reporting provided to the chief 
operating decision-maker. The chief 
operating decision-maker, who is 
responsible for allocating resources and 
assessing performance of the operating 
segments, has been identified as the 
Board of Directors that makes strategic 
decision. 

	 Segment accounting policies are in 
line with the accounting policies of the 
Company.

	 Standards issued but not yet effective:

	 1.	 Amendments to Ind AS 40, 
Investment Property

		  The exposure draft on amendments 
to Ind AS 40 issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India 
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proposes to reinstate the fair value 
option thereby providing the entities 
an accounting policy choice to 
subsequently measure investment 
properties using either the cost 
model or the fair value model.

	 2.	 Amendments to Ind AS 1 
“Presentation of Financial 
Statements” and Ind AS 8 
“Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors”

		  The exposure draft on amendments 
to Ind AS 1 and Ind AS 8 issued 
by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India proposes to 
amended the definition of the term 
“Material” and to use a consistent 
definition of materiality throughout 
Indian Accounting Standards and 
the Conceptual Framework for 
Financial Reporting.

		  The amendment clarifies when 
information is material. In particular, 
the amendments clarify:

		  i)	 that the reference to obscuring 
information addresses 
situations in which the effect is 
similar to omitting or misstating 
that information, and that an 
entity assesses materiality 
in the context of the financial 
statements as a whole, and

		  ii)	 the meaning of ‘primary users 
of general-purpose financial 
statements’ to whom those 
financial statements are 
directed, by defining them as 
‘existing and potential investors, 

lenders and other creditors’ that 
must rely on general purpose 
financial statements for much 
of the financial information they 
need.

	 3. Amendments to Ind AS 109, 
Financial Instruments and Ind 
AS 107 Financial Instruments: 
Disclosures -

		  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

		  The exposure draft on amendments 
to Ind AS 109 and Ind AS 107 
issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India 
proposes amendments to modify 
some specific hedge accounting 
requirements to provide relief from 
potential effects of the uncertainty 
caused by the Inter Bank Offer Rate 
(IBOR) reforms.

		  Additionally, the amendments 
require companies to provide 
additional information to investors 
about their hedging relationships 
which are directly affected by these 
uncertainties.

	 4.	 Amendments to Ind AS 103, 
Business Combinations

		  The exposure draft on amendments 
to Ind AS 103 issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India 
proposes to amend the definition 
of “Business”. Proposed guidance 
provides that an acquisition should 
include an input and a substantive 
process that together significantly 
contribute to the ability to  
create outputs.



Annual Report 2019-20 245

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

		  The new guidance provides a 
framework to evaluate when an 
input and a substantive process are 
present (including for early stage 
companies that have not generated 
outputs). To be a business without 
outputs, there will now need to 
be an organised workforce. It is 
no longer necessary to assess 
whether market participants are 
capable of replacing missing 
elements or integrating the 
acquired activities and assets and 
base the assessments on what has 
been acquired in its ‘current state 
and condition’. The amendment also 

provides for an ‘optional test’, where 
substantially all of the fair value of 
gross assets is concentrated in a 
single asset (or group of similar 
assets), the assets acquired would 
not represent a business.

		  However, above mentioned 
exposure drafts have not been 
notified by the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs (‘MCA’) to be applicable 
from 1 April, 2020 as at the date 
of approval of these financial 
statements. The company intends 
to adopt those standards when they 
become effective.
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Notes to Consolidated financial statements

4	 Non-current investments

	 List of investments under each category
(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars No of shares * Value of Investments

 March 31, 
2020

 March 31, 
2019

 March 31, 
2020

 March 31, 
2019

Quoted and listed
Investments in equity shares
Investments designated 
at fair value through other 
comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
Equity Shares of H 2 each in 
Finolex Cables Limited

 2,21,87,075  2,21,87,075  439.03  1,060.16 

Investments designated at fair 
value through profit and loss 
(FVTPL)
Equity Shares of H 2 each in Gulf 
Oil Corporation Limited  4,950  4,950  0.06  0.15 
Equity Shares of H2 each in Gulf 
Oil Lubricants India Limited  4,950  4,950  0.26  0.42 
Equity Shares of H10 each in Gold 
Crest Corporation Limited  12,400  12,400  0.08  0.08 

 0.40  0.65 
Unquoted
Investments designated 
at fair value through other 
comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
Equity Shares of J10 each in 
a)	 Finolex Infrastructure Limited  53,73,938  53,73,938  8.55  8.58 
Investments designated at fair 
value through profit and loss 
(FVTPL)
Equity Shares of J10 each in 
a)	 The Saraswat Co-op Bank 

Limited #

 1,000  1,000  0.00  0.00 

Investments measured at cost
Associate Companies
Equity Shares of J10 each in 
a)	 Pawas Port Limited  49,994  49,994  0.05  0.05 
Total  448.04  1,069.44 

	 *Number of shares are in full figures
	 # The value of shares in full figures is H 10,000/-
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4.1	Investments accounted using Equity method

Notes to Consolidated financial statements

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars No of shares * Value of Investments

 March 31, 
2020

 March 31, 
2019

 March 31, 
2020

 March 31, 
2019

Investments measured at 
amortised cost
Associate Companies
Equity Shares of J10 each in 
a)	 Finolex Plasson Industries 

Private Limited
 46,35,000  46,35,000  66.41  59.02 

	 Dividend received  (0.93)  (1.16)
	 Share in dividend distribution tax  (0.19)  (0.24)
	 Share in current year profits  25.56  14.01 
	 Share in tax expenses  (7.46)  (5.22)
	 Share in current year OCI  0.22  0.01 
	 Share in Ind AS 116 adjustment 

to retained earnings  (0.09)  -   
	 Total value of investment in 

associate  83.52  66.41 

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars   March 31, 2020   March 31, 2019 

Aggregate Cost value of quoted investments  102.67  102.67 
Aggregate market value of quoted investments  439.43  1,060.81 
Aggregate value of unquoted investments  8.60  8.63 

	 The Company measures its investments in associates at cost, as per option provided by Ind AS 27 
“Separate Financial Statements”.

	 Fair Value disclosures

	 Fair value disclosures along with Fair value hierarchy disclosures for financial assets and 
liabilities are stated in Note 38.

	 Risk Management Strategy

	 Refer Note 39 on financial risk management objectives and policies for financial 
instruments.
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Notes to Consolidated financial statements

5	 Non-current Loans
(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020   March 31, 2019 

Unsecured, considered good
Loans to employees  0.03  0.01 
Security deposits  1.65  1.89 
Other deposits  1.00  1.00 
Significant increase in credit risk
Credit impaired  -    -   
Doubtful  -    -   

 2.68  2.90 
Less: Loss Allowance  -    -   
Total  2.68  2.90 

6	 Other non-current financial assets 
(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020   March 31, 2019 

Unsecured considered good
Claims receivable (under mega incentive schemes) 
(Refer Note 19)  8.66  12.47 
Other deposits
Unsecured, considered good  -    -   
Doubtful  -    -   

 -    -   
Less: Provision for doubtful deposits  -    -   

 -    -   
Total  8.66  12.47 

	 Security deposits comprise of deposits with various government agencies and others.

7	 Other non-current assets
(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020   March 31, 2019 

Unsecured considered good
Capital advances  5.80  3.07 
Prepaid expenses  0.98  0.95 
Balances with  government authorities:
	 -Excise, Service Tax, Customs  1.01  1.07 
	 -VAT and sales tax  49.84  49.76 
Total  57.63  54.85 
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Notes to Consolidated financial statements

8	 Inventories
(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020   March 31, 2019 

Raw materials  333.03  209.18 
Work-in-progress  53.53  44.96 
Finished goods  402.07  302.28 
Stock-in-trade  1.85  1.33 
Stores and spares  62.97  57.77 
Packing material  4.37  4.95 

Total  857.81  620.47 

	 a)	 Raw materials include goods in transit of H 24.42 Crores (H 5.64 Crores as at March 
31, 2019).

	 b)	 The above inventories are hypothecated against current borrowings. Also refer Note 20.

	 c)	 Refer Note 2.10 for basis of valuation of inventories.

	 d)	 Write-back of inventories to net realisable value (net of reversal) amounted to H 
3.33 Crores (31 March 2019-write down: H 0.46 Crores).These were recognised 
as an Income (March-2019 as Expense) during the year and included in material 
consumption and changes in inventories in the statement of profit and loss.

	 e)	 Reversal of write down of inventories is mainly on account of movement in the 
ageing bucket of the such inventory.

9	 Current investments 
(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars No of units * Value of investments

 March 31, 
2020

  March 31, 
2019 

 March 31, 
2020

  March 
31, 2019 

Investment in Mutual Fund classified as 
fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
Quoted but not listed
Mutual Fund (MF) Units of J100 each 
Aditya Birla Sun Life Cash Plus Direct Plan 
- Growth  -    4,82,429  -    14.42 
Aditya Birla Sun Life Liquid Fund Direct 
Plan - Growth  -    4,16,601  -    12.52 
ICICI Prudential Liquid Fund-Direct Plan-
Growth  -    18,64,338  -    51.53 
DSP Equity Opportunities Fund Direct - 
Growth  6,64,939  6,64,939  11.87  15.60 
DSP Mid Cap Fund Direct - Growth  26,93,061  26,93,061  12.65  15.49 
Kotak Savings Fund Regular Growth  -    33,51,038  -    10.04 
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9	 Current investments (Contd..)

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020   March 31, 2019 
Aggregate Cost value of quoted investments  55.00  222.14 
Aggregate market value of quoted investments  49.53  226.09 
Aggregate value of unquoted investments  79.60  -   

	 Fair Value disclosures

	 Fair value disclosures along with Fair value hierarchy disclosures for financial assets and 
liabilities are stated in Note 38.

	 Risk Management Strategy

	 Refer Note 39 on financial risk management objectives and policies for financial instruments.

	 * Number of units are in full figures

Notes to Consolidated financial statements

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars No of units * Value of investments

 March 31, 
2020

  March 31, 
2019 

 March 31, 
2020

  March 
31, 2019 

Mutual Fund (MF) Units of J1,000 each 
DSP Liquidity Fund - Direct Growth  -    1,53,120  -    40.94 
HDFC Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth  -    12,393  -    4.56 
UTI Liquid Cash Plan Institutional Direct 
Plan - Growth  -    1,20,214  -    36.79 
Kotak Liquid Direct Plan A Growth  -    63,955  -    24.20 
DSP Overnight Fund Direct Growth  9,414  -    1.00  -   
HDFC Overnight Fund Regular Growth  47,408  -    14.01  -   
HDFC Overnight Fund Direct Growth  33,684  -    10.00  -   
Investment in Fixed Deposits classified 
at cost
8.18% FD with Bajaj Finance  -    -    79.60  -   

 34,48,506  98,22,086  129.13  226.09 

10	 Trade receivables
(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020   March 31, 2019 
Unsecured, considered good
Others  73.17  74.31 
Significant increase in credit risk  -    -   
Credit impaired  -    -   
Doubtful  -    -   

 73.17  74.31 
Less: Loss Allowance  -    -   
Total  73.17  74.31 

	 For terms and conditions relating to related party receivables, refer Note 36
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11.1 Cash and cash equivalents
(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020   March 31, 2019 

Balances with banks 
In current accounts  36.99  6.22 
Deposits with original maturity of less than  three 
months     20.00  -   
Cash on hand  0.29  0.30 
Total  57.29  6.52 

	 Company’s trade receivables consist of receivables from dealers and customers against 
sales of pipes and fittings and PVC resin. Trade receivables are mostly on terms of 
advance payment and credit period of 30 days is given selectively in few cases only. 
Company also charges interest @ 18% p.a in case of default in collection of trade 
receivables.		

	 The above book debts are hypothecated against current borrowings. Also refer Note 20.

11.2  Other bank balances
(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020   March 31, 2019 
Unpaid dividend accounts  32.42  21.52 
Deposits with original maturity more than 3 months 
but less than 12 months  3.50  -   
Total  35.92  21.52 

12	Current Loans 
(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020   March 31, 2019 
Unsecured, considered good
Loans to Employees  0.31  0.31 
Security deposits  0.59  0.26 
Significant increase in credit risk  -    -   
Credit impaired  -    -   
Doubtful  -    -   

 0.90  0.57 
Less: Loss Allowance  -    -   
Total  0.90  0.57 

Notes to Consolidated financial statements

10	 Trade receivables (Contd..)
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13	Other current financial assets 

14	Other current assets

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020   March 31, 2019 
Unsecured, considered good
Advances to vendors*  14.55  40.13 
Other receivables  2.01  0.01 

 16.56  40.14 
Significant increase in credit risk  -    -   
Credit impaired  -    -   
Doubtful  -    -   
Less: Loss Allowance  -    -   
Claims receivable (under mega incentive schemes) 
(Refer Note 19)  -    20.40 
Total  16.56  60.54 

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020   March 31, 2019 
Unsecured, considered good
Advances to vendors  28.64  24.27 
Prepaid expenses  6.03  4.36 
GST receivables (net)  18.85  12.74 
Total  53.52  41.37 

	 * Advance has been given to vendor at an interest of 15% p.a.

15	Equity share capital
(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019 

No. of 
shares*

 Amount No. of 
shares*

 Amount 

Authorised: 
Equity shares of H10 each  15,00,00,000  150.00  15,00,00,000  150.00 
Unclassified share capital  8,50,00,000  85.00  8,50,00,000  85.00 

 23,50,00,000  235.00  23,50,00,000  235.00 
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up: 
Equity Shares of H10 each fully paid  12,40,95,381  124.10  12,40,95,381  124.10 

 12,40,95,381  124.10  12,40,95,381  124.10 

Notes to Consolidated financial statements

	 Out of above 4,32,600 (March 31, 2019 - 4,32,600) shares are held by Finolex Industries 
Limited Employee Welfare trust under ESOP scheme
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	 Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the 
reporting period:

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020   March 31, 2019 

No. of 
shares*

 Amount No. of 
shares*

 Amount 

At the beginning of the year  12,40,95,381  124.10  12,40,95,381  124.10 
Add: Allotted during the year  -    -    -    -   
Outstanding at the end of the period  12,40,95,381  124.10  12,40,95,381  124.10 

Particulars  March 31, 2020   March 31, 2019 

No. of 
shares*

% holding No. of 
shares*

% holding

Equity shares of J 10 each fully paid
Finolex Cables Limited  4,01,92,597 32.39%  4,01,92,597 32.39%
Orbit Electricals Private Limited  2,33,30,901 18.80%  2,33,30,901 18.80%

	 Terms/ Rights attached to equity shares:

	 The Company has only class of equity shares having a par value of H10 per share. Each 
holder of the equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares 
and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is 
subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

	 In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares are entitled to 
receive remaining assets of the company after distribution of all preferential amounts. 
The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the 
shareholders.

	 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

	 * No. of shares are in full figures

Notes to Consolidated financial statements

15	Equity share capital (Contd..)

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Retained 
earnings 

 Capital 
Redemption 

Reserve 

Securities 
premium 

General 
reserve 

 Other 
Comprehensive 

Income 

 Total 

As at March 31, 2018  1,242.91  25.18  151.27  394.50  857.18  2,671.03 
Add : Profit for the year including 
share of associate  367.25  -    -    -    -    367.25 
Add: Other comprehensive income 
for the year  (433.27)  (433.27)
Add/(less):Remeasurement gains/ 
(losses) on defined benefit plan  (3.07)  -    -    -    -    (3.07)
Add: Share in OCI of associate  0.01  -    -    -    -    0.01 
Less: Appropriations

16	Other equity 
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16	Other equity (Contd..)

	 16.1 Nature and purpose of reserves

	 1)	 Capital Redemption Reserve

		  During financial year ended March 31, 2002 and March 31, 2003, the company 
bought back shares of the company out of free reserves and in order to comply 
with the requirements of company law the company created share capital buy back 
reserve to the extent of the face value of shares bought back.

	 2)	 General reserve

		  Till April 1, 2013, the company was governed by provisions of the Companies Act of 
1956. As per the requirements of this act read along with Companies (Transfer of 
Profit to Reserve) Rules, 1975, any company declaring dividend in excess of 10% 
of face value of equity share was mandatorily required to transfer specified % of 
amount to general reserve. Accordingly, the company has transferred amount to this 
reserve over the years to comply with the company law requirements.

Notes to Consolidated financial statements

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Retained 
earnings 

 Capital 
Redemption 

Reserve 

Securities 
premium 

General 
reserve 

 Other 
Comprehensive 

Income 

 Total 

	 -Dividend paid  (124.10)  -    -    -    -    (124.10)
	 -Tax on dividend paid (includes 

share in DDT of associate)  (25.75)  -    -    -    -    (25.75)
As at March 31, 2019  1,457.24  25.18  151.27  394.50  423.91  2,452.10 
Add : Profit for the year including 
share of associate  332.65  -    -    -    -    332.65 
Add: Other comprehensive income 
for the year  -    -    -    -    (621.07)  (621.07)
Add/(less):Remeasurement gains/ 
(losses) on defined benefit plan  (2.53)  -    -    -    -    (2.53)
Add: Share in OCI of associate  0.22  -    -    -    -    0.22 
Less: share in lease adjustment  (0.09)  -    -    -    -    (0.09)
Less: Appropriations
	 -Final dividend paid  (124.10)  -    -    -    -    (124.10)
	 -Tax on dividend paid (includes 

share in DDT of associate)  (25.70)  -    -    -    -    (25.70)
	 -Interim dividend paid  (124.10)  (124.10)
	 -Tax on above dividend  (25.51)  (25.51)
As at March 31, 2020  1,488.09  25.18  151.27  394.50  (197.16)  1,861.88 
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	 16.2 Other comprehensive income, net of tax

	 The disaggregation of changes in OCI by each type of reserve 

Notes to Consolidated financial statements

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020   March 31, 2019 
Fair Valuation OCI reserve  (197.16)  423.91 
Total  (197.16)  423.91 

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Cash dividends on Equity shares declared and paid  March 31, 2020   March 31, 2019 

Final dividend for 2017-18: H10 per share  -    124.10 
Dividend distribution tax on above final dividend  -    25.51 
Final dividend for 2018-19: H10 per share  124.10  -   
Dividend distribution tax on above final dividend  25.51  -   
Interim dividend for 2019-20: H10 per share  124.10  -   
Dividend distribution tax on above final dividend  25.51  -   

	 16.3 Distribution made and proposed

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020   March 31, 2019 
Proposed Dividend  -    124.10 
Dividend per share (H)  -    10.00 

	 16.4 Dividends proposed before annual general meeting but not recognised as 	
	   a liability

	 Proposed dividend on equity shares are subject to approval of the shareholders of their 
Company at the annual general meeting and are not recognised as a liability (including 
taxes thereon) as at March 31, 2019.The Board of Directors had declared Interim 
Dividend of H 10 per share (Face Value of H 10 each) on February, 27 2020 which is 
considered as final dividend for the year ended March 31, 2020.

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020   March 31, 2019 
Security deposits  0.05  0.03 
Dealer deposits  0.09  0.31 
 Total  0.14  0.34 

17	 Other non - current financial liabilities 

16	Other equity (Contd..)
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(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020   March 31, 2019 
Provision for employee benefits 
Gratuity (Refer Note 35)  1.46  1.07 
Compensated absences  (Refer Note 35)  1.55  1.33 
 Total  3.01  2.40 

18.2 Current provisions 

Notes to Consolidated financial statements

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020   March 31, 2019 
Provision for employee benefits 
Gratuity (Refer Note 35)  18.26  14.02 
Compensated absences  (Refer Note 35)  8.46  6.56 
 Total  26.72  20.58 

18.1  Non-current provisions 

19	Government grants
(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020   March 31, 2019 

Non-current portion  51.44  57.67 
Current portion  6.24  6.24 
 Total  57.68  63.91 

	 a)	 The company is entitled to receive Industrial Promotion Subsidy under the Package 
Scheme of Incentives, for the period from 1st April, 2011 to 31st March 2018. The 
aforesaid subsidy is in relation to investments in property, plant and equipment at 
Ratnagiri plant. Accordingly, the same has been classified as grant related to assets 
and the company is recognising revenue from grant over the life of the property, 
plant and equipment.

		  Liability movement
(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020   March 31, 2019 

As at the beginning of the year  63.91  70.74 
Recognised during the year  -    -   
Less: Amount reversed (excess claim accrued upto 
March 31,2017, now reversed)  -    (0.59)
Released to the statement of profit and loss  (6.24)  (6.24)
As at the end of the year  57.68  63.91 
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(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

As at the beginning of the year  32.87  61.89 
Add: Grant accrued during the year  -    -   
Less: Claim received during the year  (18.83)  (19.86)
Less: Amount reversed (excess claim accrued upto 
March 31,2017, now reversed)  -    (1.03)
Less: Electricity duty adjusted against the current bill  (5.39)  (8.13)
As at the end of the year  8.66  32.87 

	 b)	 The company has received the eligibility certificate for the industrial promotion subsidy 
under the package incentive scheme. The government grant receivable includes 
electricity duty refund of prior years amounting to H Nil (March 31,2019 - H 5.39 Crores)

		  Asset movement

		  Also refer note 6

Notes to Consolidated financial statements

19	Government grants (Contd..)

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020   March 31, 2019 

Acceptances from banks : Buyers Credit 
Secured  266.88  78.81 
Unsecured  15.79  10.69 
 Total  282.67  89.50 

20	Current borrowings

	 Details of terms of borrowings and security for the borrowings

	 The aggregate limits of working capital borrowings of H 1,395.75 Crores (H 1,395.75 
Crores as at March 31, 2019) from the Bank of India Consortium together with all 
interest, liquidated damages, costs, charges and other moneys payable under working 
capital consortium agreement/sanction letters are secured by:

	 1)	 Hypothecation of inventories and book debts; and

	 2)	 Extension of second equitable mortgage, created in favour of Bank of India Consortium 
on pari passu basis with other second charge holder by deposit of title deeds with Axis 
Bank Ltd (ABL), New Delhi. ABL acting as an agent for Bank of India Consortium, 
which ranks subsequent and subservient in rank of priority over the first equitable 
mortgages created by deposit of title deeds in respect of immovable properties falling 
within the battery limit of the site of the Company’s plant for manufacture of PVC 
Resin, situated at Village Golap, District Ratnagiri in the State of Maharashtra together 
with all buildings and structures thereon and all plant and machinery attached to the 
earth or permanently fastened to anything attached to the earth.

		  Refer Note 39 for discussion on Company’s financial risk management policies and 
procedures.
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(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020   March 31, 2019 
 Trade payables 
a)	 total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises & Small 

Enterprises (Refer Note 41)  1.18  2.19 
 b)	 total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro 

Enterprises & Small Enterprises  232.22  281.61 
 Total  233.40  283.80 

	 Trade payables including related parties are non-interest bearing and are normally settled 
within 30 to 45 days.

	 Refer Note 39 for discussion on Company’s financial risk management policies and 
procedures.

Notes to Consolidated financial statements

21	Trade payables

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020   March 31, 2019 

Interest accrued but not due  0.56  0.51 
Salary and Reimbursements  22.93  23.51 
Provision for expenses  74.79  43.86 
Unpaid dividend  32.42  21.52 
 Total  130.70  89.40 

22	Other current financial liabilities

	 Refer Note 39 for explanation on Company’s financial risk management policies and 
procedures.

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020   March 31, 2019 

Advances from customers  23.25  24.55 
Statutory dues (includes indirect and witholding taxes)  12.11  18.50 
 Total  35.36  43.05 

23	Other current liabilities

24	 Income Taxes

	 During the year, section 115BAA has been newly introduced by the CBDT. As per this 
section, option is given to all existing companies to either pay Income tax as per existing 
rates ( i.e. 25% or 30% plus applicable surcharge and cess) or as per concessional rate 
of 22% plus applicable surcharge and cess. This new rate is available only if company 
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(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020   March 31, 2019 

Statement of profit and loss 
Current tax 
Current income tax charge  111.42  180.57 
Adjustments in the period for current tax of prior 
periods  (0.21)  (2.09)
Deferred tax 
Relating to temporary differences  (26.05)  2.74 
Income tax expense reported in the statement 
of profit and loss  85.17  181.22 
Other Comprehensive Income 
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI 
during the year: 
Remeasurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit 
plans  0.85  1.65 
Fair value changes of financial assets  0.08  (20.67)
Income tax charged to OCI   0.93  (19.02)

Notes to Consolidated financial statements

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020   March 31, 2019 

Accounting profit before tax expense  392.26  534.46 
At India’s statutory tax rate 25.168% 34.944%
Computed tax expense  98.72  186.76 
Adjustments For: 
Donations made disallowed as deductions  0.32  0.33 
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses  2.50  3.23 
Provision for expenses not allowed in tax  1.22  -   
Other non-deductible expenses  0.11  0.26 
Dividend income accrued in current year exempt 
from tax  (2.75)  (3.51)

forgoes certain exemptions and deductions. Since this new rate is beneficial, company 
has adopted the new tax rate of 25.168% (i.e. 22% including surcharge and cess)  for 
computing income tax & deferred tax for year ended 31st Mar, 2020 (the rate for 31st 
March 2019 was 34.944%)

	 A	 Composition of income tax expense is as follows:

24	 Income Taxes

	 B	 Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit multiplied by tax rate

		  Current taxes are measured using the tax rates that have been enacted or 
substantively
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24	 Income Taxes (Contd..)

Notes to Consolidated financial statements

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020   March 31, 2019 

Agricultural  income U/S.10(1) (Income from 
Mango Harvesting contract.)   (0.01)  (0.01)
Deduction allowed income tax  (0.17)  (4.89)
80IA diallowance under new tax regime  11.09  -   
Impact of Change in rate  (42.27)  (0.02)
Deferred tax on consolidation  0.19  (0.93)
Other items 16.23  -   
At the effective tax rate  85.17  181.22 
Income tax expense reported in the statement of 
profit and loss  85.17  181.22 

	 C	 Composition of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax 
(expense)/income

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Balance Sheet Statement of Profit and 
Loss

 March 31, 
2020

  March 31, 
2019 

 March 31, 
2020

  March 31, 
2019 

Deferred tax liabilities 
Depreciation  (139.03)  (181.76)  42.73  (7.39)
Fair valuation of  FVTOCI investment  (0.16)  (0.24)  -    -   
Fair valuation of  FVTPL investment  -    (1.38)  1.38  (1.38)

 -   
Deferred tax assets 
Deferred income  14.52  22.33  (7.81)  (2.38)
Fair valuation of  FVTPL investment  1.37  -    1.37  (1.28)
Provision for Doubtful debts & 
advances 

 -    1.69  (1.69)  (0.37)

Deferred Tax on consolidation  (19.87)  (11.14)  (8.53)  8.89 
Leave encashment   2.52  2.76  (0.24)  0.96 
Defined benefit obligation and 
others 

 4.97  5.27  (1.17)  0.22 

Deferred tax (expense)/income  26.04  (2.74)
Net deferred tax assets/
(liabilities) 

 (135.68)  (162.47)
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24	 Income Taxes (Contd..)

	 D	 Composition of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

		  Deferred taxes are measured using the tax rates that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The Company offsets tax 
assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current 
tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax 
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

		  Reconciliation of deferred tax liabilities, net 

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020   March 31, 2019 

 As at the beginning of the year  (162.47)  (141.64)
Tax (expense)/ income recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss  26.04  (2.74)
Share of associate in OCI  (0.18)  0.93 
Tax (expense)/ income recognised in the OCI  0.93  (19.02)
As at the end of the year  (135.68)  (162.47)

Notes to Consolidated financial statements

	 E	 Composition of deferred tax (expense)/ income recognised in the statement of 
profit and loss

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020   March 31, 2019 

Deferred tax income  35.98  (12.81)
Deferred tax expense  (9.93)  10.07 
Net deferred tax (expense)/ income  26.04  (2.74)

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020   March 31, 2019 

Revenue from contracts with customers 
Sale of products  2,957.67  3,068.46 
Other operating revenue 
a)	 Scrap sales  19.92  15.13 
b)	 Recovery of port charges  2.15  1.94 
c)	 Unwinding of deferred income (government grant) 

(Refer Note 19)  6.24  5.79 
 Total  2,985.98  3,091.32 

25	Revenue from operations
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(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020   March 31, 2019 
I)	 Interest on  
	 a)	 Overdue receivables from customers  0.08  0.14 
	 b)	 Income Tax refund  -    3.94 
	 c)	 Deposit with bank and financial institution  4.59  3.81 
	 d)	 On advance to vendor  3.22  0.45 
	 e)	 Others  0.28  0.05 
II)	 Dividend from non-current investments 
	 a)	 Classified as fair value through FVTPL  0.01  0.01 
	 b)	 Classified as fair value through FVTOCI  9.05  7.72 
	 c)	 Classified as amortised cost  0.93  1.16 
 III)	Other non-operating income 
	 a)	 Insurance claims received  0.91  1.26 
	 b)	 Net gains/(losses) on fair value changes  on 

investment classified as FVTPL   (2.73)  8.30 
	 c)	 Net gain on sale of current investments (mutual 

funds) classified as FVTPL  8.92  7.16 
	 d)	 Net foreign currency exchange gain on 

transaction and translations  -    0.75 
	 e)	 Excess provision written back  1.35  1.34 
	 f)	 Credit balances written back  0.22  2.02 
	 g)	 Others  3.08  2.30 
Total  29.91  40.41 

26	Other income

Notes to Consolidated financial statements

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020   March 31, 2019 

Cost of raw materials consumed  2,007.31  1,952.61 
Packing material consumed  30.40  28.54 
 Total  2,037.71  1,981.15 

27	Cost of materials consumed

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

Inventories at the end of the year
	 Work-in-progress  53.53  44.96 
	 Finished goods  402.07  302.28 
	 Stock-in-trade  1.85  1.33 
Sub Total (A)  457.45  348.57 

28	 Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock in trade
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(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

Salaries, wages and bonus  123.61  115.16 
Gratuity fund expenses (refer Note 35)  2.53  1.72 
Contribution to provident fund and other funds  
(refer Note 35)  4.84  3.96 
Staff welfare expenses  14.57  13.59 
 Total  145.55  134.43 

29	Employee benefits expense

Notes to Consolidated financial statements

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

Inventories at the beginning of the year
	 Work-in-progress  44.96  47.37 
	 Finished goods  302.28  228.47 
	 Stock-in-trade  1.33  1.40 
Sub Total (B)  348.57  277.24 
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-
progress and stock in trade (B-A)

 (108.88)  (71.33)

28	Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock in 
trade (Contd..)

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

Interest expense on borrowings and others  3.55  6.29 
Other borrowing costs  1.86  1.43 
Exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to 
borrowing cost  6.50  4.55 
 Total  11.91  12.27 

30	Finance cost

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment  73.13  69.29 
Amortisation of intangible assets  0.68  0.79 
 Total  73.81  70.08 

31	Depreciation and amortisation expense
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(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019
Power and fuel  107.99  114.35 
Stores and spares consumed  29.29  34.21 
Other manufacturing expenses  104.20  106.00 
Rent on Short term or low value leases  2.12  1.88 
Rates and taxes  10.61  12.23 
Insurance  9.12  3.79 
Repairs & maintenance (buildings)  15.06  11.11 
Repairs & maintenance (plant & machinery)  31.47  19.32 
Repairs & maintenance (others)  2.63  2.18 
Communication expenses  3.15  3.92 
Travelling and conveyance  8.37  7.09 
Directors' sitting fees  0.38  0.37 
Commission to non-executive directors  1.00  0.98 
Auditor's remuneration :  
	 -Statutory audit fees  0.29  0.29 
	 -Tax audit fees  0.05  0.05 
	 -Limited review   0.06  0.06 
	 -GST audit fees  0.05  0.10 
	 -Certification   0.03  0.03 
	 -Out of pocket expenses  0.02  0.01 
Advertisement, publicity and sales promotion  48.29  66.51 
Freight outward expenses  1.62  1.01 
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment  0.67  0.05 
Legal and professional fees  8.10  10.54 
Donations  2.56  0.92 
Corporate social responsibility (CSR)(refer note below)  11.92  9.24 
Security expenses  8.03  6.44 
Information technology maintenance   8.15  9.14 
Net loss on foreign currency transactions and 
translations (other than considered as finance cost)  23.85  -   
Miscellaneous expenses  10.61  9.87 
Total  449.69  431.69 

32	Other expenses

Notes to Consolidated financial statements

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

Contribution to Mukul Madhav Foundation Trust 
(related party) 11.42 9.13
Contribution to others 0.50 0.11

11.92 9.24
a)	 Amount required to be spent during the period 9.61 8.50
b)	 Amount spent during the year on: 11.92 9.24
	 i)	 Construction/acquisition of any asset  -    -   
	 ii)	 On purposes other than (i) above 11.92 9.24

	  CSR Contribution
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33 	Segment Information

	 The Company is in the business of manufacturing of PVC resin and PVC pipes & fittings. 
The disclosure of financial information in respect of its Captive Power Plant as a separate 
segment is no longer material compared to the Company’s overall operations and the 
management does not analyse its performance separately. Therefore as per Ind AS 
108 “Operating Segments”, the Company has decided to disclose only two segments 
i.e. PVC resin and PVC pipes & fittings. Accordingly, the figures of respective previous 
periods have been regrouped.

	 For management purposes, the Company is organised into business units based on 
their products and which has following two reportable segments :

	 1	 PVC – engaged in producing and distributing PVC resin

	 2	 Pipes and fittings – engaged in producing and distributing pipes and fittings required 
principally in the agriculture and construction industries

		  The company has allocated the CPP segment to PVC resin and PVC pipes & fittings 
segments on the basis of CPP units allocation to respective segment.

		  The management monitors the operating results of its business units separately 
for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance 
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss that is 
measured consistently with profit or loss in the financial statements. The Company’s 
financing (including finance costs and finance income) and income taxes are not 
allocated to operating segments.

 	 Year ended March 31, 2020

Notes to Consolidated financial statements

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

 Particulars  PVC  Pipes & 
fittings 

 Total 
segments 

 Adjustments 
and eliminations  

 Total 

Revenue 

External customers  432.03  2,553.95  2,985.98  -    2,985.98 

Inter-segment  1,247.13  -    1,247.13  (1,247.13)  -   

Total revenue  1,679.16  2,553.95  4,233.11  (1,247.13)  2,985.98 

Income/(Expenses) 

Depreciation and amortisation  (14.05)  (42.19)  (56.24)  -    (56.24)

Segment profit  199.79  202.68  402.47  -    402.47 

Total assets  959.33  1,022.21  1,981.54  -    1,981.54 

Total liabilities  178.05  77.42  255.47  -    255.47 

Other disclosures 

Capital expenditure  8.77  45.97  54.74  -    54.74 
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 Particulars  PVC  Pipes & 
fittings 

 Total 
segments 

Adjustments 
and eliminations  

 Total 

Revenue 

External customers  516.52  2,574.80  3,091.32  3,091.32 
Inter-segment  1,357.65  -    1,357.65  (1,357.65)  -   

Total revenue  1,874.17  2,574.80  4,448.97  (1,357.65)  3,091.32 

Income/(Expenses) 

Depreciation and amortisation  (12.65)  (39.84)  (52.49)  -    (52.49)

Segment profit  377.28  182.82  560.10  -    560.10 
Total assets  814.40  963.22  1,777.62  -    1,777.62 

Total liabilities  209.76  91.87  301.63  -    301.63 

 -   

Other disclosures 

Capital expenditure 22.06 75.62 97.68 - 97.68

 	 Year ended March 31, 2019

	 Inter-segment revenues are eliminated upon consolidation and reflected in the 
‘adjustments and eliminations’ column. All other adjustments and eliminations are part 
of detailed reconciliations presented further below.

	 Adjustments and eliminations

	 Finance income and costs, and fair value gains and losses on financial assets are not 
allocated to individual segments as the underlying instruments are managed for the 
entity as a whole.

	 Current taxes, deferred taxes and certain financial assets and liabilities are not allocated 
to those segments as they are also managed for the entity as a whole.

	 Capital expenditure consists of additions of property, plant and equipment and intangible 
assets and additions to capital work in progress.

	 Inter-segment revenues are eliminated on consolidation.

33 	Segment Information (Contd..)

Notes to Consolidated financial statements

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019
Segment profit  402.47  560.10 
Unallocable income  29.33  39.29 
Finance costs  (11.91)  (12.27)
Unallocable expense  (26.70)  (51.51)
Profit before tax   393.19  535.62 

	 Reconciliation of profit
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(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019
Segment operating assets  1,981.54  1,777.62 
Current tax assets  42.34  33.05 
Financial assets carried at FVTPL  0.40  0.65 
Financial assets carried at FVTOCI  439.03  1,060.17 
Financial assets carried at cost  0.05  7.55 
Current investments  129.13  226.09 
Cash and cash equivalents (including other bank 
balances)  93.21  29.10 
Other unallocated assets   205.65  197.43 

 Total assets  2,891.34  3,331.65 

	 Reconciliation of assets

33 	Segment Information (Contd..)

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

Segment operating liabilities  255.47  301.63 
Deferred tax liabilities  135.68  162.47 
Trade payables  1.18  6.71 
Short term borrowings  282.67  89.50 
Financial liabilities at amortised cost  97.86  67.71 
Interest accrued  0.56  0.51 
Unpaid dividend  32.42  21.52 
Statutory Dues  12.11  18.50 
Provisions  29.73  22.98 
Government Grant  57.68  63.91 
 Total liabilities  905.36  755.44 

	 Reconciliation of liabilities

	 Geographic information

	 In the year ended March 31, 2020, the Company has catered only to the needs of the 
Indian markets. As there was no export turnover during the year, there are no reportable 
geographical segments.

Notes to Consolidated financial statements
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(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

Basic 
Profit for the year before Tax (in H Crores)  417.82  548.47 
Less : Attributable Tax thereto  85.17  181.22 
Net profit / (loss) after tax (in H Crores)  332.66  367.25 
Weighted average number of equity shares  12.41  12.41 
Basic earnings/(loss) per share of J 10 each  26.81  29.59 

35	Disclosure pursuant to Employee benefits

	 A.	 Defined contribution plans:

		  Amount of H 4.84 Crores (March 31, 2019: H 3.96 Crores) is recognised as expenses 
and included in Note No. 30 Employee benefit expense”

	 B.	 Defined benefit plans:

		  The Company has Gratuity as  post employment benefit which is in the nature of 
defined benefit plan.

		  The Company operates gratuity plan (funded) wherein every employee is entitled to 
the benefit equivalent to fifteen days salary last drawn for each completed year of 
service. The same is payable on termination of service or retirement whichever is 
earlier. The benefit vests after five years of continuous service.

		  The gratuity plan is governed by the payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the act, 
employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to specific benefit. 
The level of  benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and 
salary at retirement age.

Notes to Consolidated financial statements

34	  Earnings Per Share (EPS)

	 Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by 
the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

	 There are no potential shares that have a dilutive effect on the EPS.

 	 The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic EPS computation
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35	Disclosure pursuant to Employee benefits (Contd..)

	 The major categories of plan assets of the fair value of the total plan assets of Gratuity 
are as follows:

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

Insured managed funds (LIC)  4.09  4.16 
(%) of total plan assets 100% 100%

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

Discount rate 6.10% 7.50%
Future salary increase 8.00% 8.00%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 7.50% 7.80%
Expected average remaining working lives (in years)
Gratuity 9.26 9.33
Compensated absences 9.26 9.33
Withdrawal rate (based on grade and age of 
employees)
Gratuity 7.00% 7.00%
Compensated absences 7.00% 7.00%

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Sensitivity level (increase) / decrease in defined 
benefit obligation (Impact)

 March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019 
Discount rate 1% increase  1.38  1.05 

1% decrease  (1.55)  (1.18)
Future salary increase 1% increase  (1.29)  (0.99)

1% decrease  1.18  0.90 
Withdrawal rate 1% increase  0.14  0.03 

1% decrease  (0.15)  (0.03)

	 The principal assumptions used in determining above defined benefit obligations 
for the Group’s plans is shown below:

	 A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:

	 Gratuity

	 The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates 
the impact on the defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key 
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period. The sensitivity analysis is based 
on a change in one significant assumption at a time, keeping all other assumptions constant. 
The sensitivity analysis may not be representative of an actual change in the defined benefit 
obligation as it is unlikely that changes in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another.

	 The same method has been applied for the sensitivity analysis as when calculating the 
recognised defined benefit obligation.

Notes to Consolidated financial statements
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35	Disclosure pursuant to Employee benefits (Contd..)
	 The followings are the expected future benefit payments for the defined benefit 

plan :

	 Weighted average duration of defined plan obligation (based on discounted cash 
flows)

	 The followings are the expected contributions to planned assets  for the next year:

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars   March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period)  4.88  4.13 
Between 2 and 5 years  10.35  8.89 
Beyond 5 years  17.34  15.76 
Total expected payments  32.57  28.78 

Particulars   March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

Years Years

Gratuity  9.13  8.56 

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars   March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

Gratuity  1.46  1.07 

	 Risk Exposure And Asset Liability Matching

	 Provision of a defined benefit scheme poses certain risks, some of which are detailed 
hereunder, as companies take on uncertain long term obligations to make future benefit 
payments.

	 1.	 Liability Risks

	 a.	 Asset-Liability Mismatch Risk-

		  Risk which arises if there is a mismatch in the duration of the assets relative to the 
liabilities. By matching duration with the defined benefit liabilities, the company is 
successfully able to neutralize valuation swings caused by interest rate movements. 
Hence companies are encouraged to adopt asset-liability management.

	 b.	 Discount Rate Risk

		  Variations in the discount rate used to compute the present value of the liabilities may 
seem small, but in practise can have a significant impact on the defined benefit liabilities.

Notes to Consolidated financial statements
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35	Disclosure pursuant to Employee benefits (Contd..)

	 C.	 Other long-term employment benefits

		  The Company has compensated absences plan which is covered by other long-term 
employee benefits.

		  March 31, 2020 : Changes in defined benefit obligation of compensated absences
(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

April 1, 
2019

Cost charged to statement of profit and 
loss

Benefit 
paid

Contributions 
by employer

March 
31, 2020

Service 
cost

Interest 
cost

Actuarial 
changes 

arising from 
various 

assumption

Sub-total 
included in 
statement 

of profit 
and loss 

(Note 30)

Compensated 
absences

Defined 
benefit 
obligation  (7.89)  (1.23)  (0.53)  (2.04)  (3.80)  1.68  -  (10.01)

Benefit 
liability  (7.89)  (1.23)  (0.53)  (2.04)  (3.80)  1.68  -    (10.01)

	 c. Future Salary Escalation and Inflation Risk

		  Since price inflation and salary growth are linked economically, they are combined for 
disclosure purposes. Rising salaries will often result in higher future defined benefit 
payments resulting in a higher present value of liabilities especially unexpected 
salary increases provided at management’s discretion may lead to uncertainities in 
estimating  this increasing risk.

	 2. 	 Asset Risks

		  All plan assets are maintained in a trust fund managed by a public sector insurer viz; 
LIC of India. LIC has a sovereign guarantee and has been providing consistent and 
competitive returns over the years.

		  The company has opted for a traditional fund wherein all assets are invested primarily 
in risk averse markets. The company has no control over the management of funds 
but this option provides a high level of safety for the total corpus. A single account is 
maintained for both the investment and claim settlement and hence 100% liquidity 
is ensured. Also interest rate and inflation risk are taken care of.

Notes to Consolidated financial statements
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36.	Related party transactions

	 Related parties have been identified on the basis of requirement of Ind AS 24 ‘Related 
Party Disclosures’ and representation made by the Key Management Personnel and 
taken on record by the Board.

	 A.	 Names of the related party and nature of relationship where control exists

		   There are no parties where control exists.

Name of the related party Nature of relationship

Orbit Electricals Private Limited Enterprise controlled by Key Management 
Personnel

Finolex Plasson Industries Private Limited Associate company
Finolex Cables Limited Enterprise wherein the Company is an 

associate
Mukul Madhav Foundation (Trust) Enterprises over which Key Management 

Personnel or their relatives exercise 
significant influence 

Finolex Infrastructure Private Limited

Mrs. Ritu P. Chhabria Relative of Key Management Personnel
Ms. Gayatri  P. Chhabria Relative of Key Management Personnel

	 March 31, 2019 : Changes in defined benefit obligation of compensated absences

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars April 1, 
2018

Cost charged to statement of profit and loss Benefit 
paid

Contributions 
by employer

March 
31, 2019

Service 
cost

Interest 
cost

Actuarial 
changes 

arising from 
various 

assumption

Sub-total 
included in 

statement of 
profit and loss 

(Note 30)

Compensated absences

Defined benefit obligation  (5.15)  (0.76)  (0.35)  (3.01)  (4.12)  1.37  -  (7.89)

Benefit liability  (5.15)  (0.76)  (0.35)  (3.01)  (4.12)  1.37  -    (7.89)

35	Disclosure pursuant to Employee benefits (Contd..)

	 B.	 Name of the related parties with whom transactions have been entered into

	 C.	 Key Management Personnel:

Name of the related party Nature of relationship

Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria Executive Chairman
Mr. Anil V. Whabi Director Finance & CFO
Mr. Sanjay S. Math Managing Director

Notes to Consolidated financial statements
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36.	Related party transactions (Contd..)

	 D.	 Transactions with Related Parties  
(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars   March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

I.	 Sales, services and other income
	 Sale of goods
	 Finolex Plasson Industries Private Limited  20.54  20.20 
	 Dividend Received
	 Finolex Cables Limited  9.98  8.87 
	 Finolex Plasson Industries Private Limited  0.93  1.16 
II.	 Expenses
	 Services received
	 Mrs. Ritu P. Chhabria (Sitting fees)  0.03  0.04 
	 Mrs. Ritu P. Chhabria (commission)  0.13  0.12 
	 Ms. Gayatri Chhabria (Salary)  0.05  -   
	 Dividend paid
	 Finolex Cables Limited  80.39  40.19 
	 Orbit Electricals Private Limited  46.66  23.33 

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars   March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

Contribution towards corporate social 
responsibility
Mukul Madhav Foundation  11.42  8.86 
Amounts outstanding
Due to
Finolex Plasson Industries Private Limited  0.10  0.13 

		  Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

		  Transaction entered into with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those 
that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are 
unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no 
guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables.

		  Commitments with related parties

		  The company has not provided any commitment to the related party as at March 31, 
2020 (March 31, 2019: H Nil)

Notes to Consolidated financial statements
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(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars   March 31, 2020   March 31, 2019
Short-term employee benefits:
Salary and perquisites  5.38  5.11 
Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria  2.83  2.70 
Mr. Sanjay S. Math  1.28  1.21 
Mr. Anil V. Whabi  1.27  1.20 
Commission:  7.50  9.03 
Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria  5.00  7.14 
Mr. Sanjay S. Math  1.50  1.26 
Mr. Anil V. Whabi  1.00  0.63 
Post employment benefits:  0.09  0.08 
Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria  0.05  0.05 
Mr. Sanjay S. Math  0.02  0.02 
Mr. Anil V. Whabi  0.02  0.01 
Other long term benefits:  0.82  0.57 
Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria  0.66  0.45 
Mr. Sanjay S. Math  0.13  0.04 
Mr. Anil V. Whabi  0.04  0.09 
Total compensation  13.79  14.79 
The amounts disclosed in the table are the amounts recognised as an expense during the 
reporting period related to key management personnel.
Post employement benefits payable:  2.69  2.28 
Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria  2.38  2.03 
Mr. Sanjay S. Math  0.21  0.16 
Mr. Anil V. Whabi  0.11  0.09 
Other long term benefits payable:  0.82  0.57 
Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria  0.66  0.45 
Mr. Sanjay S. Math  0.13  0.04 
Mr. Anil V. Whabi  0.04  0.09 
Total long term benefits payable  3.52  2.85 

36.	Related party transactions (Contd..)

37.	Commitments and contingencies

	 37.1 Capital commitments

	 Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not 
provided (net of capital advances) for amounted to H  28.38 Crores as at March 31, 2020 
(H. 9.20 Crores as at March 31, 2019).

Notes to Consolidated financial statements

		  Transactions and balances outstanding with key management personnel

		  Compensation of key management personnel of the Company
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(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars   March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as 
debt
 a) Liabilities in respect of income tax matters for 

which the Company has succeeded in appeal but 
Income Tax Department has gone in further appeal 
and exclusive of the effect of similar matters in 
respect of pending assessments  0.10  0.10 

 b) Liabilities in respect of income tax matters for 
which the Company has gone in further appeal and 
exclusive of the effect of similar matters in respect 
of pending assessments  3.98  6.03 

 c) Excise/Customs/Service Tax in respect of which 
either show cause notice is received or the 
Company/Department is in appeal  78.01  82.94 

 d) Sales Tax matters in respect of which either 
show cause notice is received or the Company/
Department is in appeal  3.27  3.27 

 e) Consumer Protection matters in respect of which 
customers have gone for recovery on account of 
quality claims.  0.27  1.39 

	 37.2 Contingent liabilities

37.	Commitments and contingencies (contd..)

38. Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

	 This note explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair 
values of the financial instruments that are recognised & measured at i. fair value ii. 
measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are considered to be same as the 
amortised costs dislosed in the financial statements. They are further classified them 
into Level 1 to Level 3 as required by the accounting standard and described in the 
significant accounting policies of the Company. Further, the note describes valuation 
techniques used, key inputs to valuations and quantitative information about significant 
unobservable inputs for fair value measurements.

Notes to Consolidated financial statements
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(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  Amortised 
Cost 

FVTPL FVTOCI

 Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3 

Non-current investments:
Investment in equity shares of :
Quoted
Equity instruments  -    0.40  -    -    439.03  -    -   
UnQuoted
Equity instruments  83.58  -    -    -    -    -    8.55 
Current investments:
Investments in units of mutual funds  -    49.53  -    -    -    -    -   
Deposit with Non Banking Financial 
institutions  79.60  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Trade and other receivables  73.17  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Loans  3.57  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Cash & cash equivalents  57.29  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Other bank balances  35.92  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Other financial assets  25.22  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Total  358.35  49.93  -    -    439.03  -    8.55 
Financial liabilities
Borrowings  282.67  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Trade and other payables  233.40  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Other financial liabilities  130.84  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Total  646.91  -    -    -    -    -    -   

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

 Amortised 
Cost 

FVTPL FVTOCI

Particulars  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3 

Non-current investments:
Investment in equity shares of :
Quoted
Equity instruments  -    0.65  -    -    1,060.16  -    -   
UnQuoted
Equity instruments  66.46  -    -    -    -    -    8.58 
Current investments:
Investments in units of mutual funds  -    226.09  -    -    -    -    -   
Deposit with Non Banking Financial 
institutions  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Trade and other receivables  74.31  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Loans  3.47  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Cash & cash equivalents  6.52  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Other bank balances  21.52  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Other financial assets  73.01  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 245.29  226.74  -    -    1,060.16  -    8.58 
Financial liabilities
Borrowings  89.50  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Trade and other payables  283.80  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Other financial liabilities  89.74  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Total  463.04  -    -    -    -    -    -   

	 Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 
2019:

	 Classification of Financial instruments by Category and into Fair value Level of Hierarchy as 
at March 31, 2020

38. Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Contd..)

Notes to Consolidated financial statements
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Valuation techniques used to determine the fair value of each financial instrument:

Fair value of financial instruments classified at amortised cost:

The management assessed that the fair values of cash and bank, loans, trade receivables, 
accrued interest, trade payables, borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities 
approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these 
instruments.

Carrying value of non-current financial liabilities are considered to be same as their fair value 
due to discounting at rate which are an approximation of incremental borrowing rate. Futher, 
company’s non-current financial assets are appearing in the books at fair value since the 
same are interest bearing hence discounting of the same is not required.

Fair value of financial instruments classified at FVTPL:

These financial instruments consist of investment in quoted equity instruments and units 
of mutual funds. The fair value of quoted equity instruments is  based on the respective 
quoted price in the active markets as at the measurement date and fair value of investment 
in mutual funds is determined using the quoted price ( NAV ) of the respective units in the 
active market at the measurement date.

Fair value of financial instruments classified at FVTOCI:

These financial instruments consist of investment in equity instruments. The fair value of 
quoted equity instruments is  based on the respective quoted price in the active markets 
as at the measurement date. The fair value of investments in unquoted equity shares has 
been estimated using the net asset method. The valuation requires to consider the cost of 
replacement of an asset as an indication of the fair market value of that asset.

During the year ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019, there were no transfers between 
Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements.

The Company maintains policies and procedures to value financial assets or financial 
liabilities using the best and most relevant data available. In addition, the Company  internally 
reviews valuations, including independent price validation for certain instruments.

Valuation inputs used in Level 3 and sensitivity of inputs to fair value:

38. Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Contd..)

Notes to Consolidated financial statements

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at 
March 

2020

As at 
March 

2019

Valuation 
technique 

adopted

Significant 
unobservable 

inputs

Weighted average 
range

Sensitivity of Input 
to FV

As at 
March 

2020

As at 
March 

2019

Non Current 
Investments - 
Unquoted equity 
shares  8.55  8.58 

 Net asset 
method  Recknor rate 890-1160 890-1160

Increase/ (decrease) 
in the rate would 

decrese/(increase) the 
fair value.
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39. Financial risk management objective and policies

Risk Category Exposure arising from Measurement Management

Credit risk Cash and bank 
balances, Trade 
receivables, and other 
Financial assets.

Ageing analysis, 
credit ratings

Diversification of bank 
deposits, portfolio 
diversification for 
investments, credit limits.

Liquidity risk Borrowings, Trade 
payables and other 
financial liabilities

Rolling cash flow 
forecasts

Senior management 
ensures that the future 
cash flow needs are met 
through cash flow from 
the operating activities 
and short term borrowings 
from banks.

Market risk-
interest rate risk

No risk since compny 
has no exposure of long 
term borrowings

Not applicable Not applicable

Market risk-
currency risk

Recognised Financial 
liabilities not 
denominated in H

Sensitivity analysis Natural hedging

Market risk-
price risk

Investments Sensitivity analysis Portfolio diversification

	 The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise short term borrowings, trade 
payables and other financial liabilities. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is 
to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include 
investments, trade receivables and cash and cash equivalents that arrive directly from 
its operations.

	 The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s 
management oversees the management of these risks. The Company’s management 
is supported by a risk management committee that advises on financial risks and the 
appropriate financial risk governance framework. The risk management committee 
provides assurance to the Company’s management that the Company’s financial risk 
activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks 
are identified, measured and managed in accordance with Company’s policies appetite. 
It is the Company’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be 
undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of 
these risks, which are summarised below.

	 i)	 Credit risk

		  Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial 
instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company evaluates 
credit risk with respect to trade receivables as significantly low, as its payment 
terms are mostly advance basis.

Notes to Consolidated financial statements
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39. Financial risk management objective and policies (Contd..)

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Asset group Internal 
rating

Carrying amount net of 
impairment provision 

As at  
March 31 

2020

As at  
March 31 

2019

Financial assets for which 
credit risk has not increased 
significantly from inception 

Investments A  660.69  1,361.94 
Loans A  3.57  3.47 
Other financial 
assets A  25.22  73.01 

		  a)	 Trade Receivables

			   The Company evaluates credit risk with respect to trade receivables as 
significantly low, as its payment terms are mostly advance basis.

		  b)	 Financial instruments and cash deposits

			   Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by 
the Company’s treasury department in accordance with Company’s policy. 
Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and 
within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. Company monitors ratings, 
credit spread and financial strength of its counter parties. Based on ongoing 
assessment company adjust it’s exposure to various counterparties. Company’s 
maximum exposure to credit risk for the other components of balance sheet is 
the carrying amount as disclosed below:

Notes to Consolidated financial statements

	 ii)	 Liquidity risk

		  Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and 
future cash flow and collateral obligations without incurring unacceptable losses. 
Company’s objective is to, at all time maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet 
its cash and collateral requirements. Company closely monitors its liquidity position 
and deploys a robust cash management system. It maintains adequate sources 
of financing including overdraft, debt from domestic and international banks at 
optimised cost. Company enjoys strong access to domestic and international capital 
market across debt, equity and hybrids.

		  The table summarises the maturity profile of group’s financial liabilities based on 
contractual undiscounted payments.
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39. Financial risk management objective and policies (Contd..)

Particulars  On 
demand 

 < 3 
months 

 3-12 
months 

 1-5 years  Total 

Short term borrowings  -    282.67  -    -   282.67 
Trade payables  36.20  197.20  -    -   233.40 
Other financial liabilities  52.95  30.43  47.32  0.13 130.84 

Particulars  On 
demand 

 < 3 
months 

 3-12 
months 

 1-5 years  Total 

Short term borrowings  -    89.50  -    -    89.50 
Trade Payables  1.03  282.77  -    -   283.80 
Other financial liabilities  35.40  31.34  22.66  0.34  89.74 

		  As at March 31, 2019

	 iii)	 Market risk

		  Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument 
will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three 
types of risk  interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk such as equity 
price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include 
borrowings, trade and other payables, trade receivables, investments, other financial 
liabilities.

		  The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 March 
2020 and 31 March 2019. The sensitivity of the relevant income statement item 
is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. The sensitivity 
analyses have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio 
of fixed to floating interest rates of the debt, proportion of financial instruments in 
foreign currencies are all constant at 31 March 2020.

		  The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying 
values of gratuity, other post retirement obligations and provisions Company’s 
activities expose it to variety of financial risks, including effect of changes in foreign 
currency exchange rate and interest rate.

		  a)	 Foreign currency risk 						    

			   Foreign currency risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument 
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

			   The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates 
primarily to its operating activities on account of import of raw materials.

Notes to Consolidated financial statements

		  As at March 31, 2020
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39. Financial risk management objective and policies (Contd..)

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Nature of exposure Currency  As at 
 March 31, 2020 

 As at 
 March 31, 2019 

Financial liabilities 
Borrowings (Secured)  USD  3.53  1.14 
Borrowings (Unsecured)  USD  0.21  0.15 
Interest on borrowings  USD  0.01  0.01 
Trade payables  USD  1.99  2.74 
Trade payables  EURO  0.01  -   

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Currency Amount in Foreign Currency

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

USD  5.74  4.04 
EURO  0.01  -   

			   PVC pricing is on import parity and import parity value of sales of the Company 
exceeds the USD payables on a six monthly rolling basis due to which a natural 
hedge exists and hence the Company does not generally need to resort to 
hedging by way of forward contracts, options, etc.

			   Details of foreign currency exposures

			   Currency wise net exposure (liabilities - assets)

Notes to Consolidated financial statements

			   Sensitivity Analysis

			   The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible 
change in USD & EURO exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. 
The impact on the company’s profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value 
of monetary assets and liabilities. The impact on the company’s pre-tax equity is 
due to changes in the profit before tax.

Particulars   March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

Net unhegded exposure in J
USD  434.09  279.61 
EURO  0.64  -   
Sensitivity
USD-change by 4% (4.45% in 2018-19)  2.76  3.08 
EURO-change by 4% (NA in 2018-19)  2.99  -   
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39. Financial risk management objective and policies (Contd..)

Currency 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-20

EUR  67.51  75.10  69.25  80.78  77.67  82.77 
USD  62.59  66.33  64.84  65.18  69.16  75.67 

Currency % Change 
2015-16

% Change 
2016-17

% Change 
2017-18

% Change 
2018-19

% Change 
2019-20

Average 
change 

EUR 10% -8% 14% -4% 6% 4%
USD 6% -2% 1% 6% 9% 4%

			   (EUR- Euro,  USD - US Dollar)

			   Calculation of Average% change in Foreign currency:

		  b)	 Interest rate risk

			   Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial 
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

			   The Company has short term borrowings with fixed interest rates and hence the 
future cash-flows of relevant financial instrument are not affected by changes in 
market interest rate.

		  c)	 Price risk

		  i)	 Commodity Price risk

			   The Company is affected by the volatility of prices of certain commodity 
chemicals ( Ethylene and PVC) and intermediates (EDC and VCM). Its operating 
activities involve the ongoing purchase of Vinyl Chloride Monomer (‘VCM’), 
Ethylene and Ethylene Dichloride (‘EDC’), all being petrochemical products for 
manufacturing of PVC and pipes and fittings and therefore require a continuous 
supply of these materials. Prices of PVC manufactured by the Company are 

Notes to Consolidated financial statements

Particulars   March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

Impact on profit after tax or equity   
(J Strengthen)
USD  11.83  8.10 
EURO  0.02  -   
Impact on profit after tax or equity   
(J Weaken)
USD  (11.83)  (8.10)
EURO  (0.02)  -   
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39. Financial risk management objective and policies (Contd..)

Particulars  Change in year-
end price 

 Effect on profit 
before tax 

March 31, 2020
VCM  +5%  30.37 

 -5%  (30.37)
Ethylene  +5%  12.97 

 -5%  (12.97)
EDC

 +5%  17.17 
 -5%  (17.17)

March 31, 2019
 VCM  +5%  28.00 

 -5%  (28.00)
Ethylene  +5%  13.78 

 -5%  (13.78)
 EDC  +5%  11.84 

 -5%  (11.84)

monitored by company management and are adjusted to respond to change in 
import parity price of PVC in Indian market. Market price of input and output, 
generally get adjusted over a period of time. Accordingly, the company is 
exposed to the variation in prices over short term period.

			   Commodity price sensitivity

			   The following table shows the effect of price changes for VCM, Ethylene EDC 
after the impact of hedge accounting:

	 ii)	 Equity price risk

		  The Company’s listed and unlisted equity securities are susceptible to market-price 
risk arising from uncertainties about future values of the investment securities. The 
equity securities held by the Company are strategic in nature. The Company’s Board 
of Directors reviews and approves all equity investment decisions.

		  At the reporting date, the exposure to unlisted equity securities at fair value was H 8.55 
Crores . A decrease of 10% in the fair value will have an impact of approximately H 0.85 
Crores on OCI. An increase of 10% in the value of the securities would also impact OCI.

		  At the reporting date, the exposure to listed equity securities at fair value was H 
439.43 Crores. A decrease of 10% on the NSE market index could have an impact of 
approximately H 43.90 Crores on OCI and H 0.04 Crores on Profit and loss or equity 
attributable to the Company. An increase of 10% in the value of the listed securities 
would also impact OCI, profit and loss and equity.

Notes to Consolidated financial statements
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40.	Capital management 

	 Capital includes equity shares and other equity attributable to the equity holders of the 
Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure 
that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its 
business and maximise shareholder value. The Company manages its capital structure 
and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain 
or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to 
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.Company monitors 
capital using a gearing ratio, which is total debt divided by total capital plus other equity.

	 The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total 
capital plus net debt. The Company’s policy is to keep low a gearing ratio. The Company 
includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, less cash and cash 
deposits, current investments.

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars   March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

Borrowings-Buyer's credit  282.67  89.50 
Debt  282.67  89.50 
Share Capital  124.10  124.10 
Other equity  1,861.88  2,452.10 
Equity  1,985.98  2,576.20 
Debt/equity ratio 14.23% 3.47%

	 No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital 
during the years ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019.

Notes to Consolidated financial statements

41.		Details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined under MSMED 
Act, 2006 (as amended)

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars   March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

Principal amount outstanding as on year end *  1.18  2.19 
Principal amount outstanding and overdue out of above  0.07  0.39 
Interest due on above  0.01  0.01 
Interest paid  -    -   
Payment made beyond appointment date during the year  9.44  6.32 
Interest due and payable for overdue payments made 
during the year  0.05  0.05 
Total Interest accrued and remaining unpaid  0.06  0.06 
Amount of further interest remaining due and payable 
in succeeding years 0.14  0.08 

	  * Mainly includes retention money
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(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars   March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

Cash & cash equivalents  2.21 7.35
Current assets  263.14  234.52 
Non-current assets  72.55  63.52 
Current liabilities  143.31  149.72 
Non-current liabilities  14.37  12.38 
Net assets  180.21  143.29 
Proportion of Company's Ownership 46.35% 46.35%
Proportion of Company's Ownership in net assets  83.52  66.41 

Notes to Consolidated financial statements

42.	Investment in associate			 

	 The Company has a 46.35% interest in Finolex Plasson Industries Private Limited 
(FPIPL) which is consolidated using Equity method.

	 The associate company has its registered office and principal place of business at Urse, 
near Pune in India.

	 The company is engaged in manufacturing of micro irrigation systems, fittings, 
accessories and range of irrigation components.

	 Finolex Industries Limited has not consolidated Pawas Port Limited in which it holds 
49.99% (H.0.05 Crores) as it has not started its operations yet and does not have any 
material impact to the consolidated financial statements.

	 Summarised financial information of the above mentioned associate company 
(FPIPL) is as below:

	 Reconciliation to carrying amounts:
(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars   March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

Opening net assets  143.29  127.33 
Profit after tax for the year  39.05  18.96 
Other comprehensive income for the year  0.47  0.01 
Dividends paid including DDT  (2.41)  (3.01)
Ind-AS 116 implementation effect  (0.19)  -   
Closing net assets  180.21  143.29 
Proportion of Company's Ownership 46.35% 46.35%
Proportion of Company's Ownership in net assets  83.52  66.41 
Less:Goodwill written off  -    -   
Add:Consolidation adjustments  -    -   
Carrying amountof investment in associate  83.52  66.41 
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Notes to Consolidated financial statements

	 Summarized statement of Profit and loss
(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars   March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

Total Revenue  442.39  401.71 
Total Expenses  387.25  371.49 
Profit for the year  39.05  18.96 
Other comprehensive income  (0.47)  (0.01)
Total comprehensive income  39.52  18.97 

42.	Investment in associate (Contd..)

	 Share in Capital commitments and Contingent liabilities of associate:

(All amounts in H Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars   March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

a)	 Share in Capital commitments (net of capital 
advances) 1.26 2.12

b)	 Share in claims against the associate company 
not acknowledged as debts - matters 
subjudiced

	 i)	 Share of sales tax matters in respect of which 
either show cause notice is received or the 
Company/Department is in appeal  0.10  0.10 

	 ii)	 Share of service tax in respect of which either 
show cause notice is received or the Company/
Department is in appeal  -    0.01 

	 iii)	 Share in other matters  0.34  0.34 
Total  1.70  2.57 

43. Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 116 “Leases”

	 From April 1, 2019, Ind AS 116 - ‘Leases’ has become effective and the management of 
the Company has opted for the modified retrospective method along with the transition 
option to recognise Right-of-Use asset (ROU) at an amount equal to the lease liability. 
However, in the current year the management has assessed the impact of Ind AS 116 
and concluded them to be immaterial. Therefore no effects have been taken in the 
books of account of the company.

	 However, the effect of Ind-AS 116 transition was material for the associate company and 
accordingly impact of the same has been properly taken in their books of account.

44. Exceptional item

	 Exceptional item in year ended March 31, 2019 represents settlement of derivative 
claims against the Company disclosed as contingent liability as at March 31,2018. There 
are no more claims or liabilities on account of derivatives.
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45.  Impact of lockdown due to Novel Corona Virus

	 The Company’s factories which had to suspend operations temporarily from the March 
23, 2020, due to Government’s directives relating to the Novel Corona Virus causing 
Covid 19, have resumed operations in phased manner at different plants from April 
29, 2020 onwards in accordance with the guidelines and norms prescribed by the 
Government authorities. However, the operations started from May 8, 2020 in the 
associate company.

	 The Company along with the associate company have evaluated the impact of Covid 
19 on the operations of the Company, inventories, investments, property, plant & 
equipment, current borrowings and trade payables. The management has considered 
the possible effects, if any, on the carrying amounts of these assets and liabilities up 
to the date of approval of these results. Based on the information from the internal and 
external sources; the management estimates to recover the carrying amount of these 
assets and currently does not anticipate any material impairment.

46. Previous year comparatives

	 Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to 
correspond with the current year’s classification / disclosure. The management of the 
Company has decided to present its financial statement in crores in current year as 
against the earlier presentation in lakhs.

Notes to Consolidated financial statements
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Notice

NOTICE is hereby given that the Thirty-
Ninth Annual General Meeting of the 
Members of Finolex Industries Limited (the 
“Company”) will be held on Saturday, 19th 
September, 2020, at 11.00 a.m. through 
Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio 
Visual Means (“OAVM”) to transact the 
following business:

Ordinary Business

1.	 To consider and adopt standalone 
and consolidated audited financial 
statements of the Company for the 
financial year ended 31st March, 2020 
together with the reports of the Auditors 
and the Board of Directors thereon.

2.	 To consider the interim dividend of  
H 10/- (i.e. 100%) per equity share of 
H 10/- each declared by the Board of 
Directors of the Company at its meeting 
held on 27th February, 2020 as final 
dividend for the financial year ended 
31st March, 2020.

3.	 To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Anil 
V. Whabi (DIN: 00142052) who retires 
by rotation, and being eligible, offers 
himself for re-appointment.

Special Business

4.	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass 
the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 148 and all other 
applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any 
statutory amendments, modification(s) 
or re-enactment thereof for the time 

being in force) and subject to guidelines 
and approvals as may be required from 
the Central Government, a remuneration 
of H 3,20,000/- (Rupees three lakh 
twenty thousand only) plus applicable 
taxes and reimbursement of actual out 
of pocket expenses to be paid to M/s. S. 
R. Bhargave & Co., Cost Accountants, 
Pune, (Firm Registration No. 000218) 
the Cost Auditors appointed by the 
Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the 
Company to conduct the audit of the 
cost records of the Company for the 
financial year ending 31st March, 2021, 
be and is hereby ratified and confirmed.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be 
and is hereby authorized to do all such 
acts, matters, deeds and things and give 
such directions as may be considered 
necessary, relevant, usual, customary 
and/or expedient to give effect to this 
resolution.”

5.	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass, 
the following Resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution: 

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the 
provisions of Sections 149, 152 
read with Schedule IV and all other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and 
the Companies (Appointment and 
Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014 
and in accordance with the provisions 
of the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(including any statutory modification(s) 
or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time 
being in force), Ms. Bhumika L. Batra 
(DIN: 03502004), who was appointed 
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as an Additional Director of the 
Company pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 161 of the Act, and the Articles 
of Association of the Company with 
effect from 20th September, 2019 and 
who holds office up to the date of this 
Annual General Meeting and in respect 
of whom the Company has received 
a notice in writing under Section 160 
of the Act from a member proposing 
her candidature for the office of the 
Director and who meets the criteria for 
independence as provided in Section 
149(6) of the Act along with the rules 
framed thereunder and Regulation 16(1)
(b) of SEBI Listing Regulations and who 
has submitted a declaration to that 
effect, be and is hereby appointed as 
Non-Executive Independent Director 
of the Company, not liable to retire by 
rotation for a term of 5 (five) consecutive 
years on the Board of the Company 
effective from 20th September, 2019 to 
19th September, 2024.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be 
and is hereby authorized to do all such 
acts, deeds, matters and things and give 
such directions as may be considered 
necessary, relevant, usual, customary 
and/or expedient to give effect to this 
resolution.”

6.	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass, 
the following Resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution: 

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the 
provisions of Sections 149, 152 
read with Schedule IV and all other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and 
the Companies (Appointment and 
Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014 
and in accordance with the provisions 
of the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(including any statutory modification(s) 
or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time 
being in force), Dr. Deepak R. Parikh 
(DIN: 06504537), who was appointed as 
an Additional Director of the Company 
pursuant to the provisions of Section 
161 of the Act, and the Articles of 
Association of the Company with 
effect from 20th September, 2019 and 
who holds office up to the date of this 
Annual General Meeting and in respect 
of whom the Company has received 
a notice in writing under Section 160 
of the Act from a member proposing 
his candidature for the office of the 
Director and who meets the criteria for 
independence as provided in Section 
149(6) of the Act along with the rules 
framed thereunder and Regulation 16(1)
(b) of SEBI Listing Regulations and who 
has submitted a declaration to that 
effect, be and is hereby appointed as 
Non-Executive Independent Director 
of the Company, not liable to retire by 
rotation for a term of 5 (five) consecutive 
years on the Board of the Company 
effective from 20th September, 2019 to 
19th September, 2024.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be 
and is hereby authorized to do all such 
acts, deeds, matters and things and give 
such directions as may be considered 
necessary, relevant, usual, customary 
and/or expedient to give effect to this 
resolution.”

7.	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass, 
the following Resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution: 

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the 
provisions of Sections 149, 152 
read with Schedule IV and all other 
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applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and 
the Companies (Appointment and 
Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014 
and in accordance with the provisions 
of the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(including any statutory modification(s) 
or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time 
being in force), Mr. Pradeep R. Rathi 
(DIN: 00018577), who was appointed as 
an Additional Director of the Company 
pursuant to the provisions of Section 
161 of the Act, and the Articles of 
Association of the Company with 
effect from 20th September, 2019 and 
who holds office up to the date of this 
Annual General Meeting and in respect 
of whom the Company has received 
a notice in writing under Section 160 
of the Act from a member proposing 
his candidature for the office of the 
Director and who meets the criteria for 
independence as provided in Section 
149(6) of the Act along with the rules 
framed thereunder and Regulation 16(1)
(b) of SEBI Listing Regulations and who 
has submitted a declaration to that 
effect, be and is hereby appointed as 
Non-Executive Independent Director 
of the Company, not liable to retire by 
rotation for a term of 5 (five) consecutive 
years on the Board of the Company 
effective from 20th September, 2019 to 
19th September, 2024.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be 
and is hereby authorized to do all such 
acts, deeds, matters and things and give 
such directions as may be considered 
necessary, relevant, usual, customary 
and/or expedient to give effect to this 
resolution.”

8.	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass, 
the following Resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution: 

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the 
provisions of Sections 149, 152 
read with Schedule IV and all other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and 
the Companies (Appointment and 
Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014 
and in accordance with the provisions 
of the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(including any statutory modification(s) 
or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time 
being in force), Mr. Anami N. Roy (DIN: 
01361110), who was appointed as an 
Additional Director of the Company 
pursuant to the provisions of Section 
161 of the Act, and the Articles of 
Association of the Company with 
effect from 20th September, 2019 and 
who holds office up to the date of this 
Annual General Meeting and in respect 
of whom the Company has received 
a notice in writing under Section 160 
of the Act from a member proposing 
his candidature for the office of the 
Director and who meets the criteria for 
independence as provided in Section 
149(6) of the Act along with the rules 
framed thereunder and Regulation 16(1)
(b) of SEBI Listing Regulations and who 
has submitted a declaration to that 
effect, be and is hereby appointed as 
Non-Executive Independent Director 
of the Company, not liable to retire by 
rotation for a term of 5 (five) consecutive 
years on the Board of the Company 
effective from 20th September, 2019 to 
19th September, 2024.
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	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be 
and is hereby authorized to do all such 
acts, deeds, matters and things and give 
such directions as may be considered 
necessary, relevant, usual, customary 
and/or expedient to give effect to this 
resolution.”

9. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, 
the following Resolution as a Special 
Resolution: 

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the 
provisions of Sections 42, 71 and 
other applicable provisions, if any, of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), 
read with the Companies (Prospectus 
and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 
2014, the Companies (Share Capital 
and Debentures) Rules, 2014 and in 
accordance with the provisions of 
the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Issue and Listing of Debt 
Securities) Regulations, 2008, the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosures 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 
the Rules, Regulations, Guidelines 
and Circulars thereunder, (including 
any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof for the time being 
in force) and as per the provisions of the 
Articles of Association of the Company, 
approval of the members of the 
Company be and is hereby accorded to 
the Board of Directors of the Company 
(the “Board”) authorizing to issue 

offer(s) or invitation(s) to subscribe to 
debt securities as defined under the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 
Regulations, 2008, as amended from 
time to time, including Non- Convertible 
Debentures (“NCDs”) for a sum not 
exceeding H 2,50,00,00,000/- (Rupees 
two hundred fifty crore only) on a private 
placement basis or otherwise in one or 
more tranches during a period of one 
year from the date of passing of this 
resolution within the overall borrowing 
limits of the Company, as approved by 
the Members from time to time.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be 
and is hereby authorized to do all such 
acts, deeds, matters and things and give 
such directions as may be considered 
necessary, relevant, usual, customary 
and/or expedient to give effect to this 
resolution including determining the 
terms and conditions for the issuance 
of the said debt securities and listing of 
the same, if required, on the designated 
stock exchanges in India”.

By Order of the Board of Directors 
	 For Finolex Industries Limited

	 Anil V. Whabi
Pune 	 Director (Finance) & CFO
23rd June, 2020	 DIN : 00142052
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NOTES FOR e-AGM:

1.	 In view of the prevailing lock down 
situation across the country due to 
outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic 
and restrictions on the movements, 
MCA (Ministry of Corporate Affairs) 
has vide its circular Nos. Circular No. 
14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, Circular 
No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 read 
with Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 
05, 2020 (hereinafter collectively 
referred to as “MCA Circulars”), has 
notified that companies are permitted 
to hold their Annual General Meeting 
(“AGM”) through Video Conferencing 
/ Other Audio Visual Means (“VC/
OAVM”), without the physical presence 
of the Members at a common venue for 
the calendar year 2020. In accordance 
with the MCA Circulars, provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and 
the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(“SEBI Listing Regulations”), the AGM 
of the Company is being held through 
VC / OAVM. The deemed venue for the 
AGM shall be the Registered Office of 
the Company.

2.	 In compliance with applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with aforesaid MCA circulars the 
39th Annual General Meeting of the 
Company is being conducted through 
Video Conferencing (VC)/Other Audio 
Visual Means (OAVM) herein after 
called as “e-AGM”.

3.	 e-AGM: Company has appointed M/s 
KFin Technologies Private Limited 
(‘KFIN’), Registrars and Share Transfer 
Agents (‘RTA’), to provide facilities for 
voting through remote e-voting, for 

participation in the e-AGM through VC/
OAVM and e-voting during the e-AGM.

4.	 Since the AGM will be held through VC/ 
OAVM, the route map of the venue of 
the Meeting is not annexed hereto.

5.	 Pursuant to the provisions of the 
circulars of MCA on the VC/OAVM 
(e-AGM):

	 a.	 Members can attend the meeting 
through log in credentials provided 
to them to connect to Video 
conference. Physical attendance of 
the Members at the Meeting venue 
is not required.

	 b.	 Appointment of proxy to attend and 
cast vote on behalf of the member 
is not available and hence the Proxy 
Form and Attendance Slip are not 
annexed to this notice.

	 c.	 Body Corporates are entitled to 
appoint authorised representatives 
to attend the e-AGM through VC/
OAVM and participate and cast their 
votes through e-voting.

	 d. Corporate Members are requested 
to send to the Company a 
certified copy of the relevant 
Board Resolution authorizing their 
representative(s) to attend and vote 
on their behalf at the e-AGM. The 
said Resolution/Authorization shall 
be sent to the Scrutinizer by email 
through its registered email address 
to deulkarcs@gmail.com with a 
copy marked to mohsin.mohd@
kfintech.com.

6.	 The Members can join the e-AGM 30 
minutes before and after the scheduled 
time of the commencement of the 
Meeting by following the procedure 
mentioned in the Notice.
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7.	 Up to 1000 members will be able to join 
e-AGM on FIFO basis.

8.	 No restrictions on account of FIFO entry 
into e-AGM will apply in respect of large 
Shareholders (Shareholders holding 
2% or more shareholding), Promoters, 
Institutional Investors, Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons 
of the Audit Committee, Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee and 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee, 
Auditors etc.

9.	 The attendance of the Members 
(member logins) attending the e-AGM 
will be counted for the purpose of 
reckoning the quorum under Section 
103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

10.	Remote e-Voting: Pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 108 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 
20 of the Companies (Management 
and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as 
amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as 
amended), and the MCA Circulars, the 
Company is providing facility of remote 
e-voting to its Members through 
Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer 
Agent, M/s KFin Technologies Private 
Limited.

11.	 Voting at the e-AGM: Members who 
unable to vote through remote e-voting 
may avail the e-voting system provided 
by M/s KFin Technologies Private 
Limited, at the time of e-AGM.

	 Upon declaration about the 
commencement of e-voting at e-AGM, 
members shall click on the thumb sign 
on the left hand bottom corner of the 
video screen for voting at the e-AGM.

In line with the MCA Circular No. 17/2020 
dated April 13, 2020, Notice of the AGM 
along with the Annual Report for Financial 
Year 2019-20 will be sent only through 
electronic mode to those members whose 
email addresses are registered with the 
Company/ RTA/ Depositories. Members 
may note that the Notice and Annual Report 
for Financial Year 2019-20 for calling the 
AGM has been uploaded on the website 
of the Company at www.finolexpipes.com. 
The Notice can also be accessed from the 
websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE 
Limited and National Stock Exchange of 
India Limited at www.bseindia.com and 
www.nseindia.com respectively and the 
same is also available on the website of 
e-voting agency M/s KFin Technologies 
Private Limited at the website address 
https://evoting.karvy.com/. The Company 
has also published an advertisement in 
newspaper containing the details about 
e-AGM i.e. the conduct of AGM through VC/
OAVM, date and time of AGM, availability 
of notice of AGM at the Company’s website 
and manner of registering the e-mail IDs of 
those shareholders who have not registered 
their email addresses with the Company/ 
RTA.

Procedure for obtaining the Annual Report, 
e-AGM notice and e-voting instructions by 
the shareholders whose email addresses 
are not registered with the depositories or 
with RTA on physical folios:

On account of threat posed by COVID-19 
and in terms of the MCA and SEBI Circulars, 
the Annual Report, Notice of e-AGM and 
e-voting instructions will be sent only in 
electronic form to the registered email 
addresses of the shareholders. Therefore, 
those shareholders who have not yet 
registered their email address are requested 
to get their email address registered by 
following the procedure given below:
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1.	 Those shareholders who have 
registered/not registered their email 
address and mobile nos. including 
address and bank details may please 
contact and validate/update their details 
with the Depository Participant in case 
of shares held in electronic form and 
with the Company’s Registrar and Share 
Transfer Agent i.e. KFin Technologies  
Private Limited in case the shares are 
held in physical form.

2.	 Shareholders who have not registered 
their email address and hence are unable 
to receive the Annual Report, Notice of 
e-AGM and e-voting instructions, may 
temporarily get their email address 
and mobile number provided with the 
Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer 
Agent i.e. KFin Technologies Private 
Limited, by clicking the link: https://
ris.kfintech.com/email_registration/  
for sending the same. Shareholders 
are requested to follow the process as 
guided to capture the email address and 
mobile number for sending the soft copy 
of the notice and e-voting instructions 
along with the User ID and Password. 
In case of any queries, shareholder may 
write to einward.ris@kfintech.com 

3.	 Shareholders are requested to visit 
the website of the company www.
finolexpipes.com or the websites of 
the Stock Exchanges, i.e., BSE Limited 
and National Stock Exchange of India 
Limited or the website of the Registrar 
and Transfer Agent https://evoting.karvy.
com/ for downloading the Annual Report 
and Notice of the e-AGM.

4.	 Alternatively, member may send an 
e-mail request at the email id einward.
ris@kfintech.com along with scanned 
copy of signed request letter providing 
the email address, mobile number, self-

attested PAN copy and Client Master 
copy in case of electronic folio and copy 
of share certificate in case of physical 
folio for sending the Annual report, 
Notice of e-AGM and the e-voting 
instructions.

Instructions for the Members for 
attending the e-AGM through Video 
Conference:

1.	 Member will be able to attend the e-AGM 
through video conferencing platform 
provided by M/s KFin Technologies 
Private Limited. Members may access 
the same at https://evoting.karvy.com/ 
under shareholders/members login by 
using the remote evoting credentials. 
The link for e-AGM will be available in 
shareholder/members login where the 
EVENT and the name of the company 
can be selected. Please note that the 
members who do not have the User 
ID and Password for e-Voting or have 
forgotten the User ID and Password 
may retrieve the same by following the 
remote e-Voting instructions mentioned 
in the notice.

2.	 Members are encouraged to join the 
Meeting through Laptops with Google 
Chrome for better experience.

3.	 Further Members will be required to 
allow Camera, if any, and hence use 
Internet with a good speed to avoid any 
disturbance during the meeting.

4.	 Please note that Participants 
Connecting from Mobile Devices or 
Tablets or through Laptop connecting 
via Mobile Hotspot may experience 
Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in 
their respective network. It is therefore 
recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or 
LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of 
aforesaid glitches.
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5.	 Speaker Registration before e-AGM:

	 a. 	Members, who would like to express 
their views or ask questions during 
the e-AGM will have to register 
themselves as a speaker by visiting 
at https://emeetings.kfintech.com 
and clicking on the tab ‘Speaker 
Registration’ during the period 
starting from 15th September, 2020 
(9.00 a.m.) upto 17th September,  
2020 (5.00 p.m.).

	 b. Only those members who have 
registered themselves as a speaker 
will be allowed to express their 
views/ask questions during the 
e-AGM.

	 c. The Company reserves the right to 
restrict the number of speakers 
depending on the availability of time 
for the e-AGM. Please note that only 
questions of the members holding 
the shares as on cut-off  date will be 
considered.

6.	 The facility of attending e-AGM through 
VC/OAVM shall be closed within 15 
minutes after the meeting is concluded.

Instructions for members for e-Voting 
during the e-AGM session:

1.	 Only those Members/ shareholders, 
who will be present in the e-AGM 
through Video Conference facility and 
have not cast their vote through remote 
e-voting are eligible to vote through 
e-voting in the e-AGM.

2.	 However, members who have voted 
through Remote e-voting will be eligible 
to attend the e-AGM.

NOTES

1.	 The Explanatory Statement pursuant to 
Section 102 (1) of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”), in respect of special 
businesses is annexed hereto.

2.	 E-voting (Voting through electronic 
means):

	 In compliance with the provisions 
of Section 108 of the Act and Rule 
20 of the Companies (Management 
and Administration) Rules, 2014 as 
amended and Regulation 44 of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the 
Company is pleased to offer e-voting 
facility which will enable all the Members 
to cast their votes electronically on the 
resolutions mentioned in the Notice 
of the 39th Annual General Meeting 
(e-AGM) of the Company. Necessary 
arrangements have been made by the 
Company with KFin Technologies Private 
Limited (‘KFIN’), to facilitate e-voting. 
Members who have cast their votes by 
e-voting prior to the e-AGM may attend 
the e-AGM but shall not be entitled to 
cast their votes again. The Company 
has appointed Mr. S.V. Deulkar, Partner 
or Mr. Sridhar Mudaliar, Partner of M/s. 
SVD & Associates, Company Secretaries, 
Pune as the Scrutinizer for analyzing the 
remote e-voting and e-voting processes 
conducted during e-AGM in a fair and 
transparent manner. 

	 Remote e-voting and e-voting at the 
e-AGM rights of the shareholders/
beneficial owners shall be reckoned 
on the equity shares held by them as 
on Friday, 11th September, 2020 (i.e. 
“cut-off” date). The remote e-voting 
period commences on Wednesday, 16th 
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September, 2020 (9.00 a.m.) and ends on 
Friday, 18th September, 2020 (5.00 p.m.). 
The voting module shall be disabled by 
KFIN for remote e-voting thereafter.

	 The instructions and process for e-voting 
are as under:

	 A)	 In case a Member receives an email 
from KFIN [for Members whose email 
IDs are registered with the Company/ 
Depository Participant(s)]

		  i)	 Launch internet browser by 
typing the URL: https://evoting.
karvy.com  

		  ii)	 Enter the login credentials 
(i.e. User ID and Password) as 
provided in a separate e-voting 
communication, being sent along 
with the Notice of e-AGM and 
Annual Report. Your Folio No./
DP ID-Client ID will be your User 
ID. However, if you are already 
registered with KFIN for e-voting, 
you can use your existing User 
ID and password for casting your 
vote. 

		  iii)	 After entering these details 
appropriately, click on “LOGIN”. 

		  iv)	 You will now reach password 
change Menu wherein you 
are required to mandatorily 
change your password. The new 
password shall comprise of 
minimum 8 characters with at 
least one upper case (A-Z), one 
lower case (a-z), one numeric 
(0-9) and a special character 
(@,#,$,etc.). The system will 
prompt you to change your 
password and update your 
contact details like mobile 
number, email ID, etc. on first 

login. You may also enter a secret 
question and answer of your 
choice to retrieve your password 
in case you forget it. It is strongly 

recommended that you do not 

share your password with any 

other person and that you take 

utmost care to keep your password 

confidential. 

		  v)	 You need to login again with the 
new credentials. 

		  vi)	 On successful login, the system 
will prompt you to select the 
E-Voting Event Number (EVEN) 
for Finolex Industries Limited.

		  vii)	 On the voting page, enter 
the number of shares (which 
represents the number of votes) 
as on Friday, 11th September, 
2020 under “FOR/ AGAINST” 
or alternatively, you may partially 
enter any number in “FOR” and 
partially in “AGAINST” but the 
total number in “FOR/AGAINST” 
taken together should not 
exceed your total shareholding. 
You may also choose the option 
“ABSTAIN” and the shares held 
will not be counted under either 
head. 

		  viii)	Members holding multiple folios/ 
demat accounts shall choose the 
voting process separately for each 
of the folios/demat accounts.

		  ix)	 Voting has to be done for each 
item of the Notice separately. In 
case you do not desire to cast 
your vote on any specific item, it 
will be treated as abstained.

		  x)  You may then cast your vote by 
selecting an appropriate option 
and click on “Submit”.
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		  xi)	 A confirmation box will be 
displayed. Click “OK” to confirm 
else “CANCEL” to modify. 
Once you confirm, you will 
not be allowed to modify your 
vote. During the voting period, 
Members can login any number 
of times till they have voted on 
the Resolution(s).

		  xii)	 Corporate / Institutional Members 
(i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, 
NRI, etc.) are also required to 
send scanned certified true 
copy (PDF Format) of Board 
Resolution / Authority Letter, 
etc., together with attested 
specimen signature(s) of the 
duly authorized representative(s) 
who are authorized to vote, 
to the Scrutinizer at e-mail ID: 
deulkarcs@gmail.com.  They 
may also upload the same in 
the e-voting module in their 
login. The scanned image of the 
above mentioned documents 
should be in the naming format 
“Corporate Name_EVEN NO”. In 
case remote e-voting is opted for, 
the documents should reach the 
Scrutinizer on/before Friday, 18th 
September, 2020 at 5.00 p.m.

	 B)	 Once the vote on a resolution is cast 
by a Member, the Member will not 
be allowed to change it subsequently. 
Further, the Members who have cast 
their vote through remote e-voting 
will not be allowed to vote again at 
the e-AGM.

	 C)	 In case of any query pertaining to 
e-voting, please visit Help & FAQ’s 
section available at KFIN’s website 
https://evoting.karvy.com or contact 

KFIN’s at Tel. No. 1800 345 4001  
(toll free). 

	 D)	 The Scrutinizer shall, after scrutinizing 
the votes cast at the e-AGM and 
through remote e-voting, make a 
Consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report and 
submit the same to the Chairperson 
of the Company, not later than two (2) 
days of conclusion of the AGM.

	 E)	 The Results declared along with the 
Consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report 
shall be placed on the Company’s 
website (www.finolexpipes.com) 
and on the website of KFIN at https://
evoting.karvy.com. The results shall 
simultaneously be communicated to 
the BSE Limited and National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited.

	 F)	 A copy of this notice has been placed 
on the websites of the Company and 
KFIN.

3.	 A Brief resume of Directors proposed 
to be appointed/re-appointed along with 
such other details as required under 
Secretarial Standard-2 and Regulation 
36(3) of the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 as amended are given separately in 
the notice.

4.	 Members whose shareholding is in the 
dematerialized form are requested to 
direct the change of address notifications 
and updation of bank mandate/ECS details 
to their respective depository participants. 
Members holding shares in physical form 
may please send such details to KFin 
Technologies Private Limited (Unit: Finolex 
Industries Limited), Selenium Tower B, 
Plot No. 31 & 32, Gachibowli Financial 
District, Nanakramguda, Serilingampally 
Mandal, Hyderabad - 500 032, India. 
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Phone No.: 040-67162222 Extn Nos. 
1583 & 1562 Fax No.: 040-23420814, 
23001153 Toll Free: 1800 345 4001.Email 
ID: einward.ris@kfintech.com. Website: 
www.kfintech.com. Contact Person: Mr. 
Mohd Mohsin Uddin - Senior Manager. 

5.	 Since the scrip of the Company is 
compulsorily traded in demat form, 
Members holding shares in the 
physical form are requested to consider 
dematerializing the same. 

6.	 Members who have not appointed 
nominees are requested to do so. The 
prescribed form for appointment of 
nominee / change in nominee are available 
on the Company’s website https://
www.finolexpipes.com/wp-content/
uploads/2015/07/Nomination-Form.pdf

7.	 Members desirous of obtaining any 
information concerning the accounts 
and operations of the Company for the 
financial year ended on 31st March, 2020 
are requested to address their questions 
to the Compliance Officer at the registered 
office of the Company so as to reach on or 
before Wednesday, 9th September, 2020. 
This will ensure the requested information 
may be made available. 

8.	 While lodging requests for transmission/
transposition of shares/deletion of name 
due to death, please ensure that copies 
of PAN card(s) of all transferors and 
transferees/legal heirs are enclosed to the 
said request. In the absence of PAN card 
copies, the Company/RTA cannot give 
effect to the requests for transmission/
transposition, name deletion etc. 

9.	 Unclaimed Dividend: Members are 
requested to note that pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 124 and other 
applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, as 

amended, dividend remaining unclaimed/
unpaid for the period of seven years 
from the date of transfer to “Unclaimed 
Dividend Account” shall be credited to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund 
(IEPF) set up by the Central Government. 

	 Accordingly, dividend declared by the 
Company for the financial year 2012-13 
which remained unclaimed, is due for 
transfer to the IEPF, in October, 2020.

	 Besides, as per Investor Education and 
Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, 
Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 
2016, (‘the Rules’), the Company is 
also required to transfer shares of 
Members on which dividends remain 
unpaid / unclaimed for a period of seven 
consecutive years from the financial year 
2012-13, to the demat account of IEPF 
Authority in October, 2020.

	 Therefore, the Members who have not 
claimed their dividend pertaining to the 
year 2012-13 and/or any subsequent 
years that still remain outstanding, are 
requested to lodge their claims with 
KFIN, the Company’s RTA, at the earliest 
for obtaining payments thereof.

	 After such transfer to IEPF, the 
shareholders are required to follow the 
procedure mentioned in Rule 7 of the said 
Rules for claiming refund from IEPF.

	 Members are also requested to furnish 
Bank Account No., name of Bank, Branch, 
IFSC Code and place with PIN Code 
No. where the account is maintained 
to prevent fraudulent encashment of 
dividend warrants.

10.	 All documents as referred to in the notice 
and explanatory statement annexed 
thereto will be available for inspection 
through video conferencing facility of 
KFIN.
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Item No. 4 

M/s. S. R. Bhargave & Co., Cost 
Accountants, Pune, (Firm Registration No. 
000218) have been appointed as the Cost 
Auditors of the Company for the financial 
year 2020-21 by the Board of Directors at 
its meeting held on 23rd June, 2020. It is 
proposed to pay H 3,20,000/- (Rupees three 
lakh twenty thousand only) plus applicable 
taxes and reimbursement of actual out of 
pocket expenses as the remuneration to the 
Cost Auditors for the financial year 2020-21.

M/s. S. R. Bhargave & Co., have furnished 
a certificate regarding their eligibility 
for appointment as Cost Auditors of the 
Company. They have vast experience in the 
field of cost audit and have concluded the 
audit of the cost records of the Company 
for the financial year 2019-20 under the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”).

In terms of provisions of Section 148(3) of 
the Act, read with the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, remuneration of 
the Cost Auditors is required to be ratified 
by the members of the Company.

Your directors recommend the resolution 
for your approval. 

None of the directors or key managerial 
personnel of the Company and their 
relatives are concerned or interested 
financially or otherwise in the resolution.

Item No. 5 to 8

The Board of Directors has appointed Ms. 
Bhumika L. Batra, Dr. Deepak R. Parikh, Mr. 
Pradeep R. Rathi and Mr. Anami N. Roy, as 
Additional Directors acting as  Independent 

Directors with effect from 20th September, 
2019, based on the recommendation of the 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee. 
In terms of the provisions of Section 161 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), 
they holds office upto the date of the 39th 
Annual General Meeting of the Company.

The Company has received notice from 
the Members under Section 160 of the Act 
proposing the appointment of the above 
said candidates for office of Directors. The 
above said candidates have given their 
consent to act as Director of the Company, 
if appointed at the ensuing annual general 
meeting.

In terms of Section 149 and other applicable 
provisions of the Act, and based on the 
recommendation of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee, the Board of your 
Company at its meeting held on 23rd June, 
2020 has considered and recommended for 
the appointment of above said candidates 
as Non-Executive Independent Directors of 
the Company for a term of five consecutive 
years, upto 19th September, 2024. Based 
on a declaration received from them that 
they meet the criteria of independence 
as provided under Section 149 (6) of the 
Act and  on the assessment of veracity of 
the same, the Board is of the opinion that 
they fulfil the conditions for appointment 
as Independent Directors as prescribed 
under the Act and rules made thereunder 
as well as the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015. The Board considers that the 
association of the above candidates would 
be beneficial for the Company.

Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the 
Companies Act, 2013
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Ms. Bhumika L. Batra, Dr. Deepak R. 
Parikh, Mr. Pradeep R. Rathi and Mr. Anami 
N. Roy are not disqualified from being 
appointed as a Director in terms of Section 
164 of the Act. The Company has received 
declaration from them that they meet the 
criteria of independence as provided in 
Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 
25(8) of the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI 
Listing Regulations”).

A copy of the draft letter(s) for appointment 
of Non-Executive Independent Directors, 
setting out terms and conditions for 
their appointment, would be available for 
inspection through electronic mode upto 
the date of the e-AGM. 

The Additional information as required 
under Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 in respect of Ms. 
Bhumika L. Batra, Dr. Deepak R. Parikh, Mr. 
Pradeep R. Rathi and Mr. Anami N. Roy, is 
given at the end of this notice.

Your directors recommend the resolutions 
set out in Item nos. 5 to 8 for your approval. 

None of the directors except Ms. Bhumika 
L. Batra, Dr. Deepak R. Parikh, Mr. Pradeep 
R. Rathi and Mr. Anami N. Roy or key 
managerial personnel of the Company and 
their relatives are concerned or interested 
financially or otherwise in the resolution. 
Ms. Bhumika L. Batra, Dr. Deepak R. Parikh, 
Mr. Pradeep R. Rathi and Mr. Anami N. Roy 
are not related to any other Directors of  
the Company.

Item No.9

The SEBI vide its circular no. SEBI/
HO/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/144 dated 26th 
November, 2018 mandated that the Large 

Corporates as defined under the said 
circular, shall raise not less than 25% of its 
incremental borrowings by way of issuance 
of debt securities, as defined under the 
SEBI (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 
Regulations, 2008 which, inter alia, includes 
the Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) 
issued on a private placement basis. 

Your Company as on date is not falling under 
the definition of Large Corporate prescribed 
under the said SEBI Circular. However, it is 
proposed to obtain consent of its members 
at the ensuing annual general meeting of the 
Company in case the Company may require 
to issue the debt securities as defined 
under the SEBI (Issue and Listing of Debt 
Securities) Regulations, 2008 including 
NCDs on a private placement basis and 
listing of the same on the designated stock 
exchanges.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 42 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
read with the Companies (Prospectus and 
Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 and the 
Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) 
Rules, 2014 (hereinafter collectively referred 
to as the “Rules”), the SEBI (Issue and 
Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 
2008 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, a company offering or making an 
invitation to subscribe to NCDs, on a private 
placement basis is required to obtain the 
prior approval of the Members by way of 
a Special Resolution. Such an approval can 
be obtained once a year for all the offers 
and invitations made for such NCDs during  
the year. 

Accordingly, the approval of the Members is 
being sought by way of a special resolution in 
terms of the Sections 42 and 71 of the Act read 
with the Rules made thereunder and applicable 
SEBI regulations, guidelines and circulars 
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to enable the Company to offer or invite 
subscription for the debt securities including 
NCDs on a private placement basis, in one or 
more tranches during the period of one year from 
the date of passing of this resolution at Item No. 
9, up to a sum not exceeding H 2,50,00,00,000/- 
(Rupees two hundred fifty crore only) within 
the overall borrowing limits of the Company, 
as approved by the Members from time  
to time.

Your directors recommend the resolution 
for your approval. 

None of the directors or key managerial 
personnel of the Company and their 
relatives are concerned or interested 
financially or otherwise in the resolution.

By Order of the Board of Directors 
	 For Finolex Industries Limited

	 Anil V. Whabi
Pune 	 Director (Finance) & CFO
23rd June, 2020	 DIN : 00142052
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Additional information of the Directors seeking appointment/ re-appointment 
as required under Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Secretarial Standard-2.

Mr. Anil V. Whabi

(a)	 A brief resume of the director

	 Mr. Anil V. Whabi, Director (Finance) & CFO, age 60 years was appointed as a Whole-
time Director by the Board of the Company at its meeting held on 26th August, 2016. Mr. 
Anil V. Whabi, is a science graduate from University of Jodhpur. He is also a Chartered 
Accountant, from the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. He has over 36 years 
of experience in various companies.

(b)	Nature of his expertise in specific functional areas

	 Expert in strategic planning, financial structuring, cross border acquisitions, fund raising 
and better utilization of resources etc.

(c)	 Disclosure of relationships between directors inter-se

	 None of the directors are related to Mr. Anil V. Whabi.

(d)	Names of listed entities in which the person also holds the directorship and the 
membership of Committees of the board of directors

	 Mr. Anil V. Whabi is a member of Share Transfer Committee, Finance Committee & 
Risk Management Committee of the Company. He does not hold any directorship or 
committee membership in any other listed Company. 

(e)	 Shareholding in the Company

	 Mr. Anil V. Whabi does not hold any equity shares of the Company.
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Ms. Bhumika L. Batra

(a)	 A brief resume of the director

	 Ms. Bhumika L. Batra, 38, is a law graduate, a qualified Company Secretary and a 
member of the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. She is a Partner of Crawford 
Bayley & Co., one of the oldest law firms of India. She possesses over 14 years of 
experience in regulatory and legal practice, specializing in corporate law. She has co - 
authored the book “Treatise on Company Law” in 2014 and “Transfer and Transmission 
of Shares” in 2004. She is a regular feature writer in India Business Law Journal. She 
has also contributed in various other writings, like Company Law Ready Reckoner, Asia 
Business Law Journal etc.

(b)	Nature of her expertise in specific functional areas

	 With more than 14 years of experience in regulatory and legal practice, she specializes 
in corporate law.

(c)	 Disclosure of relationships between directors inter-se

	 None of the directors are related to Ms. Bhumika L. Batra.

(d)	Names of listed entities in which the person also holds the directorship and the 
membership of Committees of the board of directors

	 Ms. Bhumika L. Batra holds directorship (and the membership/chairmanship of Audit 
Committee and Stakeholder Relationship Committee) of other listed companies’ 
viz. Hinduja Global Solutions Limited (Member of Audit Committee and Chairperson 
of Stakeholder Relationship Committee), Jyothy Labs Limited (Member of Audit 
Committee), NXTdigital Limited (Member of Audit Committee and Chairperson of 
Stakeholder Relationship Committee), Repro India Limited (Chairperson of Stakeholder 
Relationship Committee), Sharp India Limited (Chairperson of Audit Committee and 
Member of Stakeholder Relationship Committee).

(e)	 Shareholding in the Company

	 Ms. Bhumika L. Batra holds 100 equity shares of the Company.



Annual Report 2019-20 309

Dr. Deepak R. Parikh 

(a)	 A brief resume of the director

	 Dr. Deepak Parikh, 58, studied chemical engineering at Bombay University (UICT) and 
earned a Ph.D. in engineering from University of Tennessee and significant advanced 
education in materials science and engineering from University of Utah, where he 
worked on development of the first artificial heart. He holds 45 U.S. patents.

	 Dr. Parikh is Chief Strategy Officer and Executive Committee Member of Indorama 
Ventures PCL from 1st April, 2019. Dr. Parikh is articulating and executing strategy and 
portfolio enhancement along with the Executive members of Indorama PCL. Indorama 
is globally diversified chemical company having over 100+ plants in 30+ countries. 

	 Prior to this, Dr. Parikh was President and Chief Executive Officer of Clariant Corporation 
North America. Dr. Parikh spent over 6 years with Clariant. Clariant is a globally leading 
specialty chemicals company, based in Switzerland. Dr. Parikh has also served as Vice 
Chairman and Managing Director of Clariant Chemicals (India) Limited (public listed 
company) along with presiding over Clariant’s Middle East and Africa region. 

	 Prior to joining Clariant, Dr. Parikh was engaged with total of 20 years with Dow 
Chemical, DuPont, Invista and about 5 years with private equity firms. Dr. Parikh was 
regional president for India, Middle East and Africa Region for Dow Chemical and 
regional president for Asia Region during his tenure at DuPont. 

(b)	Nature of his expertise in specific functional areas

	 Dr. Parikh is having expertise in chemical engineering. He is dynamic strategist and 
a global leader and is very well known for transforming organization, driving change 
management, creating new platforms, mergers and acquisitions, divesture etc.

(c)	 Disclosure of relationships between directors inter-se

	 None of the directors are related to Dr. Deepak R. Parikh.

(d)	Names of listed entities in which the person also holds the directorship and the 
membership of Committees of the board of directors

	 Dr. Parikh is director of American Chemical Council and also an Independent Director of 
Sudarshan Chemical Industries Limited. He does not hold any committee membership 
in any other listed Company. 

(e)	 Shareholding in the Company

	 Dr. Deepak R Parikh does not hold any equity shares of the Company.
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Mr. Pradeep R. Rathi 

(a)	 A brief resume of the director

	 Mr. Pradeep R. Rathi, 67, has completed his MS in Chemical Engineering from MIT, USA 
and M.B.A. from Columbia University, USA. He has been associated with Sudarshan 
Chemical Industries Limited for more than three decades, having retired as Managing 
Director on 1st June, 2018.

(b)	Nature of his expertise in specific functional areas

	 Mr. Pradeep R. Rathi is having expertise in the field of Chemical Engineering and General 
Management. 

(c)	 Disclosure of relationships between directors inter-se

	 None of the directors are related to Mr. Pradeep R. Rathi.

(d)	Names of listed entities in which the person also holds the directorship and the 
membership of Committees of the board of directors

	 Mr. Pradeep R. Rathi holds directorship (and the membership/chairmanship of Audit 
Committee and Stakeholder Relationship Committee) of other listed companies’ viz. 
Kirloskar Oil Engines Limited (Member of Audit Committee & Chairman of Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee), Sanghvi Movers Limited (Member of Audit Committee), 
Sudarshan Chemical Industries Limited (Member of Stakeholder Relationship 
Committee).

(e)	 Shareholding in the Company

	 Mr. Pradeep R. Rathi does not hold any equity shares of the Company.
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Mr. Anami N. Roy

(a)	 A brief resume of the director

	 Mr. Anami N. Roy, 70, holds a Master degree in History and has had a long and celebrated 
career in public service. He is a distinguished former civil servant, having served in the 
Indian Police Service in Maharashtra and the Government of India for over 38 years. He 
held a wide variety of assignments both in Maharashtra and the Central Government 
including Commissioner of Police, Aurangabad, Pune and Mumbai in challenging times 
and retired as Director General of Police, Maharashtra, commanding a 225,000 strong 
Force. 

	 While working for the Government of India, he headed the operations of the elite 
Special Protection Group, looking after proximate security of Prime Minister, former 
Prime Ministers and their families, in which capacity he travelled extensively within India 
and overseas and interacted with the forces and governments of many foreign countries 
around the world. 

	 Known popularly as the People’s Commissioner, he set up many citizen-friendly schemes 
and systems to resolve and fulfil people’s problems and expectations including a slum 
police panchayat, citizen facilitation centre and related touchpoints. 

	 He was appointed Advisor to the Governor of Andhra Pradesh when the State was 
under President’s rule in 2014. In this capacity, he dealt with the separation of Andhra 
Pradesh in two states, AP and Telangana and supervised the General Elections of 2014 
in both the states. 

	 Post retirement, he is engaged in the social/non-profit sector; and runs a not-for-profit 
company, Vandana Foundation for supporting people at the bottom of the pyramid 
with livelihood. He is also involved in many other companies and funds in an Advisory 
capacity. He brings with him a wide and rich experience of public service and functioning 
of governments at the state and central level. 

(b)	Nature of his expertise in specific functional areas

	 Nature of expertise in specific functional areas: Management & Strategy, Human 
Resources & Industrial Relations, Corporate Governance & Ethics, Regulatory, 
Government & Security matters, CSR, Sustainability & NGO matters and such other 
areas.

(c)	 Disclosure of relationships between directors inter-se

	 None of the directors are related to Mr. Anami N. Roy.
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(d)	Names of listed entities in which the person also holds the directorship and the 
membership of Committees of the board of directors

Mr. Anami N. Roy holds directorship (and the membership/chairmanship of Audit 
Committee and Stakeholder Relationship Committee) of other listed companies’ viz. 
Bajaj Auto Limited (Chairman of Audit Committee), Bajaj Finance Limited, Bajaj Finserv 
Limited, Bajaj Holdings & Investment Limited, Glaxosmithkline Pharmaceuticals Limited.

(e)	 Shareholding in the Company

Mr. Anami N. Roy does not hold any equity shares of the Company. 

Note: For other details such as number of meetings of the board attended during the year, remuneration drawn and justification for choosing the 

appointees for appointment as Independent Director in respect of above directors, please refer to the corporate governance report which is a part of this 

Annual Report.
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